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CORPORATE PROFILE
1)

China SCE Group Holdings Limited (“China SCE” or the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the”Group”), was
established in 1996 and with its shares listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) in February 2010 (Stock Code: 1966). The Group’s major
businesses include property development, commercial management,
property management and long-term rental apartments business. The
Company is headquartered in Shanghai for its business operations,
while implementing regional focused development strategy in the
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, the Bohai Rim Economic Zone,
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the West
Taiwan Strait Economic Zone and the Central Western Region.

The Group's property projects are distributed in 59 cities, including
Beijing, Shanghai, Tianjin, Chongging, Chengdu, Suzhou, Hangzhou,
Nanjing, Zhengzhou, Qingdao, Jinan, Xiamen, Nanchang and
Kunming, etc. Its products cover a wide range of properties including
high-rise residential buildings, offices, shopping malls and long-term
rental apartments. The Company upholds “We Build to Inspire” as its
key value proposition, “Creating Smart Living to Help Seize
Happiness” as its mission. The Company was awarded the “2023 Top
50 China Real Estate Listed Companies with Comprehensive
Strengths”, “2023 Top 500 of China Real Estate Developers” and
“Fortune China 500" in 2023.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates owned a land bank with an aggregate planned gross
floor area (“GFA") of approximately 29.90 million square metres
("sg.m."”). In the future, China SCE will continue to deepen the
strategic plan of “One Body Two Wings” and secure the regional
leading position by implementing more proactive and prudent
development strategies.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Yuanlai

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok

Mr. Huang Youquan

Mr. Wong Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen

Mr. Lu Hong Te (resigned on 30 May 2023)

Mr. Dai Yiyi

Mr. Mao Zhenhua (appointed on 30 May 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Li Siu Po

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Li Siu Po

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen (Chairman)

Mr. Lu Hong Te (resigned on 30 May 2023)

Mr. Dai Yiyi

Mr. Mao Zhenhua (appointed on 30 May 2023)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Dai Yiyi (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
EXREFR

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)

Mr. Lu Hong Te (resigned on 30 May 2023)

Mr. Dai Yiyi

Mr. Mao Zhenhua (appointed on 30 May 2023)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Huang Youquan (Chairman)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen

Mr. Lu Hong Te (resigned on 30 May 2023)
Mr. Mao Zhenhua (appointed on 30 May 2023)

AUDITOR

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO
HONG KONG LAWS

Chiu & Partners

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

SCE Tower

No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road
Honggiao Business District, Shanghai
China
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 2801, Hysan Place
500 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
BEEH

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir@sce-re.com
Fax: (852) 2342 6643

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1966

COMPANY WEBSITE

Www.sce-re.com
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SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHRE

4

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-ZA=t—-HLFE

BERME

2023 2022 Change
—E_=F —E-= i E
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
AR¥T T ARET T
Revenue Uz 20,960,968 26,705,112 (21.5)
Gross profit E7 2,630,992 5,410,308 (51.4
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners & A &1 A A JE{R % F
of the parent /(E18) (7,991,050) 24,544 N/A
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF,(EiE)
— Basic and diluted — BEARNEE RMVIB(189.2) cents  RMBO.6 cents
AR#(189.2) 7 AR%06% N/A
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FMBRARBE
POSITION
31 December 31 December
2023 2022 Change
—E-=F —EF-=
+=B=+—-8 +-—A=+—H %)
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
AR®T T ARETF T
Total assets BEBE 167,889,687 193,964,068 (13.4)
Cash and bank balances Re RRITFHRER 6,448,926 15,016,058 (57.1)
Total debts B 4a%E (35,907,119) (44,157,148) (18.7)
Total liabilities BfERE (147,407,361)  (157,338,827) (6.3)
Total equity et MR 20,482,326 36,625,241 (44.1)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
B

RESULTS

The year 2023 was an extremely difficult year for private real estate
enterprises. Amidst the storm, China SCE diligently addressed
challenges, worked to uphold its business fundamentals, and
progressed with all tasks in an orderly manner. Confronted with an
industry trend marked by a shrinking transaction volume in the
national new home market and a significant decline of total GFA
which commenced construction, China SCE has prioritised “Ensuring
Delivery” in its aim of business operation, surmounting obstacles and
challenges. The delivered property area during the year amounted to
approximately 2.34 million sg.m. For “Two Wings” sector, three SCE
Funworld shopping malls in Beijing West Chang’an, Shantou and
Tangshan respectively opened as scheduled. For residential properties,
the total GFA under management of residential properties has
achieved significant growth, and the market-oriented expansion
business has achieved breakthrough development.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB20.961 billion, representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 21.5%. Loss attributable to the
owners of the parent amounted to approximately RMB7.991 billion
due to the decrease in property sales income, provision of impairment
for property projects and fair value loss of investment properties.

CONTRACTED SALES

In order to stimulate the weak real estate market, national and local
policies have continued to relax and optimise real estate control
policies. However, the outcomes have fallen short of expectations.
The Group holds the belief that the market is still in a stage of
bottoming out. In 2023, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates achieved contracted sales amount of approximately
RMB27.775 billion, including contracted sales area of approximately
2.29 million sg.m., representing a year-on-year decrease of

approximately 52.9% and 53.3%, respectively.

During the year, the Group together with its joint ventures and
associates had an aggregate of over 90 projects for sale in over 50
cities. The four cities with the largest contracted sales, namely
Hangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Nanjing. The contracted sales amount
of these four cities accounted for approximately 52.4% of the total
contracted sales amount of the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates.

DEBT MANAGEMENT

Amidst the industry’s deep adjustment, the Company has spared no
effort to secure its position, actively meeting its obligations for both
offshore and domestic debt repayments. However, as the real estate
market continues to deteriorate, sales and financing continue to be
difficult, and liquidity constraints are becoming increasingly severe.
After careful consideration, the Company announced its offshore debt
restructuring in October 2023. The Company has engaged Haitong
International Securities Company Limited as its financial adviser to aid
in evaluating the Group’s existing capital structure and liquidity,
exploring viable options to address the current liquidity challenges and
aiming to deliver optimal outcomes for all stakeholders in the shortest
possible timeframe. The Company and its financial adviser will
continue to actively communicate with offshore creditors and ensure
fair and equitable treatment of all creditors.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHE

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2024, it is believed that China’s real estate market
will continue to bottom out. In order to mitigate real estate risks, it is
expected that the central and local governments in the PRC will
continue to optimise real estate control policies and introduce more
financial policies to support the reasonable financing needs of high-
quality real estate enterprises to accomplish delivery and completion
tasks. While real estate control policies in core cities are anticipated to
be further optimised, residents’ willingness to purchase houses
remains weak in light of China’s macroeconomic uncertainty.
Nevertheless, the Group expects that real estate demand in high-tier
cities will provide support.

In 2024, the Group's primary focus will remain on “Ensuring Delivery,
Cash Flow, and Operations”. “Ensuring Delivery” is the Group's
current biggest challenge and a key factor for survival. The Group will
work with partners to break through resource barriers, promote
project construction, strengthen construction quality monitoring, and
ensure that properties are completed and delivered as scheduled. For
marketing, the Group still adheres to “One Property One Strategy”,
by developing flexible sales strategies tailored to market competition
within each project’s segment to expedite the rollout of traffic
projects, and enhance house sales collection. Meanwhile, the Group
continues to implement effective measures to alleviate periodic
liquidity issues, including actively promoting offshore debt
restructuring, expediting negotiations with banks and financial
institutions for refinancing or extensions, facilitating the sale of non-
core assets, and optimising organisational structure and cost controls.

In the future, opportunities for residential development will persist in
focused and strengthened areas with certainty. Moreover, the rapid
development of existing asset operations and services augurs well for
the future of the second-curve business. Nevertheless, stabilising the
industry’s recovery trend in the short term may prove challenging. It is
only through courageous breakthroughs in the face of adversity, the
accumulation of deeper operational capabilities, and the persistent
promotion of transformation and development that China SCE can
overcome these difficulties and embrace a new chapter in the
upcoming cycle.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

APPRECIATION E

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere &% KA ERREZTEAAQRFTHNEEES
gratitude to all the staff, shareholders, investors, customers and T &8  #&& & « BEURESHEEENE

partners of the Company. BUAB B HE |

Wong Chiu Yeung =EHB

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, China FEEE

27 March 2024 —EToWFE=ZA=TtA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN D

MARKET REVIEW

In 2023, the entire real estate industry has entered into an intensified
adjustment period. The central and local governments in the PRC
introduced a series of policies by relaxing its control over the real
estate market, including “the easing of rules allowing mortgage on
second home to be treated in the same way as a first mortgage, as
long as the buyer has paid off the first loan”, lowering “first home”
down payment ratio, and reducing “second home” loan interest
rates. The policies aimed to improve its rigid needs but the results
were unsatisfactory. In light of diminishing external demand, ongoing
challenges in China’s economic transformation, a declining birth rate,
and an ageing ageing population, the overall demand for real estate

continues to encounter significant pressure.

In 2023, the sales of national commodity housing amounted to
approximately RMB11,662.2 billion, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 6.5%), of which the sales amount of residential housing
decreased by 6.0% year-on-year. The sales area of national
commodity housing amounted to approximately 1.12 billion sq.m.,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 8.5%, of which sales area of
residential housing dropped by 8.2% year-on-year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Contracted Sales

In 2023, the real estate market was still in a stage of bottoming out.
The Group together with its joint ventures and associates achieved
contracted sales amounted to approximately RMB27.775 billion for
the year, including contracted sales of approximately 2.29 million
sg.m., representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 52.9%
and 53.3%, respectively. The average property selling price during the
year was RMB12,116 per sq.m.

In 2023, the Group together with its joint ventures and associates had
an aggregate of over 90 projects for sales in over 50 cities, mainly in
second-tier cities and core areas of third- and fourth-tier cities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

The contracted sales realised by the Group together with its joint  FR - AEBEEREASLE QA NEBZE QA AH
ventures and associates during the year are set out below: BRFEEFAFADT :
By City R E D
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Amount Sales Area Sales Amount
HEE
&[ & HESHE
City W HESHE SHEHER BAE
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)
(AREBE&ET) (F75K)
Hangzhou BN 7,236 288,130 26.1
Beijing b= 3,974 132,450 14.3
Tianjin R 1,896 142,266 6.8
Nanjing EZh 1,443 142,816 5.2
Hefei &he 1,260 50,135 4.5
Kunming =5 1,028 135,574 3.7
Quanzhou RN 836 96,444 3.0
Suzhou N 833 61,003 3.0
Chongging BE 812 123,277 2.9
Shangrao a3 705 107,595 2.5
Fuzhou &M 682 29,979 2.5
Shanggiu [l 538 94,704 1.9
Shanghai ! 509 19,358 1.8
Xuzhou RN 427 36,453 1.5
Foshan L 334 25,865 1.2
Other EAh 5,262 806,388 19.1
Total &&F 27,775 2,292,437 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRR E S

By Region RESSE S
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Amount Sales Area Sales Amount
EEmE
&R &R HESE
Region Ei HESHE HEmME =ERvilsd
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)
(AR®B&T) (FFHXK)

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone &= A& E 12,425 693,094 44.7
Bohai Rim Economic Zone IR B 6,948 443,293 25.0
Central Western Region H P Ef M [ 3,756 592,032 13.5
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone /&K 78 5 457 2,961 325,903 10.7

Guangdong — Hong Kong BERNER
— Macao Greater Bay Area 1,685 238,115 6.1
Total CEn 27,775 2,292,437 100.0

By City Tier BT AR B & D
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Amount Sales Area Sales Amount
HERE
=aG =iG HESE
City Tier 35T A% Bl HESH HEmE B
(RMB Million) (sq.m.) (%)
(AR%B&T) (F7K)

First-tier cities — AR 4,483 151,808 16.1
Second-tier cities BT 16,268 1,065,351 58.6
Third- and fourth-tier cities = EEET 7,024 1,075,278 25.3
Total CE 27,775 2,292,437 100.0

16 — Cusmarsman —=-—-—&&%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

From the perspective of city distribution, contracted sales in Beijing
and Hangzhou have been the most remarkable among the first-tier
and second-tier cities, amounting to approximately RMB3.974 billion
and RMB7.236 billion, respectively, accounting for approximately
14.3% and 26.1% of the total contracted sales amount. The
contracted sales of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and the
Bohai Rim Economic Zone amounted to approximately RMB12.425
billion and RMB6.948 billion, respectively, accounting for
approximately 44.7% and 25.0% of the total contracted sales
amount.

Investment Properties

As at 31 December 2023, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates held 50 investment properties with a total GFA of
approximately 3.90 million sg.m. (attributable GFA of approximately
3.53 million sgq.m.), of which 25 investment properties had
commenced operation. The Group together with its joint ventures and
associates have investment properties in 26 cities, including Beijing,
Shanghai, Xiamen, Hangzhou and Suzhou, among others, with its
business covering shopping malls, long-term rental apartments,
offices, commercial streets and shops.

TR W& D

BT RHEDN  A— - Z@M AR R
KM ARBERERARL  DAHA
REEITAEBETLREARKET236E (hERBE
EHESEDRIH143%K%26.1% - K=A
KEBRRDEEEBNARBESED R
AR 124258 M AR 69.48 18T » 1h
BERORHEESEDA44.7% % 25.0% °

REM=

RZE_=ZF+_A=+—H8 HcEEER
Hed e e a0 EIREMZ
MEEEEL3908F K (BIEEEAEL
353BF A K) c ER 25 AR EMECHRE
EoAEBEREGE AR REERANE
EMES>MALR - £8 - EF - MM RE
ME26 ST - ZREREBEDH L REHR
B BTIE - MEHREE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRR E S

Recognised Property Sales Income

In 2023, the Group achieved recognised property sales income of
approximately RMB19.096 billion and area of properties delivered of
approximately 2.34 million sq.m., representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 22.8% and 9.1% respectively. The average
selling price of properties was approximately RMB8,156 per sq.m.,

BAMEEERA

ZEZ=F AEEBRYWEHERALDA
R®1909618TT BERERXNHMEEELN B
234FF 7K Rt 5 Bl A #22.8% & 4
9.1%  FHMEEEEROAT LI RAR
¥ 8,156 7T * R 4 15.1% o AN & [H 1R

representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 15.1%. Details ¥ ZE#HEWAFFB O T ¢
of the Group’s recognised property sales income are as follows:
By City BT 8D
Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property
Sales Income Sales Area  Sales Income
HERYE
R LS HEWA
City 1 SHEWA HEHER Batt
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)
(ARERS&T) (FFFK)
Beijing bR 2,414 106,586 12.6
Nanchang Ma 1,926 150,589 10.1
Shanghai 5 1,631 49,891 8.5
Shangrao & 1,532 287,428 8.0
Jinan e 1,133 151,142 5.9
Heyuan AR 1,123 150,296 5.9
Weifang %) 918 155,328 4.8
Chongging sy 828 111,520 4.3
Tianjin RE 827 62,912 4.3
Qingdao 55 623 86,464 3.3
Quanzhou N 623 83,206 33
Shanwei AR 553 102,708 2.9
Zhengzhou 2N 549 84,335 2.9
Chizhou S 545 70,977 29
Other Efh 3,871 687,973 20.3
19,096 2,341,355 100.0

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023
PREBZRERLR I T =FFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBTWNR DN

By Region REHE D
Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property Sales
Sales Income Sales Area Income
(e ES
BRYE mRAME SHEWA
Region E i HEWA HEER BatE
(RMB Million) (sq.m.) (%)
(AREBE&ET) (FFF7K)
Bohai Rim Economic Zone IR B A 75 6,224 627,541 32.6
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone /&I 7 5 45 7% 4,711 611,929 24.7
Guangdong — Hong Kong — B SR K [

Macao Greater Bay Area 3,388 493,201 17.7
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone &= A E 2,547 250,233 13.3
Central Western Region F 78 B b [ 2,226 358,451 11.7

19,096 2,341,355 100.0
By City Tier BT R B E D

Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property
Sales Income Sales Area  Sales Income
IHTERY =
R R HEWA
City Tier 3 i A% Bl HEWA HEHER BatE
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)

(AR®EBS&ET) (FFF3K)
First-tier cities — AR 4,045 156,477 21.2
Second-tier cities k3] 6,921 792,087 36.2
Third- and fourth-tier cities = WEET 8,130 1,392,791 42.6
19,096 2,341,355 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEBWNR DA

Land Bank

As at 31 December 2023, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates had a land bank with an aggregate planned GFA of
approximately 29.90 million sg.m. (the aggregate planned GFA
attributable to the Group was approximately 24.22 million sq.m.),
distributing in 59 cities. From the perspective of geographic
distribution, the land bank costs (excluding investment properties) of
the Group together with its joint ventures and associates located in
the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, the Bohai Rim Economic
Zone, the West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone, the Guangdong —
Hong Kong — Macao Greater Bay Area and the Central Western
Region accounted for approximately 33.7%, 20.7%, 22.2%, 8.2%
and 15.2% respectively. Considering the tiers of cities, the land bank
costs (excluding investment properties) of the Group together with its
joint ventures and associates located in first-tier cities, second-tier
cities as well as third- and fourth-tier cities accounted for
approximately 11.3%, 55.6% and 33.1% respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
The Group mainly derives its revenue from sales of properties,

property management fees, rental income, land development income
and project management income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The annual revenue decreased by approximately 21.5% from
approximately RMB26,705,112,000 in 2022 to approximately
RMB20,960,968,000 in 2023, which was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue from sales of properties.

o Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties decreased by approximately
22.8% from approximately RMB24,739,180,000 in 2022 to
approximately RMB19,095,549,000 in 2023. Delivered area
decreased by approximately 9.1% from 2,574,884 sq.m. in
2022 to 2,341,355 sg.m. in 2023. The average unit selling price
decreased from approximately RMB9,608 per sq.m. in 2022 to
approximately RMB8,156 per sq.m. in 2023.

o Property management fees

Property management fees increased by approximately 17.6%
from approximately RMB989,751,000 in 2022 to approximately
RMB1,164,184,000 in 2023, which was mainly attributable to
the increase in the number and floor area of properties under
management.

° Rental income

Rental income increased by approximately 3.1% from
approximately RMB513,670,000 in 2022 to approximately
RMB529,680,000 in 2023, which was mainly attributable to the
contribution of rental income from newly opened shopping
malls of SCE Funworld during the year.

o Land development income

During 2022, the Group recognised land development income
of approximately RMB201,893,000, which was the income from
pre-construction and preparation work provided for certain land
parcels in Nan'an, Quanzhou.

o Project management income

The project management income decreased significantly by
approximately 34.2% from approximately RMB260,618,000 in
2022 to approximately RMB171,555,000 in 2023, which was
attributable to the decrease in project management service and
other property related service income provided to joint ventures
and associates.

TR W& D

2EWNHEB S _FEFHHARK
26,705,112,000 LR P 4921 5% E —F — =
F ) ANRE20,960,968,0007C ° EE - Y
EEEWICRDETE -

e WMIREEWA

MEHEWA AR T —FHHOARE
24,739,180,000 L L #122.8% & - &
—=F W AR 19,095,549,000 7T ¢
REEER T - —FH2574,884F
FRBAHOI%E B = = E£#)
2,341,355 F Ko FHHHEBEER =
T _FHNEFHARHAREKIE08TT
BMAOPE_Z - ZFNEFHAAROARYE
8,156 7T °

e YXEHEER

MEERBR _FT__FHHARK
989,751,000 T KN 17.6% &= - &
—=FERHARE1,164,184,000 7T © £
EEREERNYEHERABEEMEZM
B o

o  HEWA

FEWAR S -_—_FEHHARK
513,670,000 T K X3 1% E_FT ==
FHH ARES529,680,0000T EER
FAFHATREREBYRSENESE
BRFTER ©

o IHBEEBA

TECF REESS TR
A% AR #201,893,0007T WAL T
SMEET I IRHEAT RS R EET
A -

e THEEHWA

EEEBEWRABR T - —FHNHARE
260,618,000 7T K18 R 2 4934.2% & =
T =FHHARE171,555,0007T
TR ERIEE EERE M EMYEE
BRISHEE SR a K& DRI AFTE »
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEBWNR DA

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased significantly by approximately 51.4% from
approximately RMB5,410,308,000 in 2022 to approximately
RMB2,630,992,000 in 2023. Gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 20.3% in 2022 to approximately 12.6% in 2023. The
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to declining
property selling prices.

Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties, Net

The fair value losses of investment properties increased significantly by
approximately 147 times from approximately RMB25,422,000 in 2022
to approximately RMB3,754,084,000 in 2023. The fair value losses of
investment properties during the year were mainly attributable to the
effects of the decline in demand for commercial properties in the PRC.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses decreased significantly by
approximately 35.2% from approximately RMB1,239,106,000 in
2022 to approximately RMB802,420,000 in 2023. The decrease in
selling and marketing expenses was mainly attributable to the
decrease in the number of projects for sale during the year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 4.0% from
approximately RMB1,781,374,000 in 2022 to approximately
RMB1,710,180,000 in 2023. The decrease in administrative expenses
was mainly attributable to the implementation of stringent cost
control measures.

Other expenses
During 2023, other expenses was approximately RMB877,699,000,

which were attributable to the impairment losses for investments in
joint ventures and associates and amount due from related parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased significantly by approximately 62.0% from
approximately RMB921,124,000 in 2022 to approximately
RMB1,492,343,000 in 2023. Finance costs mainly represented partial
borrowing costs which have not been capitalised as certain
borrowings were not used for project developments. Given the
decrease in bank and other borrowings (including senior notes and
domestic bonds), total interest expenses decreased from
approximately RMB3,380,997,000 in 2022 to approximately
RMB2,709,362,000 in 2023.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased significantly by approximately 81.4%
from approximately RMB1,020,120,000 in 2022 to approximately
RMB189,504,000 in 2023. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the combined effect of decrease in provision of income tax expense as
a result of the decrease in revenue recognised and decrease in gross
profit margin and deferred tax credit as a result of fair value losses of
investment properties in 2023.

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Owners of the Parent

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the parent changed from profit
of approximately RMB24,544,000 in 2022 to loss of approximately
RMB7,991,050,000 in 2023. The deterioration in operating results
was primarily attributable to the effects of decline in demand in real
estate market in the PRC in 2023: (1) decline in properties delivery
had led to decrease in revenue recognised from sales of properties; (2)
declining property selling prices had resulted in lower gross profit
margin and increase in provision of impairment for property projects;
and (3) decline in demand for commercial properties had led to fair
value loss of investment properties.

TR W& D

B8 A

MBEEBERBRE_ZT__SHHARK
921,124,000 L KIBIENA62.0% Z T ==
FEH ARBE1,492,343,0007T - B ERK
EEFTERETESYAARBEERAE &
ZERMERATEEERNE - HRIRITREAM
ERX(BREEEAEBRREAES) BARL
ERFEREH _T__FHARE
3,380,997,000 TP E T =FHARE
2,709,362,000 7T °

BRI X

MERNYB ST __FMHHARK
1,020,120,000 T RIB R, 2 #V81.4% 2 = F
T =FHH ARY 189,504,000 T o HiE A E
ERZTZ=ZFERRBRARLD REMET K
SIBMBERBERS RIREMERAALEE
B BHELEHBEREMEENGETE -

JAEEEABGEF(EE)

BRAREEAEBEESN (BB B2
FEHFHANREE 24,544,000t A - F
T =FEEH AR 7,991,050,0007T © B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEBWNR DA

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and bank balances
were denominated in different currencies as set out below:

mBEL  MBREXRER
B

RZEBE-_=F+-A=+—8 XEBNR
S RBITEREHTIUA T IR EEEE -

2023 2022
—E-=F —_EFEq-—
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRE ARETT

Renminbi AR
Hong Kong dollars B
US dollars ETT

6,405,803 14,855,496
26,673 77,676
16,450 82,886

Total cash and bank balances

Ba RIRTTHERE R

6,448,926 15,016,058

According to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, certain
property development companies of the Group are required to place
certain amounts of cash and bank deposits into designated bank
accounts to provide guarantees for the development of the relevant
properties. The Group also places certain deposits in banks in the PRC
to secure certain bills issued from banks in the PRC. As at 31 December
2023, the amount of restricted cash was approximately
RMB1,564,401,000 (31 December 2022: approximately
RMB3,866,093,000). As at 31 December 2022, the amount of pledged

deposits was approximately RMB2,031,012,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

Borrowings and Pledged Assets ERREEEH
The maturity profile of the borrowings of the Group as at 31 RIZEZ=F+ZA=+—H A£BEEX
December 2023 was as follows: EFESRAT
2023 2022
—g—-= —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTx
Bank and other borrowings: RITREMER
Within one year or on demand —FANIREK 9,817,976 10,742,959
In the second year E-F 6,347,705 11,063,555
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-ERF (BEEERT) 2,576,084 3,819,267
Beyond fifth year ERAF 1,351,795 1,369,331
20,093,560 26,995,112
Senior notes and domestic bonds: BERBIIENES
Within one year or on demand —FANIREK 13,613,559 3,959,846
In the second year BE_4F - 7,418,104
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EZRF (BEEERT) 2,200,000 5,784,086
15,813,559 17,162,036
Total borrowings B 35,907,119 44,157,148

The borrowings were denominated in different currencies as set out

below:

SR TORA S -

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBEF T
Bank and other borrowings: RITREMEZ

Renminbi AREE 15,378,120 21,655,224
Hong Kong dollars BT 1,147,471 1,127,006
US dollars E 3,567,969 4,212,882
20,093,560 26,995,112

Senior notes and domestic bonds: BRAEBNMBERNES
Renminbi AR 3,270,688 1,610,688
US dollars ET 12,542,871 15,551,348
15,813,559 17,162,036
Total borrowings BT 35,907,119 44,157,148
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEBWNR DA

Breakdown of the borrowings by categories is as follows: ERAMREZTERLE ST
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETET
The senior notes of US$500 million ata R=Z—PU4 P/ B E|H]  Secured/Fixed A 3,509,732 3,419,467
coupon rate of 7.375% due in April H518%707.375% 18 interest rate & € F| &
2024 %%?}fx
The senior notes of US$500 million at a E’\_ T =FMAFE  Secured/Fixed B - 3,419,846
coupon rate of 7.25% due in April S5{EETL7.25% 18 interest rate (& £ |
2023 fiﬁ?—%ﬁ%
The senior notes of US$500 millionata R=Z=AF A AF|H  Secured/Fixed A 3,499,267 3,403,779
coupon rate of 7% due in May 2025 BSEBETI%EELEE interest rate & € F| &
&
The senior notes of US$350 millionata M=Z="F = AZF|#  Secured/Fixed B 2,446,319 2,380,307
coupon rate of 6% due in February 3.5 ETT6% Bk interest rate (& £ |
2026 1
The senior notes of US$450 million at MR-ZE-WFENAFE  Secured/Fixed A 3,087,553 2,927,949
a coupon rate of 5.95% due in #4.5{83705.95% & interest rate & 7 A =
September 2024 EER
The domestic corporate bonds of RZZZ=FHAEH  Unsecured/Fixed mER - 540,000
RMB540 million at an adjusted WARKE S 4ETEH interest rate [E] £ |
coupon rate of 6.5% due in August BEBE65%IEANA
2023 AlESH
The domestic corporate bonds of RZTZNFELAZE  Unsecured/Fixed I 506,019 506,019
RMB506,019,000 at a coupon rate of 7 A R # 506,019,000 interest rate & 7 F| =
5.5% due in July 2024 JL55%RA R EESH
The domestic corporate bonds of RZZZRF+AEEH  Unsecured/Fixed I 564,669 564,669
RMB564,669,000 at a coupon rate of  HJ A R 564,669,000 interest rate [E] € 7 &
5.5% due in October 2025 TL55% AR RIES
The medium-term notes of RMB1.5 RZTZRF—AZE  Secured/Fixed BHE|/ 1,500,000 -
billion at a coupon rate of 4.1% due AR 15BIT41% interest rate & 7 F| =
in January 2026 AR
The medium-term notes of RMB700 RZZZRFENAEEH  Secured/fFixed BEHE 700,000 -
million at a coupon rate of 4.28% AR 71870428% interest rate [E € 7 &
due in August 2026 PEIZ R
Bank and other borrowings RITREME R Secured/Floating B 15,605,700 22,895,560
interest rates ZENFI
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER Secured/Fixed HHEM/ 4,487,860 4,099,552
interest rates E =
35,907,119 44,157,148
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2023, the following assets of the Group were
pledged to secure certain bank and other borrowings and domestic

TR W& D

RZZE-=F+-_A=+—8 KX&EBEHIU
TEERF  UIEBEREFAEENSE TR

bonds granted to the Group: REMEREIEANES
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETR
Bank deposits RITER = 2,031,012
Property and equipment EYS ST 483,629 498,070
Investment properties wEYE 18,597,900 12,847,267
Properties under development BERAYE 42,754,679 49,683,439
Completed properties held for sale BIEREEERWE 1,743,000 -
63,579,208 65,059,788

Gearing Ratio =L s g:

The net gearing ratio was calculated by dividing the net debt
(including bank and other borrowings, senior notes and domestic
bonds after deduction of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash
and pledged deposits) by total equity. As at 31 December 2023, the
net gearing ratio was approximately 143.8% (31 December 2022:
approximately 79.6%).

Exchange Rate Fluctuation Exposures

The Group's businesses are located in the PRC and substantially all of
the Group’s revenue and operating expenses are denominated in
RMB. The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2023, except for certain
bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
bank and other borrowings and senior notes which were
denominated in foreign currencies, exchange rate changes of RMB
against foreign currencies will not have material adverse effect on the
results of operations of the Group.

No foreign currency hedging arrangement was made as at 31
December 2023. The Group will closely monitor its exposure to
fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates.

FEELERDRFESR (BEBRTEREME
FOBEEBREABSFNBRRAG LRSS
BY - XBRFIHEEREEIFFR) RUEZR
B - R-BE-_=F+=-_A=+—80 %
BELERYABI1438% (ZE-_—_F+=H4
=+—H:79.6%) °

BE =2 % B = B

AEBERFBEETER  AEEAHM WS
MBERXHAAREE - AEB A D
BENBEANARBHE R-2F-_=F
TZA=1+—8 " BRETHRIMNEFERRTT
TR BAREHELREHFABENS
MEE ROMEBERRELERE AR
BEHEMIINENEZTEH TS HAKENE
BEREERBERTNEE -

RZEZ=F+_-A=+—08 K&EBEIE
EHR T INE SR B - REBBEEZ Y
EEER NS B KR B RS o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEBWNR DA

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided financial guarantees to
the banks in respect of the following items:

BT IER

RZBZ=F+_A=+—HB XEEKIA
TRIBERBRITREMEER

2023 2022
—EC-=F B
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTET
Guarantees in respect of mortgage MAEEETWEERN
facilities provided for certain purchasers RIBEFIRHEANER
of the Group's properties 27,163,103 25,482,461

In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ and associates’
own financial guarantees, which are not included in the above, is as
follows:

o AREEESLERARRBERR LAY
M SRR (L ARAA LSO T

2023 2022
—EC=F —E-—
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Guarantees in respect of mortgage AeE RN REER
facilities provided for certain purchasers ETUEBERNZIBER
of the joint ventures’ and associates’ RHAER
properties 3,937,472 4,433,874

As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided guarantees to banks in
connection with loan amount of RMB1,530,500,000 (31 December
2022: RMB3,202,552,000) granted to joint ventures and associates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

COMMITMENTS G
As at 31 December 2023, the contractual commitments of the Group R-ZE-_=F+_-_A=+—H '  A&EEHNE
were as follows: FHEENT
2023 2022
—EC-=F —F-—
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTET
Capital expenditure for properties under ERBIREMERP Y
development and construction of REZEPIREMENERERST
investment properties in Mainland China 17,337,202 18,135,770

In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ and associates’ 4N * AEBEELEE R MBE NG AN

own contractual commitments, which are not included in the above,

is as follows:

B E 2 A FAHE CRIMAA EFrt) 20T

2023 2022
—EC=F —F-—
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETET
Capital expenditure for joint ventures’ and GE RN REERREPERERN
associates’ properties under development BRPMERBRRRE
and construction of investment properties MENE R
in Mainland China 1,367,857 1,458,795
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRR E S

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 6,845 employees
(31 December 2022: 7,719 employees). During the year, the total cost
of employees was approximately RMB943,489,000 (2022:
approximately RMB1,122,529,000). The Company recognises the
importance of gender diversity and recruits employees at all levels based
on merits and regardless of gender. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group had 4,238 male employees and 2,607 female employees and
the male-to-female ratio in the workforce, including the senior
management, was approximately 1:0.62, which is regarded by the
board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company as
satisfactory and in line with the industry which the Group operates its
businesses in. The Group shall further strengthen the gender diversity in
the workforce in the future where appropriate. The Group provides
employees with competitive remuneration and benefits and has
adopted share option schemes to provide incentives and rewards to,
among others, the employees (please refer to the section headed
“Report of the Directors — Share Option Scheme” of this annual report
for further details of the share option schemes). The Group reviews the
employee remuneration plan at least annually to ensure that it
maintains market competitiveness and allows the employees to receive
fair and equal rewards. The remuneration and promotion decision are
also based on considering the employees’ assessment results,
experience, skills and personal characteristics. In addition, the Group
has established China SCE College to provide employees with three
types of training programs, namely business courses, quality skills and
cultural identity. The Group has launched its management trainee
programme since 2011 for positions in selected functional areas in
order to build pipeline for succession.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by band
and the respective number of persons for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out below:

\

& 8 Ko BHEUR

RZE-=F+_A=+—8 KEEHHE
FHe6845%EE(ZE-_-_F+=-_A=+—H:
7,719%) cFA - EEXNABEHARE
943,489,000 T (ZZE - —F : HARK
1,122,529,0007C) ° A2 & 3R &% Bl Bl % 7T
IEHEZY  TREEREMTH MERIBE
EMET - HE2_T-_=F+_A=+—H"
ANEEE4238BBEHEEB I M2,6072LIEE
T BESHAEEAEERNNE IBMA+SH
ZHh#A1:062 ARREE([EE)
(B2 )RBLARBLFAAERBEE
EBMEMNTE - AEEREBEEERBNR
TE—HIBEE TBRAMMERIZ Tt - A&
ErEEREETFE NNHFIEFERE RN
BREASEEEBLEE (EPBE)EES
(EEBRE S NE— P55 B2EAF
WIEEGRE]PERETS] &) - K
CESLVEERTEIFINTER  UHEERH
BEMEHFINZETESALERTEN
HE - MHFMEEANRENEREEET
MR AR - 85 - HEEREBEARSEED -

BESN > NEBRI P BB SR TRHER
BRE - RERENERFE=HEIIER -

B-Z——F AEEREEXEHELR
REWEE R ETTERS -

SRR EREEE N

BHE_Z_=F+_A=+—BIFELXE
EERERENFMEE R LHEBABMT

Number of

Persons

Remuneration Bands N E A
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T 2= 2,000,000 78 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7t 2 2,500,000 78 7T 3
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7¢ = 3,000,000 75 7T 1

Further details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group actively fulfils its social responsibilities of protecting the
environment and plays an exemplary role by undertaking the mission of
promoting social environmental protection activities. As we develop our
business, we prioritise environmental considerations. We
comprehensively strengthen the management of water resources,
energy, waste, and greenhouse gas emissions, while also promoting
green construction, and incorporates environmentally friendly practices
into its daily course of business to enhance energy and resource
efficiency. This helps us work towards achieving carbon peak and
carbon neutrality, contributing to the development of sustainable cities
and communities.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Group published by the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s business is mainly operated by its subsidiaries
incorporated or established in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC and the Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and is a listed company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Therefore, the Group should comply with relevant
laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, British Virgin Islands, the
PRC and Hong Kong. The Group will seek professional legal opinions
from its Legal Department and legal advisors when necessary to
ensure that the Group’s transactions and business are in conformity
with all applicable laws and regulations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

China SCE has always insisted on the characteristic management
concept of “Human-Centric” and put it into the construction of
human resources. China SCE understands that protecting the interests
and development of its employees is not only a business necessity, but
a fundamental goal that must be achieved. In order to fulfill its
corporate responsibility, the Group has developed a unique people-
oriented employment mechanism, created a working environment
that respects equal participation and diversity, the Group attached
great importance to protecting the health and safety of workers,
improving welfare benefits and employee care, and building a
harmonious and integrated professional team.
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RIBBR MRIR

AEBERBEITERERFENMLGEE &
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BTHEBARENMIER
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MARBRF SR SEMR LR F BB
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FOER - AR B @S KE T EBEMERE
R(ERERF)MNBXEIEER  BRAKE
ETOR BRI EBREVERER ©

HEASEHES TP MHER
A E ERIR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRR E S

The Group maintains a solid relationship with its existing and
prospective customers, which plays a vital role in the development and
success of the Group. The Group’s “SCE Club” is established for such
purpose. The Group attaches great importance to customer satisfaction
and has adopted various measures and collected customer feedback
through various channels. The Group conducted a residential customer
satisfaction survey to better understand the feedbacks and expectations
of our customers. In the future, the Group will continue to improve the
quality of its projects and services so as to increase customer satisfaction
and loyalty. As a property project developer, China SCE attaches great
importance to the quality and safety of its projects. The Group
maintains close communication with its suppliers to ensure the quality
of its properties. In addition, the Group also responds properly to
customer complaints, respects intellectual property rights and has the
responsibility to protect customer information and privacy. The Group is
committed to ensuring the quality of its projects, and also attaches
importance to sound customer service management and continuous
attention to customer feedback on its projects. The Group ensures the
quality of its projects and satisfies customers’ needs through different
ways and measures.

The Group also establishes long-term collaboration with international
prominent designers in architecture and landscape and famous
construction contractors, while maximising its efforts to ensure its
adherence to the objective of providing customers with premium
properties. The Group selects qualified construction contractors
through tender process in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations, and conducts thorough due diligence review over such
contractors. Successful tenderers are selected based on a variety of
factors, including costs, construction completion schedule, quality
performance of construction projects, construction planning,
manpower distribution, safety measures and standards, equipment
and facilities and the industrial experience of project managers.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not hold any
other significant investment, or conduct any material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

As at the date of approval of this annual report, the Group did not
have any future plan for material investments or capital assets.
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
ETRYEEN

Properties
Completed Properties Held Percentage of
Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE aRe rEE
EH W NEEY RENE CEANE BEPUE #ENE BERR EfER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(F7K) (F7K) (F7K) (F7K) (F7K)
Bohai Rim Economic Zone
BHEEER
Beijjing CBD SCE Funworld Beijing Commercial 32,443 - - - 32,443 100
LR CBD Bk t A kR oS
Royal Terrace Beijing Commercial 22,640 - - - 22,640 100
] R Bx
Sunshine Mansion Beijing Residential - 6,816 - - 6,816 100
NEZE kR %
Cloudview Terrace/Imperial Beijing Residential and commercial - 831 312,262 - 313,093 100
Terrace
ERE/FRE IR EERE%
Beijing West Chang'an Beijing Commercial 108,963 - - - 108,963 65
SCE Funworld
ERBRZ LA R [EES
The Cloudland Beijing Residential - - 282,790 - 282,790 75
RRER kR %
Polaris Bay Tianjin Residential - 3,401 - - 3,401 95
RRE PNz %
Galaxy Tianjin Residential - - 5014 - 5014 48
rE R iz
Gratifying Bay Tianjin Residential - 12,597 - - 12,597 9
iFy- R fiz
Imperial Palace Tianjin Residential - - 105,727 - 105,727 100
REM PN- =z
Royal Manor Qingdao Residential and commercial - 42,083 - 130,415 172,498 %
ESH 8 FEhEz
Parkview Palace Qingdao Residential - 11,959 - - 11,959 100
ERR 55 %
Uptown Jinan Commercial - 6,955 - - 6,955 100
il Bl [EES
Royal Palace Jinan Residential - 1,622 - - 1,622 95
3 Bl %
Parkview Bay Jinan Residential - 2,419 - 185,366 187,785 84
hRE B iz
Parkview Mount (Zhucheng) ~ Weifang Residential - - 18,549 121,902 140,451 100
EHBE i =
SCE Funworld Weifang Commercial 108,033 - - - 108,033 100
it R i EE
Parkview Mount Weifang Residential - 11,130 120,929 113,548 245,607 97
Gig i iz
Sunshine City Tangshan  Residential and commercial - 20,528 - - 20,528 100
nEmE Bl EEREE
The Royal Bay Dezhou Residential - 16,387 - - 16,387 100
FRE &M %
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

hY SI2 b~
FTEYERENT
Properties
Completed Properties Held Percentage of
Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE arna +58
B W VES b RENx BEANX  BETUX #ENE BERR EfhER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(FHK) (FHK) (FrK) (FAK) (F7K)
Royal Spring City Anshan Residential, commercial and hotel - 6,541 - 1,454,903 1,461,444 70
EESi) Bl e BEREE
Yanjiao Funlive Yanjiao Commercial 26,043 - - - 26,043 55
AR b EEE
Imperial Manor Weihai Residential - - 87,944 113,892 201,836 100
BH B8 iz
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Yantai Residential and commercial - - 66,318 317,134 383,452 100
R Ry, BIE &a FEREE
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Binzhou Residential and commercial - - 170,808 628,623 799,431 100
mE R RE BM FeREZ
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Rizhao Residential and commercial - - 96,893 202,128 299,021 100
il audisove:3 B FEREz
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
R=ALHEE
SCE Plaza Phase 2 Shanghai Commercial 120,059 16,957 - - 137,016 61
hEES B i [EES
Skyline Tower Shanghai Commercial 52,992 8,582 - - 61,574 100
PN L BE
The Paramount Shanghai Commercial - 24,423 - - 24,423 100
AE i GE
The Glamour Shanghai Residential 2,491 - - - 2,491 100
RE L1 fFE
Imperial Manor Shanghai  Residential and commercial 45,483 - 31,238 - 76,721 100
BR bz TEREE
Shanghai Guangfulin Funlive/  Shanghai  Residential and commercial 38,528 - 85,975 - 124,503 100
Imperial Manor
IEEERAIBLE /B8 LB FEREZ
The Royal Bay Shanghai  Residential - 117 - - 1,17 100
RE i %
Future Sci-Tech City Funlive Hangzhou  Commercial - 28,598 - - 28,598 100
ARRBHS B M [EES
Parkview Bay Hangzhou  Residential and commercial 46,380 - - - 46,380 100
b M FehEz
Hangzhou Woven City/ Hangzhou  Residential and commercial 189,097 - 927,230 - 1,116,327 100
Dinghu Funlive
RMARER,/ S8 78 M FEREZ
Suzhou Project (Kunshan) Suzhou Residential and commercial - 81,761 - 629,930 711,74 80
HMER (Bil) M EEhE%
Parkview Mount Suzhou Residential and commercial - - 219,436 - 219,436 47
G B EEREE
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

N o= Sz b~ /\
FEYZEREI
Properties
Completed Properties Held Percentage of
Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE ana +5H
B Hm VES bl RENx BEAMX  BETUX #RNE BEER EihER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)

(F7K) (1K) (1K) (F77K) (F77K)

Zhangjiagang SCE Funworld Suzhou Commercial 87,152 - - - 87,152 100

RRETRUERA M [GES

Imperial Manor Suzhou Residential - 4,59 137,228 - 141,820 90

BHi M iz

Huagiao SCE Funworld/ Suzhou Residential and commercial 265,567 - 158,528 - 424,095 100
Imperial Manor

TERREt R,/ 2 M FERE%

6 Park Square Nanjing Commercial - 102,142 144,110 - 246,252 64

REEE R EE

Parkview Bay Nanjing Residential and commercial - 7425 - - 7425 50

HRE R EERE%

Hai'an SCE Funworld/ Nantong Residential and commercial 105,411 - 265,766 - EVARYY 100
Parkview Mount

BRREH R R [k FEREZ

Rudong SCE Funworld/ Nantong Residential and commercial 107,914 - 197,290 137,483 442,687 100

Imperial Manor

MRREERY/BHES BB TEREE

Haimen SCE Funworld/ Nantong Residential and commercial - - - 331,159 331,159 70
Imperial Manor

felslil a:sis V8= 2l EE S

Parkview Bay Xuzhou Residential and commercial - 524 - - 524 100

HEE #M TEREE

Golden Riviera Xuzhou Residential and commercial - 27,192 - - 27,192 70

E9 &M TEREE

Parkview City Xuzhou Residential - 22,351 249,915 - 272,266 100

EZH &M T=x

Lake Manor Xuzhou Residential and commercial - - 230,755 - 230,755 54

LR #M EEREE

Parkview Mount Taizhou Residential and commercial - - 82,566 - 82,566 98

Bk ZNM TEREE

SCE Funworld/ Taizhou Commercial 144,168 - 25,590 - 169,758 100
Parkview Residence

R/ BAR ZM HE

SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor  Chizhou Residential and commercial 100,923 17,737 225,775 - 344,435 100

skt R, B8 sl TEREE

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Hefei Residential and commercial 145,438 - 375,735 - 521,173 100

Rt R,/ BEE A TEREE

West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone

B EEE

Imperial Manor Fuzhou Residential 17,002 - 27,476 - 44,478 100

BR &M T=x

SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor - Fuzhou Residential and commercial 133,707 5457 83,101 93,484 315,749 9

R R,/ B B TEREE

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Nanchang ~ Residential and commercial 115,137 3,549 48,915 - 167,601 99

R Ry B EE TEREZE
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

hY SI2 b~
FEMERBFN
Properties
Completed Properties Held Percentage of
Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BIFHE ass r£H
EH W nEER RENE CERNE BRTUE RN BEER i ER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(EAX) (EAXK) (XK (EAHAK) (EAHK)
The Royal Bay Nanchang  Residential and commercial - 1,162 - - 1,162 100
ExiE ] TEREE
SCE Building Phase 1 Xiamen Office and commercial 10,098 - - - 10,098 100
FHEEAE-H EF FAEREE
SCE Building Phase 2 Xiamen Office and commercial 36,597 - - - 36,597 100
HEEEAE=S Ef WREREE
The Regent Xiamen Residential - 3,113 - - 3,113 100
N EM T=x
The Skyland Xiamen Residential - - 236,417 - 236,417 70
XE B %
Nan'an SCE Funworld Quanzhou  Commercial 72,618 - - - 72,618 100
BRPE Ry M [5E3
Imperial Manor Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 307 42,713 - 43,020 40
EEH FM TEREZE
Enjoy City Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 1,844 - - 1,844 40
i FM FEREE
The Paramount Quanzhou  Residential, office and commercial 42,723 - - - 42,723 100
S FM FE - WREREE
Quanzhou SCE Funworld Quanzhou  Commercial 145,302 - - - 145,302 58
RMeR B R M A%
Fortune Plaza # Imperial Terrace  Quanzhou  Residential, office and commercial - 539 33,027 - 33,566 100
HEPL e E FM FE BREREE
Parkview Palace Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 332 82,125 - 82,457 70
ERM FM TEREE
Gold Coast Quanzhou  Residential and commercial 28,547 29,570 18,084 30,605 106,806 45
EoARE FM TEREZE
SCE Mall (Shishi) Quanzhou  Office 28,707 309 - - 29,016 60
REET (R ) FM WOE
Parkview Palace Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 1,221 - - 1,221 60
R FM FEREE
Parkview Mount Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 2977 - - 2,977 92
B FM FEREE
SCE Plaza Quanzhou  Office and commercial 31,880 - - - 31,880 100
REES FM WREREE
Cloudview Palace Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 1,859 - - 1,859 0
E5R FM FEREZE
Imperial Terrace Quanzhou  Residential - - 115,030 - 115,030 100
BB FM (=
Shuitou SCE Funworld Quanzhou  Commercial 84,360 - - - 84,360 100
KSR B R M %
Imperial Palace Quanzhou  Residential - 37,140 - - 37,140 70
REF FM f£%
Cloudview Palace Quanzhou  Residential - - 114,261 - 114,261 100
ZE FM %
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

N Sz b~
TEYEBN
Properties
Completed Properties Held Percentage of
Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE aRe rEE
B Hm LES b RENE CEANE BEPUE #ENE BERR EfER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(F7K) (F7K) (F7K) (F7K) (F7K)
Imperial Terrace Quanzhou  Residential - - 217,540 - 217,540 100
ERR M iz
Cloudview Palace Zhangzhou  Residential and commercial - - 166,033 - 166,033 43
ERR EM EERE%
Parkview Palace Zhangzhou  Residential and commercial - 6,531 - - 6,531 90
BRR EM EERE%
Cloudview Terrace Shangrao  Residential and commercial - 11,046 184,838 - 195,884 %
ERE & EEREE
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Shangrao  Residential and commercial 99,783 1,758 161,862 104,838 368,241 100
R Ry BE % EEhE%
SCE Funworld/Parkview Bay Putian Residential and commercial 82,855 7,608 - - 90,463 0
e RS,/ HRE B FEREz
Imperial Manor Longyan Residential - - 108,847 - 108,847 100
MER Ea %
Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macao Greater Bay Area
BERAEE
Royal Terrace Foshan Residential and commercial - 1,733 22,345 - 24,078 %8
ERE B EERE%
Parkview Palace Huizhou Residential and commercial - 22,079 81,760 - 103,839 9%
ERR Y EERkE%
The Royal Bay Huizhou Residential and commercial - 3,956 - - 3,956 58
ERd £yl EERESE
Royal Terrace Huizhou Residential and commercial - 4,410 - - 4410 %5
52 2M EERE%
Cloudview Palace Jieyang Residential - - 158,995 - 158,995 %
EER &5 f%
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Jieyang Residential and commercial 124,530 8,320 140,769 290,774 564,393 %8
R Ry, B & EERE%
The Royal Bay Meizhou Residential - 7,854 36,978 98,237 143,069 100
ikoy 1M %
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Meizhou Residential and commercial 112,969 - 142,357 403,043 658,369 100
hEt R,/ BE M FEREZ
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Shaoguan ~ Residential and commercial 111,221 6,219 45,894 466,208 629,542 100
M R R E 25 )
The Royal Bay Shaoguan  Residential - - 153,142 382,997 536,139 100
FRE il %
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Heyuan Residential and commercial 91,568 10,629 280,567 - 382,764 %8
R Ry BIE R EERE%
Century Palace Shanwei Residential and commercial - 1,125 - 239,848 240,973 92
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

hY SI2 b~
FTEYERENT
Properties
Completed Properties Held Percentage of
Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE aRe s 1]
EH W VES b RENE CEANE BEPUE #ENE BERR EfhER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(F7K) (F7K) (F7K) (F7K) (F7K)
EREH WE EERE%
SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor - Shantou Residential and commercial 146,364 - 455,490 - 601,854 97
R R,/ B WS EEREE
Central Western Region
PEBLE
Cloudview Terrace Chongging  Residential and commercial - 11,295 - - 11,295 9%
ERE 5F EERE%
The Royal Bay Chongging ~ Residential and commercial - 11,103 - - 11,103 74
ERE BE TEREE
Imperial Terrace Chongging ~ Residential and commercial - 12,115 61,107 - 73,222 47
ERE BE FeREz
Liberty Mountain Chongging ~ Residential and commercial - 8,569 - - 8,569 49
BRI BF TEREE
Imperial Manor Chongging ~ Residential - 23,642 71,623 - 95,265 50
2R i %
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Chongging  Residential and commercial 112,478 - 144,317 165,412 422,207 100
Mt R/ RE BF N
Imperial Manor Zhengzhou  Residential - - 15,773 - 15,773 0
BH g %
Cloudview Palace Zhengzhou  Residential - - 85,816 62,616 148,432 9
£33 g fFE
Cloud Valley Kunming Residential and commercial - 29,015 171,103 1,211,758 1,411,876 67
EANME 2 EERE%
Cloudview Terrace Shanggiu Residential and commercial - 70,797 116,014 - 186,811 76
ERE BE EERkE%
SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor ~ Xiangtan Residential and commercial - - 118,735 679,841 798,576 100
R R,/ B e FERESE
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount -~ Zhumadian  Residential and commercial 136,829 - 143,002 485,405 765,236 %8
mEE R RE HEE )
Parkview Mount Xuchang Residential - - 181,377 - 181,377 97
G e %
Imperial Manor Xuchang Residential - - - 208,250 208,250 97
b4)] =] %
SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor  Pingdingshan  Residential and commercial 88,996 8,737 236,951 - 334,684 95
Mt R, FIEL FEREE
Parkview Manor Pingdingshan  Residential - - 427,390 - 427,390 0
{p FIEL %
Parkview Mount Zhaotong Residential - - 122,175 102,370 224,545 100
& HE %
Parkview Mount Lincang Residential and commercial - - 205,415 - 205,415 80
5 BR FERAS
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Tongchuan  Residential and commercial 93,402 - 226,493 484,801 804,696 %8
RE RSB 8l FEREE
Parkview Mount Wenshan Residential and commercial - - 104,108 200,498 304,606 100
i pll EEkiE%
Parkview Bay Chengdu Residential and commercial 44751 - 71,978 - 116,729 100
ERER K EERkE%
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEAEGRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong Chiu Yeung (ZE8i3), aged 58, is one of the founders of the
Group and the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive Director on
30 November 2007, as well as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC, Hong Kong and
the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Wong is responsible for formulating
business development strategies for the Group, commercial property
management and financial investment management. Since his
involvement in the development of the Group’s first project in 1996,
Mr. Wong has been involved in all of the projects developed by the
Group thereafter, and has about 28 years of experience in real estate
development. Mr. Wong is the vice chairman of Hong Kong
Association for the Promotion of Peaceful Reunification of China,
guest professor of Nanchang University, vice chairman of the board of
directors of Quanzhou Normal University, chairman of the board of
directors of Nan’an Huagiao Middle School, permanent honourable
chairman of HK Federation of Fujian Associations. Mr. Wong holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from Xiamen
University. Mr. Wong is the father of Mr. Wong Lun, an executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Wong is the sole director and sole
shareholder of each of Newup Holdings Limited, East Waves
Investments Limited and Keen Century Investments Limited, which
had interests of approximately 39.31%, 5.45% and 5.45%
respectively in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2023 that would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

HITES

BHHEB 8w AREMAIMAZ— BA
PRIEBSCEFRADBTHRER - EhAE
R-ZEE+F+— A=t HEZETAARAT
HITEE TAARAREBZES ([REZE
Be)EREkFHEEe ((FHEZEE)
S RARRETRAE BB REBE LR
ERVHMBARIZESE -HEAEEBERE
REBEBERERE BEHMEETERSR
REEBTF-BmEER NN AFLREE
BRASEEEMEERRZ EF—EH2HEAE
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Chen Yuanlai (BRJt2K), aged 57, is one of the founders of the Group
and the vice chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Chen was
appointed as an executive Director on 12 August 2009 and is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC,
Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Chen is responsible for
formulating business development strategies for the Group. Since his
involvement in the development of the Group’s first project in 1996,
he has been involved in all of the projects developed by the Group
thereafter, and has about 28 years of experience in real estate
development. Mr. Chen also has extensive experience in investment
management and project management through his involvement in all
of the projects developed by the Group. Mr. Chen completed the
Executive Management course in Business Administration of
Commercial Real Estate Development and Funding, a one-year
programme offered by the School of Professional and Continuing
Education of The University of Hong Kong and Fudan University,
Shanghai, in May 2008. Mr. Chen has completed an Executive Master
of Business Administration programme in Xiamen University. Mr.
Chen is the sole director and sole shareholder of Rising Trade Holdings
Limited, which had interests of approximately 5.45% in the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2023 that would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Cheng Hiu Lok (EREE£%) aged 59, is one of the founders of the
Group and the vice chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr.
Cheng was appointed as an executive Director on 12 August 2009
and is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company
established in the PRC, Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands. Mr.
Cheng is responsible for formulating business development strategies
for the Group. Since his involvement in the development of the
Group's first project in 1996, he has been involved in all of the
projects developed by the Group thereafter. Mr. Cheng has about 28
years of experience in real estate development. Mr. Cheng also has
extensive experience in investment management, project
management and construction management through his involvement
in the projects developed by the Group. Mr. Cheng completed his
college education at Fujian Normal University in 1987. Mr. Cheng is
the sole director and sole shareholder of Wealthy Gate Holdings
Limited, which had interests of approximately 5.45% in the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2023 that would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

Huang Youquan (Z1{&#&), aged 55, is an executive Director and an
executive president of the Company. Mr. Huang was appointed as an
executive Director on 1 May 2011 and was appointed as the chairman
of the corporate governance committee (the “Corporate Governance
Committee”) with effect from 1 January 2017. He is also the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC and
Hong Kong. Mr. Huang is responsible for the financial and treasury
management of the Group. Mr. Huang is currently a non-executive
director of SCE Intelligent Commercial Management Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 0606) (“SCE CM”), which is a subsidiary of the Company
and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Before joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Huang
was the audit manager and assistant to the head of the Xiamen office
of Fujian Hongshen Accounting Firm. Mr. Huang graduated from the
Department of Mathematics of Xiamen University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Science in 1991. Mr. Huang is a member of the Fujian
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Huang has completed an
Executive Master of Business Administration programme in Xiamen
University.

Wong Lun (Zf#&), aged 36, is an executive Director and a vice
president of the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 March 2017. He is also
the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC, Hong Kong, the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.
Mr. Wong is responsible for investor relations and commercial
management of the Group. Mr. Wong is currently the chairman of
the board and an executive director of SCE CM, which is a subsidiary
of the Company and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong joined the Group in
September 2010. Mr. Wong graduated from the School of
Engineering of University of Warwick with a Bachelor’s degree of
Science in Engineering and Business Studies in 2010. Mr. Wong holds
an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from China
Europe International Business School. Mr. Wong Lun is the son of Mr.
Wong Chiu Yeung, an executive Director and chairman of the Board
of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ting Leung Huel Stephen (T R#&), aged 70, MH, FCCA, FCPA
(Practising), CTA (HK), ACA, FHKIoD, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2010 and is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Ting is a professional
accountant and has more than 40 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and management. Mr. Ting is a non-executive director of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (0116), a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and an independent non-
executive director of five other companies listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (1666),
Tongda Group Holdings Limited (0698), New Silkroad Culturaltainment
Limited (0472), Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited (0046),
and Dongyue Group Limited (0189). From November 2004 to May
2023, Mr. Ting served as an independent non-executive director of
Texhong International Group Limited (2678), which is listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

Dai Yiyi (Bi7°—), aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2010 and is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Dai is a
full-time professor of the Executive Master of Business Administration
programme and a PhD. supervisor of the School of Management of
Xiamen University and the chairman of the board of the Jin Yuan
Research Institute of Xiamen University. Mr. Dai also serves as an
adjunct professor for real estate CEO programmes hosted by Tsinghua
University and Peking University. Mr. Dai is the vice dean of the School
of Management of Xiamen University between January 2008 and
December 2015. Mr. Dai is an independent non-executive director of
Cosmo Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited (2298) and C&D
International Investment Group Limited (1908), which are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and an independent director of
Xiamen ITG Corp., Ltd. (600755) and Xiamen Bank Co., Ltd. (601187)
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. From March 2021
to April 2023, Mr. Dai served as an independent non-executive
director of Guangdong-Hong Kong Greater Bay Area Holdings Limited
(1396), which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. From July
2016 to July 2022, Mr. Dai was an independent director of Fujian
Septwolves Industry Co., Ltd. (002029) which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. From May 2016 to May 2022, Mr. Dai was
an independent director of Xiamen C&D Inc. (600153), which is listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Dai graduated from Xiamen
University with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1989, and
received a Doctoral degree in Economics from Xiamen University in
1999. Mr. Dai was awarded a certificate as a PRC Certified Property
Valuer in 1997.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mao Zhenhua (E#x %), aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 30 May 2023 and is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Mao is currently the
chairman of China Chengxin Credit Management Co., Ltd. (“China
Chengxin”), a professor at the Renmin University of China, the
chairman of the Institute of Economic Research of the Renmin
University of China, a professor of Wuhan University and Dean of
Dong Fureng Economic & Social Development School of Wuhan
University. He has been a professor at the Business School of the
University of Hong Kong since 2022. Mr. Mao founded China
Chengxin in 1992. Since then, he has acted as its general manager
and chairman, and later on he has further acted as its chief executive
officer. He was the major shareholder and controller of China Cheng
Xin International Credit Rating Co., Ltd. Mr. Mao is a non-executive
director of Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
(2327), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and an
independent non-executive director of two other companies listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, namely China Infrastructure &
Logistics Group Ltd. (1719) and China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd. (9668).
Mr. Mao graduated from Wuhan University with a doctoral degree in
Economics.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Wang Meng (E &), aged 37, is an executive president of the
Company. He is responsible for marketing management and
management of land acquisition of the Group. Before joining the
Group in March 2015, Mr. Wang was the marketing director of
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. Mr. Wang graduated from North China
University of Technology with a Bachelor’s degree in Arts in 2009. Mr.
Wang holds an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from Peking University.

Tang Xiaojuan (3Bf&%8), aged 51, is a vice president of the
Company. She is responsible for managing daily operation of the
office of president, information technology management and internal
audit and compliance management of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group in August 2002, Ms. Tang served as the office manager of
Xiamen Yong Hong Ji Real Estate Development Company Limited. Ms.
Tang graduated from the Department of International Trade and
Economics in Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1994. Ms. Tang has completed an
Executive Master of Business Administration programme in Xiamen
University.

Peng Fei (&%), aged 41, is an assistant president of the Company
and is responsible for the management of the Southeast Region of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group in October 2007, Mr. Peng
served as a marketing manager of Xiamen Strategic Property Agency
Limited. Mr. Peng graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology in
Business Administration in 2016. Mr. Peng has completed an
Executive Master of Business Administration programme in Xiamen
University.

Wang Yue (E ), aged 48, was appointed as an assistant president
of the Company on 1 July 2020. He is responsible for cost
management, purchasing management and construction
management of the Group. Before joining the Group in May 2002,
Mr. Wang was a project manager in China Construction Second
Engineering Bureau Ltd. Mr. Wang graduated from the Department
of Civil Engineering of Tongji University with a Bachelor's degree in
Engineering in 2007. Mr. Wang has completed an Executive Master of
Business Administration programme in Xiamen University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Li Siu Po (Z4), aged 55, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Company. He is responsible for the financial
reporting, equity and debt financing and company secretarial work of
the Group. Before joining the Group in January 2008, Mr. Li was a
manager of one of the international CPA firms. Mr. Li graduated from
the Department of Accounting in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy in 1994. Mr. Liis a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Li has extensive experience in financial management and auditing.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Li Siu Po (Z4), a member of senior management of the Group, is
the financial controller and company secretary of the Company. The
biography of Mr. Li is set forth above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has been committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance so as to enhance the operational efficiency of
the Company. The Company believes that such commitment is
beneficial to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company and the
Board had been in compliance with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code effective during the year (the “CG
Code”) contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1 (formerly known as
Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules, save as disclosed in the paragraphs
headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
C3 (formerly known as Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for securities transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all
the Directors have confirmed that they have strictly complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year under
review.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The members of the Board of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Yuanlai

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok

Mr. Huang Youquan

Mr. Wong Lun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Ting Leung Huel Stephen

Lu Hong Te (resigned on 30 May 2023)

Dai Yiyi

Mao Zhenhua (appointed on 30 May 2023)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Biography of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. Mr. Wong Chiu
Yeung is the father of Mr. Wong Lun, both of whom are executive
Directors. Save as disclosed above, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships between Board
members.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, one of the independent non-executive
Directors, has considerable experience in accounting and financial
management, which is in line with the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules which states that “at least one of the independent
non-executive directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise”.

In accordance with the provision C.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in respect
of any possible legal action against them.

In accordance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee shall have a policy concerning diversity of Board members.
In formulating its nomination policy, the Company has created
measurable targets in the following areas, including expertise,
experience, knowledge, professional skills, education background,
independence, age, etc. In doing so, the Company can ensure its
Directors reach the eligible level in terms of their expertise, industrial
experience, education background, independence, age and other
factors, which enable them to make corresponding contributions to
the Board whenever necessary and practicable. The Company and the
Nomination Committee periodically review the nomination policy and
are open to adopt further measurable objectives in the future based
on the business needs of the Company and to keep pace with the
prevailing regulatory requirements and good corporate governance
practice. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Nomination
Committee” of this corporate governance report regarding details of
the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) adopted by
the Board and progress on achieving the measurable objectives to
implement the Board Diversity Policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, for each financial
year, the company secretary of an issuer must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. During the year, the Company
confirmed that the company secretary of the Company, Mr. Li Siu Po,
had participated in proper training programmes for not less than 15
hours to ensure his expertise is in line with all the requirements as
applicable to him.

In accordance with the provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, all the
Directors have complied with the requirement of the CG Code
through attending trainings and/or reading materials relevant to the
Company'’s business or to director’s duties and responsibilities.

Name of Directors
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Trainings on Corporate
Governance, Regulatory
Development and
Other Relevant Topics
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Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TRELA v
Mr. Lu Hong Te =R A

(resigned on 30 May 2023) (R=ZZBE_=FAAB=1+HEHT) v
Mr. Dai Yiyi B —%4 v
Mr. Mao Zhenhua EIREL A

(appointed on 30 May 2023) (W-_Z-_=FFA=+HEZT) v

The Board’s Responsibilities

The Board is responsible to all shareholders for supervising and
overseeing all major matters of the Company, including the
formulation and approval of overall management and operation
strategies, reviewing the internal control and risk management
systems, reviewing financial performance, considering dividend policy
and monitoring the performance of the senior management, so as to
achieve high efficiency in relevant business of the Company. The
senior management is responsible for the daily management and
specific operation of the Group.

EZENER

EFQYURUBRRAR 2HEEREEN
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TEERRE

Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Pursuant to the provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the board of issuers
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has held five Board meetings, and passed nine written resolutions. It is
considered that the Directors were well acknowledged to the
operation of the Group for the year under review. The attendance of
each Director for the Board meetings and general meeting of the
Company is contained in the following table:

ESHFESRTE

BEBETAECSUERTE  BITANESSRE
THHE EFeeRREFEAFAZIMR -
HE-T-_=F+-A=1+—RHLEFE &
ﬁAmﬁ£m§$A WHRAERRA R
BRER -KMEGSNESHAEERT
BEFAMELERANNE - SEEZEF
LEANFESESRLBREASBERER
EE

Number of Number of
Attendances/ Attendance/
Number of Written  Total Number of
Board Meetings Resolutions General Meetings
/8 HERE,
EEZ228AH EERBE RERSEE
Executive Directors: HITESE:
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung wmEG LA 5/5 9/9 0/2
Mr. Chen Yuanlai BRITR e 4 4/4° 9/9 0/2
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok SRz 44 5 A 4/4 9/9 0/2
Mr. Huang Youquan | A 3/4 9/9 2/2
Mr. Wong Lun =wEE 3/4 9/9 2/2
Independent non-executive B HITEE :
Directors:
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen T R85t 4 5/5 9/9 2/2
Mr. Lu Hong Te 51%?§§E$
(resigned on (R=—ZB—_=F
30 May 2023) AA=THE(E) 11 3/3 0/2
Mr. Dai Yiyi I — LA 5/5 9/9 0/2
Mr. Mao Zhenhua ERELEE
(appointed on (R=—ZZE—=%F
30 May 2023) AA=+HEZME) 4/4 6/6 0/0

! Except for chairman of the Company, Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung, all executive
Directors were exempted from attending the Board meeting held on 29
August 2023 in which the composition, duties and responsibilities of the
executive Directors were discussed.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year under review, Mr.
Wong Chiu Yeung performed his duties as both the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company. The Board believes that the
same individual serving as chairman and chief executive officer is
beneficial to the consistency and efficiency in execution of business
plans and decision-making of the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION DEED

The Company entered into a non-competition deed (the “Non-
competition Deed”) with Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung on 6 January 2010
pursuant to which Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung has undertaken to the
Company not to compete with any business of the Group and shall
use his best endeavors to procure his affiliates not to engage in, assist
or support a third party in the operation of, or participate or be
interested in any property development business in the PRC.
Furthermore, Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung has undertaken to the Company
(for itself and for the benefit of the Group) that during the term of
the Non-competition Deed to procure any investment or commercial
opportunity relating to property development business in the PRC that
he or any of his affiliates identifies or proposes or that is offered or
presented to them by a third party to first refer such opportunity to
the Company in accordance with terms of the Non-competition Deed.

The Company has received a confirmation from Mr. Wong Chiu
Yeung for his compliance with the terms of the Non-competition
Deed during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this report. All the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the matters relating to enforcement of the Non-competition Deed and
consider that the terms of the Non-competition Deed have been
complied with by Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have been instrumental in
ensuring independent views and input are available to the Board. The
Board has received the written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, confirming that he has met the
independence requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent under these independence requirements.

The independent non-executive Directors play an important role in
applying their independent analysis and professional judgments to
provide a professional and fair view to the decisions of the Board. This
is not only beneficial to the warranty of the scientific element of the
decision, but also enhancing the protection of interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors’ Service Contracts” in
the "Report of the Directors” of this annual report for the term of
appointment of independent non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
its Remuneration Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules, the remuneration committee of issuers must appoint
an independent non-executive director as the chairman, and the
majority of the members shall be independent non-executive directors.
With effect from 1 April 2012, the Remuneration Committee,
comprising of Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (an executive Director) and Mr.
Ting Leung Huel Stephen (an independent non-executive Director), is
chaired by Mr. Dai Yiyi (an independent non-executive Director).

The prime duties of the Remuneration Committee are:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

o to assess performance of executive Directors and approve the
terms of the service contracts of the executive Directors;
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. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors; and

o to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting, and passed one written resolution to discuss the 2022
management bonus and 2023 salary under the service contracts for
executive Directors, and adoption of the 2023 share option scheme and
termination of the 2018 share option scheme. Details of the attendance
by members of the Remuneration Committee are set out as below:

/\\ '/\-h-\\ =+
1F E/ﬁ#&%

. MEFERAERNSEERSREE
AB HF S

o HIFMITERMFHMMESSRELESE:
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e WBELMRAE17EFTEN Sht/gH
Bt E A ER -

EEFAN - FWNEEEERT —RgaEk—
RAEEFANBBARSR  STwATEE=
T _FEERELd T -=FRBARH
BN BRERA —F — = F MRS MR
ZE-N\FEREEIEIE - FKE R
ZEEeZNEMNEFEBRAT

Number of
Attendance/ Total Written
Number of Meeting Resolution
HERE ERAY EERER
Mr. Dai Yiyi B — 4 11 1/
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =G LA 11 11
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREEA 11 1/

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
the Nomination Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.27A of
the Listing Rules, the majority of the nomination committee of issuers
must be independent non-executive directors, and the chairman of the
board or an independent non-executive director must be appointed as
the chairman of this committee. With effect from 30 May 2023, the
Nomination Committee, comprising independent non-executive
Directors Mr. Dai Yiyi and Mr. Mao Zhenhua, is chaired by Mr. Wong
Chiu Yeung, chairman of the Board and an executive Director.

The prime duties of the Nomination Committee are:

. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

REZEER
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BREARE

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board based on, amongst others, the Board Diversity Policy
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors,
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
chief executive officer and the policy concerning the diversity of
Board members.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss the composition of the Board and the terms of
reference, the diversity policies for the Board, and other issues. Details
of the attendance by members of the Nomination Committee are set

s YEABEAEERIETEFNAL:
WEREFSZ T EBERREME RN
BRABBAATHEESIHRUERNES

=418 =
SRHEE

o  FHEBMIFRTERNBEUM K

s HNEFZAEXEHZEALREZ=(LH
RERFRITRAER) BEFEIARES
EREZTEBRRNEREENESS
g et

CEFEA REZEEEAMR T —REF N
mEFEGHMEN  BERE - 2T LBURK
HiER EXRENRERZESSZNER
HEERIT

out as below:
Number of
Attendance/Total
Number of Meeting
HERE EBREH
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung P S 1/1
Mr. Lu Hong Te =R EE A
(resigned on 30 May 2023) (R—Z—_=FAA=1+HE&T) 1/1
Mr. Dai Yiyi BN — 4 1/1
Mr. Mao Zhenhua ERERSE
(appointed on 30 May 2023) (R=ZZE==FFA=+HEZF) 0/0

The Company and the Nomination Committee periodically review the
nomination policy and monitor the progress on achieving the
following measurable objectives (the “Measurable Objectives”) which
have been set for implementing diversity on the composition of Board.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, under the Board Diversity
Policy, the Board has adopted and the Company has fully achieved
the following Measurable Objectives:

(@) To ensure at least two members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualification;
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To ensure at least 35% of the members of the Board have more
than 10 years of experience in real estate development;

To ensure the appropriate proportion of the independent non-
executive Directors to the executive Directors in order to
maintain the independence of the Board. In particular, at least
35% of the members of the Board shall be independent non-
executive Directors;

To ensure at least 60% of the members of the Board shall have
attained Bachelor’s degree or higher level of education; and

To ensure the age distribution of the members of the Board is
such that the Board comprised people from at least three
decades.

The Company recognises the importance of gender diversity and

recruits employees at all levels based on merits and regardless of

gender in order to ensure there is a pipeline of male and female

potential successors to the Board and the senior management. The

Company will ensure at least one female Director will be appointed by
31 December 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
the Audit Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the audit committee of issuers must comprise all non-
executive directors. With effect from 30 May 2023, the Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,

with Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen as the chairman, Mr. Dai Yiyi and

Mr. Mao Zhenhua as members.

The prime duties of the Audit Committee are:

responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and other terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;
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o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, interim report and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and

o oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and review the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held three
meetings to review the 2022 annual report and the 2023 interim
report and change of auditor of the Company. Details of the
attendance by members of the Audit Committee are set out as below:

o RERMBRERE RERIEZBEZ
BREUMEBUMGBEFEEE

o EEQANMBBREARFEREM
FRE  hHImENTEE  YEMERE
KR ERBEAMEREHE - &

EEFA BERZEEERTZREE 9
ARG —_E__FFERE  —T ==
FHHREREEZHAETEN - SKE
REZZESSZNERNEFEBREAT

Number of

Attendances/Total

Number of Meetings

HERE, EREY

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen T RMEEA 3/3
Mr. Lu Hong Te =R EE A

(resigned on 30 May 2023) (R—Z—_=FAA=1+HE&T) 1/1

Mr. Dai Yiyi BN — 4 3/3
Mr. Mao Zhenhua ERERSE

(appointed on 30 May 2023) (R=ZZE==FFA=+HEZF) 2/2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company
established the Corporate Governance Committee on 1 April 2012 to
better implement and review the policies and practices on corporate
governance. With effect from 30 May 2023, Mr. Huang Youquan, an
executive Director, was appointed as chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen and Mr.
Mao Zhenhua, both independent non-executive Directors, were
appointed as members of the Corporate Governance Committee.
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The prime duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and to make recommendations to the
Board;

to review and approve the annual corporate governance report
and related disclosures in the annual and interim reports of the
Company and monitor and ensure compliance with relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules or the rules of any other
stock exchange in respect of which the securities of the
Company are listed or quoted, or other laws, regulations, rules
and codes as may be applicable to the Company;

to make sure that appropriate monitoring systems are in place
to ensure compliance against the relevant internal controls
systems, processes and policies, and in particular to monitor the
implementation of the Company’s plans to maintain high
compliance with its own risk management standards;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code from
time to time adopted by the Company and the disclosure in the
corporate governance report to be contained in the Company’s
annual reports.

During the year under review, the Corporate Governance Committee
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met once to discuss the adoption of the CG Code. Details of the s A R RRMALEEATRIMNER - &5
attendance by members of the Corporate Governance Committee are EBRMEEAZTE S ZMNER HFE B RN
set out as below: I
Number of
Attendance/Total
Number of Meeting
HERE EBEH
Mr. Huang Youquan =W A 11
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TRELEA 1/1
Mr. Lu Hong Te =R A
(resigned on 30 May 2023) (R=—Z=_=FAA=1+HHMT) 11
Mr. Mao Zhenhua ERERA
(appointed on 30 May 2023) (R-_Z-_=FFA=+HEZT) 0/0
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the fees paid to the
auditor of the Company, Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
("Prism”), in respect of the audit services provided to the Company
amounted to approximately RMB7.25 million. No non-audit service
was provided by Prism during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the fees paid to Ernst &
Young, who resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from
29 December 2023, in respect of the non-audit services provided to
the Company amounted to approximately RMB1.95 million. Non-
audit services mainly consisted of advisory and other services. No audit
service was provided by Ernst & Young during the year.

The Audit Committee is responsible to recommend to the Board on
matters related to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the auditor. The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment
of Prism as the external auditor of the Group for the year ending 31
December 2024, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, and
confirm that the financial statements give a true view of the financial
position and results of the Group as at the date and for the year of
the date ended, and are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company, Prism, about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 91 to 100 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is fully responsible for maintaining proper and effective
internal controls and for regularly reviewing the operational efficiency
of the financial, operational, compliance, risk controls, human
resources and other aspects of the system in order to safeguard the
independence of the respective duties and powers of the Group
which in turn can protect the investment of shareholders and the
assets of the Company.

The Internal Audit and Compliance Department of the Company,
being the Company'’s internal audit function, is responsible for regular
review and audit of the finance and operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the purpose of ensuring the internal controls are in
place and functioning properly as intended. For weaknesses of
internal controls and accounting procedures of the Group which the
external auditor have identified and reported to the Company, the
Company would pay full attention to the recommendations made by
the external auditor and make appropriate improvements.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
their effectiveness and concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group were adequate and effective
during the year.

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. In practice,
employees of the Group who become aware of any events and/or
matters which he/she considers potentially inside information, will
report to the designated personnel of the Company who, if
considered appropriate, will pass such information to the Board for
the purpose of considering and deciding whether or not such
information constitutes inside information and disclosure of which
shall be made immediately.

The aforementioned risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2023.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
COMMUNICATION POLICY

Establishing a good relationship with investors plays a vital role in
enhancing the operational efficiency of the Company and in
protecting interests of the shareholders. The Company insists a
transparent, honest and timely disclosure of related information on
the business development of the Company through various channels
to ensure that the shareholders and investors have an adequate
understanding of the operations of the Company.

The Company’s website at www.sce-re.com provides information
such as e-mail address, correspondence address, telephone numbers,
etc. for making inquiries to the Company in order to maintain
effective communication with its shareholders and investors. In
addition, interim and annual reports, circulars and notices of the
Company will be issued to shareholders in compliance with the Listing
Rules and the same will also be published on the website of the
Company and that of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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During the year, the Company has received numerous visits from
investors and arranged investors and analysts to visit the Group's
property sites at various locations. The Company has also presented
to them the development strategies and business operation status of
the Company. The Company also participated in various investor
conferences and non-deal roadshows to enhance the industry
awareness of the Company. The management believes actively
seeking face-to-face communication with shareholders and investors
is the best way to enhance their confidence in the Company.
Particulars of the investors” meetings during the year are set out in the
following table:

/\\'/\-h-\\ =+
1F Ebﬁ#&%f
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Date Description Place

B RE b B

6 April 2023 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
—E-=FMMAXH XA mE

11 April 2023 Non Deal Roadshow Virtual
—E_=FWA+—H R HIRE mE

6 June 2023 CGS-CIMB HK/China Property & Property Hong Kong

Management Conference

—EZ=F,AXH RTMERFPEEHERMERRRES i

28 June 2023 Citi’s Asia Pacific Property Conference 2023 Hong Kong
—T=FXNAZTNH EHEEE2023FTAMEFEMEREES BB

3 July 2023 UBS APAC Property Conference 2023 Hong Kong
—E_=FtH=H I iR 2023 55 KM EE 1B BB

The Company’s annual general meeting of shareholders is a good
opportunity for communication between the Board and shareholders
of the Company. Notice of annual general meeting and related
documents will be sent to the shareholders pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, and will be published on the
website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and that of the Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the shareholders’
communications policy and is satisfied that it is effective for the Board
to understand the views and opinion of the shareholders through the
available channels.
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SHAREHOLDERS" RIGHTS

1. Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

1.1

The following procedures for shareholders (the

“Shareholders”, each a “Shareholder”) of the Company

to convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM")

of the Company are prepared in accordance with Article

58 of the articles of association of the Company:

)

One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition (the “Requisition”), to require an
EGM to be called by the Directors for the transaction
of any business specified therein.

Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company via
email at the email address of the Company at
ir@sce-re.com.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such Requisition.

If the Board fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of such
Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1 Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

2.2 Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect
of the Company via email at the email address of the
Company at ir@sce-re.com.

2.3 Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for the
prompt response from the Company if it deems
appropriate.

Procedures and contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

3.1 To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of
his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its
detailed contact information via email at the email address
of the Company at ir@sce-re.com.

3.2 The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will
be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar
and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar that
the request is made by a Shareholder and such request is
proper and in order, the Board will determine in its sole
discretion whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the notice
of meeting.
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3.3 The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting;

(2) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in
an EGM;

(3) Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an EGM other than by way of a
special resolution of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in property development, commercial
management, property management and long-term rental apartments
business in the PRC during the year. Details of the principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the subsections headed “Market Review"”, “Business
Review”, “Financial Review” ,”Environmental Policies and
Performance”, “Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations”
and “Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers” in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement — Outlook” of this annual
report , which form part of the contents of the business review of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 as contained in this
Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 101 to 266.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of factors
including our earnings and financial condition, operating
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions that our
Directors may deem relevant and will be subject to the approval of
our shareholders. There is no assurance that dividends of any amount
will be declared or distributed in any given year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities, perpetual
capital instruments and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated as appropriate, is set out on pages 267 to 268.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 14 and
15 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of the properties under development of the Group during the
year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Details of the completed properties held for sale of the Group during
the year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Between 9 March 2023 and 29 March 2023, the Company had made
partial repurchases in a total principal amount of US$206,500,000 of
the senior notes due on 19 April 2023 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$500,000,000 and a coupon rate of 7.25% (the
“Repurchased Notes"”), representing 41.3% of the aggregate principal
amount of the senior notes due on 19 April 2023 originally issued.
The Repurchased Notes have been cancelled in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the senior notes due on 19 April 2023.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB1,919,540,000.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately RMB2,090,000.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, combined sales to the Group'’s
five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total revenue for the year. Combined purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Chen Yuanlai
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok
Mr. Huang Youquan
Mr. Wong Lun

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Lu Hong Te (resigned on 30 May 2023)
Mr. Dai Yiyi
Mr. Mao Zhenhua (appointed on 30 May 2023)

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
at each annual general meeting, one third of the directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third) will retire from office
by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. The
directors to retire in every year will be those who have been longest in
office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who became or were last re-elected directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. There are no provisions relating to
retirement of directors upon reaching any age limit.
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Accordingly, Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung, Mr. Huang Youquan and Mr.
Ting Leung Huel Stephen will retire as Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from all the three
independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this report
still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 39 to 46 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung, Mr. Chen Yuanlai and Mr. Cheng Hiu
Lok, being executive Directors, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 5
February 2010. Mr. Huang Youquan, being an executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term from 1
May 2011 to 4 February 2013. Mr. Wong Lun, being an executive
Director, has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term from 1 March 2017 to 29 February 2020. Each of their service
contracts is renewable automatically upon the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, subject to termination by either party
giving not less than three months’ written notice.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr. Ting
Leung Huel Stephen, Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Yiyi, being
independent non-executive Directors for an initial term of three years
commencing from 6 January 2010. Upon expiry of the initial term, the
Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr. Ting
Leung Huel Stephen, Mr. Lu Hong Te and Mr. Dai Yiyi, for their
appointment as independent non-executive Directors for a term of
three years commencing from 6 January 2013 to 5 January 2016,
which is renewable automatically thereafter for successive term of one
year each commencing on the day after the expiry of the then current
term of appointment, subject to termination by either party giving not
less than two months’ written notice and the retirement by rotation
requirement in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company and the Listing Rules. Mr. Lu Hong Te has resigned as the
non-executive Director on 30 May 2023.
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The Company has issued a letter of appointment to Mr. Mao Zhenhua
for his appointment as independent non-executive Directors for a
term of three years commencing from 30 May 2023 to 29 May 2026,
which is renewable automatically thereafter for successive term of one
year each commencing on the day after the expiry of the then current
term of appointment, subject to termination by either party giving not
less than two months’ written notice and the retirement by rotation
requirement in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND DIRECTORS?
REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee oversees the overall remuneration
policy and structure of the Group. The Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration and benefits. The remuneration policy
is reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and
contribution of the employees and the industry remuneration level.

The authority of the Board of Directors to determine directors’ fees
are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings. The
emoluments payable to the Directors are determined by the
Company's Board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the transactions set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements and the transaction specified in the paragraph
headed “Connected Transaction” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this section, no Director nor a connected entity of a
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, the holding company of the
Company, or any of the Company'’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report, there was or is permitted indemnity provision (within the
meaning in Section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company being in
force.

The Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES, AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares (the “Shares”) of the Company:

EETHE

JEERTHR(E IR

RIBARRNEBSIEMA - BEFNRERK
X (ERRBBARRGIF 469 fF) ERE—
T =F+ A=t HUIEFEARBERR
SR RAN

RAFERN  ARAFEREEZTRSREEA
BRI EEHRERCFARMEIE EZEFDREE
EENSREBAERER -

ESRERITBABRKEMD - 18
BNy M EREE R R E

RIE-=F+-A=+—H BFHTETT
BABRARAIKEREZE (ERREHFR
HEIRGIZE XV Bn ([FHEREEE])) &
fRin - ABERND REEES  BEABRBESR
HAB M 352 iRARARIZATFTEFEMNELME
LSRR IR ST RIZEB A AR B R B BB
MRS AR IT -

RARREER (Thin]) HiFR

Interest in Shares

R ER

Percentage

Total of the

Interest of Number of Company's

Beneficial Controlled Shares Held Issued Share

Name of Director EEnE Owner Corporation o Interested Capital

FESREE  EAQFAERT

BREEA SEIEEER ZRBEBE RAWED

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (“Mr. Wong") &85 554 ([ Z %4 ]) - 2,120,500,000  2,120,500,000 50.21%
(Note 1) (Fi#zE1)

Mr. Chen Yuanlai (“Mr. Chen”) BT ARt A (TR 58 £ ) 20,000,000 230,230,000 250,230,000 5.93%
(Note 2) (FI552)

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok (“Mr. Cheng”) — EPE4e5t A ([H 54 ]) = 230,230,000 230,230,000 5.45%
(Note 3) (Fi5£3)
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

These 2,120,500,000 Shares comprised 1,660,040,000 Shares registered in
the name of Newup Holdings Limited (“Newup”), 230,230,000 Shares
registered in the name of East Waves Investments Limited (“East Waves")
and 230,230,000 Shares registered in the name of Keen Century
Investments Limited (“Keen Century”). Mr. Wong held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of each of Newup, East Waves and Keen Century and
was deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 2,120,500,000 Shares
held by Newup, East Waves and Keen Century pursuant to the SFO.

These 230,230,000 Shares were registered in the name of Rising Trade
Holdings Limited (“Rising Trade”). Mr. Chen held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Rising Trade and was deemed to be interested in the
230,230,000 Shares held by Rising Trade pursuant to the SFO.

These 230,230,000 Shares were registered in the name of Wealthy Gate
Holdings Limited (“Wealthy Gate”). Mr. Cheng held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Wealthy Gate and was deemed to be interested in
the 230,230,000 Shares held by Wealthy Gate pursuant to the SFO.

Long positions in share options of the Company:

foaE -

faE2 :

BiGE 3 :

Number of Share
Options Directly

# 2,120,500,000 A& B 15 B 1E A ST R IR B R
AR ([$5F]) B&ELH 1,660,040,000 %
D URBREARAR ([RE]) 25%E
F0HY 230,230,000 AR A% D R AR IR E BR A
7 ([t ]) Z&mZFEH 230,230,000 AR o
HEAREHR  RERERUEOEZIE TR
A AL IREBRES R AEEOIE R A#ES S B
R REREMHIFAENMAE 2,120,500,000
B&A& 5 °

5% 230,230,000 AR A% 17 LA B B 1 iR B R A A
(TBE]) BEEL BREARAEENE2IE
BATHRAN - B IRIE B 5 RS G OIMAE A
BEZ#AER 230,230,000 Bk o

# 230,230,000 P& % {5 A = E =R A R A 7
([BE]) BEEL - BEAERAEENZIE
BT - B IRIEE S RS IEOIMAE A
AEEEER 230,230,000 Bk -

BIERERNT R

Percentage
of the Company'’s

Name of Director EEnE Beneficially Owned Issued Share Capital
HEESER EARARE BT
ZBRERE RAWE DL
Mr. Huang Youquan =R A 16,000,000 0.38%
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Long positions in ordinary shares of SCE CM:

Interest in shares

EETHE

B4 RS
Percentage of
Interest of Total Number SCE CM’s
Controlled of Shares Held Issued Share
Name of Director Beneficial Owner Corporation or Interested Capital
P EEE
s R 2 ERITRAN
EEHE ERnEEA SR EEER BRGOEE Bok
Mr. Wong - 1,248,490,946 1,248,490,946 64.52%
mITHE (Note) (P %)
Note: FfE

These 1,248,490,946 shares were registered in the name of Happy Scene Global
Limited (“Happy Scene”), which was wholly-owned by Affluent Way International
Limited, which was in turn wholly-owned by the Company. As at the date of this
report, the Company was owned as to 50.21% by Mr. Wong through companies
wholly-owned by him. Mr. Wong was therefore deemed to be interested in the
shares in SCE CM held by Happy Scene pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any of the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, nor were there any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

%% 1,248,490,946 RN E LN LS IRIKBR A A
(T#%]) 2T ' ZARBENRRNREBEBEERARE
BEWA  c RAREHH  ARRHELERBESER
AR RATEBERND 50.21% - FHiREES RS K
BIER B S AR EEER DR o

B EXPRIREESN  RZE=F+-A=+—
B ARAMEZELTZTRAEETTRAN
NESEBBEE AR - B REEE
PR RERE S R BRI 352 (RARF]
ATHFENECMECIREEESTRIZBEM
ARBREBEEBI IR SORE

SE=BERM SERENER

FABEREMNESHERBIARNEFLE
HiEBRE AR RS AT EAMEA BB X
AR MERNNER - HENRETETAE
FAER : ARE - AR AR SERMEAT
ok [F] 2 Mt 8 1 ) IR 4 AT SR E S MEATE
R RS A RN IR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
2018 Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 April 2018 (the
“2018 Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The participants of the 2018 Scheme include any directors
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) and employees of any member
of the Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
customers, suppliers, agents, business partners, joint venture business
partners, service providers of any member of the Group.

The 2018 Scheme became effective on 23 April 2018 and shall have a
life of 10 years until 22 April 2028. Pursuant to the resolution passed
by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 30 May 2023, the 2018 Scheme had been
terminated upon adoption of the new share option scheme (the
“2023 Scheme”). In accordance with the provisions of the 2018
Scheme, upon termination of the 2018 Scheme, no further options
shall be offered but in all other respects the provisions of the 2018
Scheme shall remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any share options (to the extent not already exercised)
granted prior to the termination, and such share options shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the 2018
Scheme.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2018 Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at 23 April 2018, being the
adoption date of the 2018 Scheme, i.e. 382,384,000 shares
(representing approximately 9.05% of the total number of issued
shares as at the date of approval of this annual report), unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval from shareholders to refresh the
10% limit, provided, inter alia, that the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2018 Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the number
of shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options granted to each eligible participant in
the 2018 Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue for the time being. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval at a general meeting. Share options granted to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within five
business days from the date of delivery of the offer letter, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, which period may commence from the date of the offer
of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of the grant of the share options. Unless the
Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer of the grant of
options to a grantee, a grantee is not required to achieve any
performance targets before any share options granted under the
2018 Scheme can be vested in, or exercised by, the grantee and
accordingly there is no applicable vesting period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as quoted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Further details of the 2018 Scheme as to the value of the share
options granted are disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements. The values of share options calculated using the binomial
model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to the
subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of
assumptions of the expected future performance input to the model,
and certain inherent limitations of the model itself. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Any change to the variables used may materially affect the estimation
of the fair value of an option.

At the time of grant of the share options, the Company may specify
any minimum period(s) for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

EETHE

BB R AR B A K5 % A B
5EZEXBARARAINAER 1 ETHRE
ARERER - REBERENTEHRESE
T BRTEBAREREROBHRRES
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During 2018, the Company granted 382,000,000 share options under
the 2018 Scheme to the Group’s employees (including Directors).

During the year, details of movements in the share options under the

—T—N\F ARERE T N\FHERH
382,000,000 fxIERSE T ASLEE T (BEES) -
RAFEERN - BIE_F— \FAE MR HEBERK

2018 Scheme were as follows: RSB IT ¢
Weighted Average
Outstanding Closing Price
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed at Exercise Immediately
Category and at 1 January during during during during 31 December Price before the Date(s)
Name of Grantee 223 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2023 per Share  Date of Grant Exercise Period of Exercise
R=8=z% R=g=z% RERBRE
-A-B tZB=1-A TR BHANIE
RRARHIRAA HRTE ERRL ERfl EREH QKN WA BRORE RLAH 5 HahmE
Directors
g%
Mr. Huang Youguan 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July 20200 -
11 December 2028
Bl 18T ZF-)\F “BRETA-AZ
+t-F1-A “BoN\ETZRT-R
Sub-total 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000
M
Employees of 135,000,000 - - - - 135,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July2019to -
the Group 11 December 2028
AEEET 2837 ZE-N\F “3-NFtA-BE
+-At=R B NETZAT-R
135,000,000 - - = = 135,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July 20200 -
11 December 2028
8T ZF-N\E ZBRETA-AZ
+-B1-A “BoN\ETZRT-R
Sub-total 270,000,000 - - - - 270,000,000
5
Total 286,000,000 - - - - 286,000,000

o)

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

Taking into account the number of share options already granted,
384,000 share options were available for further grant under the
scheme mandate for the 2018 Scheme at the beginning of the year
ended 31 December 2023 (i.e. as at 1 January 2023). As the 2018
Scheme was terminated during the year, the number of share options
available for further grant under the 2018 Scheme was nil at the end
of the year ended 31 December 2023 (i.e. as at 31 December 2023).

As at the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining the
information contained in this annual report, based on the number of
outstanding share options granted under the 2018 Scheme, the total
number of shares available for issue under the 2018 Scheme was
286,000,000 shares, representing approximately 6.8% of the total
number of issued shares.
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2023 Scheme

On 30 May 2023, the shareholders of the Company approved and
adopted the 2023 Scheme and terminated the 2018 Scheme. The
2023 Scheme was adopted for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the growth and
development of the Group, attracting and retaining personnel
personnel to promote sustainable development and promoting the
long-term financial and business performance of the Group. The
participants of the 2023 Scheme include employees (whether full-time
or part-time and including directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (including persons who are granted share options under
the 2023 Scheme as an inducement to enter into employment
contracts with these companies).

The 2023 Scheme became effective on 30 May 2023 and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of
10 years up to 29 May 2033.

A total of 422,298,612 Shares may be issued in respect of all share
options that may be granted under the 2023 Scheme, representing
approximately 10.0% of the total number of issued Shares as at 30
May 2023 (the date of adoption of the 2023 Scheme).

Where any offer of options to a participant under the 2023 Scheme
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all
options granted to the participant under the 2023 Scheme and all
options and awards granted to the participant under any other share
schemes of the Company (excluding all options that have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the 2023 Scheme and all options and
awards that have lapsed in accordance with the terms of any other
share schemes of the Company) in the 12-month period up to and
including the offer date representing in aggregate over 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue, such an offer must be separately
approved by the shareholders at a general meeting.

EETHE
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An offer shall have been accepted by a participant in respect of all the
options which are offered to such a participant when the duplicate
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
participant together with a remittance in favour of the Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by
the Company within such time as may be specified in the offer (which
period shall be up to 21 days from the offer date). The option period
within which an option may be exercised by a grantee may be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee, which must not
be more than 10 years from the offer date of the option. In the
absence of such determination, the option period of an option shall
commence on the offer date of the option and end on the earlier of (i)
the date on which the option is cancelled or lapses under the 2023
Scheme; and (ii) the expiration of the period of 10 years from the
offer date of the option.

The vesting period in respect of an option, which shall commence on
the date on which the grantee accepts the offer of the option and
end on the vesting date, shall not be shorter than 12 months from
the date of acceptance of the offer, unless a shorter vesting period is
set in accordance with the provisions of the 2023 Scheme. The
Remuneration Committee (or, as the case may be, the Board) may
further establish performance target(s) in respect of specific grantees,
the attainment of which shall be a precondition for any exercise of
the options granted to the grantees concerned under the 2023
Scheme.

The price per share at which a grantee may subscribe for the share on
the exercise of an option granted under the 2023 Scheme shall be
determined at the discretion of the Board, provided that it must be at
least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date,
which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the offer date;
and (c) the nominal value of a share.
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As the 2023 Scheme was adopted during the year, the number of
share options available for grant under the 2023 Scheme was nil at
the beginning of the year ended 31 December 2023 (i.e. as at 1
January 2023). Since the adoption of the 2023 Scheme and up to the
latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining the information
contained in this annual report, no share option had been granted
under the 2023 Scheme. Accordingly, as at the end of the year ended
31 December 2023 (i.e. as at 31 December 2023), 422,298,612 share
options were available for grant under the scheme mandate for the
2023 Scheme at the end of the year ended 31 December 2023 (i.e. as
at 31 December 2023).

As at the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining the
information contained in this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the 2023 Scheme was 422,298,612
shares, representing approximately 10.0% of the total number of
issued shares.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries nor contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business whether or not for provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company, which
were not contract of service with any Director or any person engaged
in full time employment of the Company, were entered into or existed
during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER
PERSONS" INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions:

T ERCR R EA AT KA

RZBZ=F+_A=+—H &AL (K2
AEERTBTRABRIN) EARBRND K
HERMFHEELENARAREE S LPE
=PI 336 IRATFEMN B CM S SIOX B

Number of Percentage of

Capacity and Shares the Company’ s

Nature of Held or Issued Share

Name Interest Interested Capital

SHR PRk EARDAT ST

£ EEME EEROEE RARME DL

Newup (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,660,040,000 39.31%
;aE (M) BEmEAA

East Waves (Note 1) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
e (FaE) EmEB A

Keen Century (Note 1) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
gt (MEE) EmEBA

Rising Trade (Note 2) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
ZE (M5E2) E=ERA

Wealthy Gate (Note 3) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
= & (fEE3) EnHAA

Note 1: Each of Newup, East Waves and Keen Century was wholly-owned and
controlled by Mr. Wong; accordingly, Mr. Wong was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Newup, East Waves and Keen Century
pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Wong was the sole director of Newup, East
Waves and Keen Century.

Note 2: Rising Trade was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Chen; accordingly,
Mr. Chen was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Rising Trade
pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Chen was the sole director of Rising Trade.

Note 3: Wealthy Gate was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Cheng;
accordingly, Mr. Cheng was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Wealthy Gate pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Cheng was the sole director of
Wealthy Gate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares, and Debentures”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements,
certain related party transactions of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2023 constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements in relation to those transactions that are not
fully exempt in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023,
which are subject to the reporting and annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Simultaneously upon signing of the Share Transfer Agreement, on 9
September 2022, the Group and the Funlive Holdings Limited
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Funlive
Group”) entered into the following agreements (the “CCT
Agreements”, and each a “CCT Agreement”) each for the term
commencing on the date of Completion, i.e. 16 September 2022, and
ending on 31 December 2024 (both dates inclusive), such that the
Group and the Funlive Group could continue to enjoy the services of
each other immediately following Completion and afterwards:

(@)  the Advisory and Operational Service Framework Agreement, i.e.
the framework agreement entered into between Funlive
Holdings (for itself and as trustee for the benefits of its
subsidiaries from time to time) as supplier and the Company (for
itself and as trustee for the benefits of its subsidiaries from time
to time) as customer in relation to the provision of advisory and
operational services by the Funlive Group to the Group. It was
expected that the aggregate amount of the service fees payable
by the Group to the Funlive Group under the Advisory and
Operational Service Framework Agreement would not exceed
RMB4,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022,
RMB25,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
RMB39,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2024;

EETHE

FER S

BMANER A TS IRARMI 5 44 FTIEROREE - BT
R =Ft A=t BERANEERRH
R ZIMEK LR RIS 14A EPFFRERREE
RGRFFEMER S - RRATFEHIETE IR
RHBERNRZHET EHRRE 14A EHER
WERE -

FERERS

UNTRGERAEEHE—_ZTE_=F+_A1
T HIFENFERERS @ BEEESTE
MARRIE 14A ERBREFEEEFABRE :

REZBROEZHRENEE  R_F=—FA
ANB - AEEETBIERAE R A 7 R EH
BAow (5 [ARER]) sTS A T ([
BREZ =] - BhinER [FHEEERS
W) BhipEETKBER (AI=F ==
FNA+ARB) EE_WFEF+=-_A=+—H

It (BEREEMX) Rt - EBETRELER
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A R ERTSNE SR ek 0 BT BB R AR
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(b) the Tenancy Agreement, i.e. the tenancy agreement entered
into between Shanghai Junbang Trading Co., Ltd. (_ /&8 &
% B R A 7)) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) as lessor (“Shanghai Junbang”) and Shanghai Funlive
Apartment Management Limited ( /8 H B AEERBR A E))
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Funlive Holdings) as
lessee ( “Shanghai Funlive”) in relation to the lease of certain
premises by Shanghai Junbang to Shanghai Funlive for use as
office premises. It was expected that the annual amount of
rental payable by Shanghai Funlive to Shanghai Junbang under
the Tenancy Agreement would not exceed RMB700,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022, RMB2,200,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and RMB2,200,000 for the year
ending 31 December 2024; and

(c) the Property Management Framework Agreement, i.e. the
framework agreement entered into between the Company (for
itself and as trustee for the benefits of its subsidiaries from time
to time) as supplier and Funlive Holdings (for itself and as
trustee for the benefits of its subsidiaries from time to time) as
customer in relation to the provision of property management
services by the Group to the Funlive Group. It was expected that
the aggregate amount of the service fees payable by the Funlive
Group to the Group under the Property Management
Framework Agreement would not exceed RMB400,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022, RMB2,000,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and RMB2,600,000 for the year
ending 31 December 2024.

The Funlive Group is principally engaged in asset investments advisory,
apartments development management and lease operations
management in the PRC. While these are not at the core of the
Group'’s businesses, the Funlive Group has been offering substantive
support for the Group’s principal businesses in areas such as
apartments development, as the pre-development advisory and
development management services, marketing management services
and operational management services provided by the Funlive Group
have facilitated the effective planning and execution of the Group’s
apartment projects. The entering into of the Advisory and Operational
Service Framework Agreement allows the Group to have
uninterrupted access to the advisory and operational services of the
Funlive Group following completion of the Disposal, thereby
continuing to take advantage of the Funlive Group’s competitive
strength in the industry and local market experience and expertise to
guarantee effectual implementation of the Group’s apartments
development strategies and plans.
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On the other hand, the Funlive Group had been headquartered and
conducting its office operations in premises owned by the Group. In
addition, given the differences in business focus, the Funlive Group
had relied on the property management services provided by the
Group in respect of its office premises and apartments operated by
Funlive Group. By continuing to provide the Funlive Group with
necessary support under the Tenancy Agreement and the Property
Management Framework Agreement, the Group could not only
generate additional revenue in the form of rental income and service
fees, but also avoid significant changes in or disruptions to the
business operations of the Funlive Group to enable continuous and
efficacious collaboration between the Group and the Funlive Group
following completion of the Disposal.

Upon Completion, the Funlive Group becomes subsidiaries of the
Purchaser, which was then ultimately beneficially owned as to 82%
by Mr. Wong, the chairman of the Board, an executive Director, and a
controlling Shareholder holding approximately 50.21% of the total
number of issued shares in the Company. Accordingly, the Funlive
Group becomes associates of Mr. Wong and connected persons of
the Company, and the transactions contemplated under the CCT
Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions conducted under the CCT
Agreements during the year ended 31 December 2023 and confirm
that such transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the CCT Agreements on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

EETHE

S—HH HBEENELERAELEGR
AEBEREOYE o I BERFEHEHNE
£ JTREBREKEASERERAEMERE
Pra@nABREmMYREERS - BBRIE
HEBBERYEERERBRES R BEE
RENEZR - TEAIUESKRA KRR ER
A/AEEELRING - AR BEEE
EEEERREAREH T - EAKEET
BEENLESHRREEBUEIE -

REkE  TREBXAET ZMBAT - M
ETHEREEIR HTEEHRERER (8
BEARRBIEETRINDAZRD50.21%) HEE
RRBEHEA 82% HEw o Fit - HBEEK
RERENBEARNRRNEEAL - M
BRER S HHE MBETOHRSREBE ETHR
A5 14A EBKFHERER S °

B IFATTEFHER

BYRTEZCREBE_T_=F1+_A
=+ HULEFEENFERERZHAERT 2
FEMER S WEHARERST)

@ MAKERENR-REBEBERIL

(o) RIEESBERERGFHFIL K

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023

hEEMERARAR T —4sm T O3



——— 84 —

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

CONFIRMATIONS FROM THE COMPANY"S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Group has
engaged its auditor to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the HKICPA. The Board of the Company confirms that the auditor
has issued an unqualified letter to the Board containing the findings
and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions conducted by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 and confirming that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe the continuing connected transactions
conducted by the Group under the CCT Agreements during the year
ended 31 December 2023:

(@  have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group (in respect of transactions involving
provision of services by the Group);

(c)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the relevant annual caps.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

Loan agreements with covenants relating to specific
performance of the controlling shareholder

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3 January
2020, by an agreement dated 2 January 2020 (the “2020 January Facility
Agreement”) entered into by and among, inter alia, Sleek Time Limited
(“Sleek Time"), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as
borrower, and a syndicate of banks, the banks have agreed to grant to
the borrower a term loan facility in an aggregate of the Hong Kong dollar
equivalent of RMB560,000,000 (the “2020 January Facility”).

The 2020 January Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation is made
under the 2020 January Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by the
Company and the Sleek Time’s other shareholders on a several basis.
Pursuant to mutual agreement between, inter alia, Sleek Time and the
banks, the final maturity date of the 2020 January Facility was
extended to March 2024.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 July 2020,
by an agreement dated 8 July 2020 (the “2020 July Facility
Agreement”) entered into by and among, inter alia, Best Access
International Limited (“Best Access”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, as borrower, and a bank, the bank has agreed to
grant to the borrower a term loan facility in an aggregate of the Hong
Kong dollar or United States dollar equivalent of up to
RMB400,000,000 (the “2020 July Facility”) to, amongst others,
finance the repayment of shareholders’ loan owed by the borrower’s
indirect holding company.

The 2020 July Facility is for a term of three years commencing from
the date on which the first utilisation is made under the 2020 July
Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by the Company and Best
Access’ other shareholder on a several basis. Pursuant to mutual
agreement between, inter alia, Best Access and the bank, the 2020
July Facility was refinanced during 2023 with the final maturity date
being extended to July 2026.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
November 2020, by an agreement dated 26 November 2020 (the
“2020 November Facility Agreement”) entered into by and between
Bohai International Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as borrower and Hang Seng Bank Limited as lender,
the lender has agreed to grant to the borrower a term loan facility in
an aggregate of US$50,000,000 (or its Hong Kong dollars equivalent)
and which may, subject to the approval of the lender in its sole and
absolute discretion, be increased by an aggregate amount of up to
US$40,000,000 upon the request of the borrower in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the 2020 November Facility Agreement
(the “2020 November Facility”).

The 2020 November Facility is for a term of three years and six
months commencing from the date on which the first utilisation is
made under the 2020 November Facility Agreement, and is
guaranteed by the Company and the Bohai International Investment
Limited’s wholly-owned subsidiary.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 March
2021
dated 22 March 2021 entered into by and among, inter alia, the

, pursuant to an agreement (the “2021 Facility Agreement”)

Company as borrower and a syndicate of banks, the banks have
agreed to grant to the Company a HK$351,000,000 and
US$342,500,000 dual tranche term loan facility (the “2021 Facility”)
to refinance existing financial indebtedness of the Group and fund
payment of any fees, costs and expenses payable by the Group in
connection with the 2021 Facility Agreement and other related
documents.

The 2021 Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation is made
under the 2021 Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2023,
by an agreement dated 4 July 2023 (the “2023 Facility Agreement”)
entered into by and among, inter alia, the Company as borrower and
a syndicate of banks, the banks have agreed to grant to the Company
a HK$255,420,000 and US$89,100,000 multiple tranche term facility
(the “2023 Facility”) to refinance existing financial indebtedness of
the Company.
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The 2023 Facility is for a term of 15 months commencing on the date
on which the utilisation of the 2023 Facility is made under the 2023
Facility Agreement. Liabilities and obligations of the Company under
the 2023 Facility Agreement are secured by, among other things,
charges over 504,000,000 shares (the “Charged Shares”) in SCE CM
(representing approximately 26.0% of its issued share capital as at the
date of this report) held by Happy Scene, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, in favour of the security agent (the
“Security Agent”) of the Banks (the “Share Charges”).

Each of the 2020 January Facility Agreement, the 2020 July Facility
Agreement, the 2020 November Facility Agreement, the 2021 Facility
Agreement and the 2023 Facility Agreement contains a requirement
that Mr. Wong, a controlling shareholder of the Company and an
executive Director, and his family members (together with Mr. Wong,
the “Wong Family”), (@) must remain as the single largest shareholder
of the Company; (b) must hold legally and beneficially and directly or
indirectly 35% (under the 2020 July Facility Agreement, the 2020
November Facility Agreement, the 2021 Facility Agreement and the
2023 Facility Agreement) or 40% (under the 2020 January Facility
Agreement only) or more of all classes of the Company'’s voting share
capital and/or must directly or indirectly control (as defined in the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers) the Company; and (c)
Mr. Wong or a member of the Wong Family must remain as the
chairman of the Board of the Company throughout the respective life
of the 2020 January Facility, the 2020 July Facility, the 2020
November Facility, the 2021 Facility and the 2023 Facility. A breach of
such requirements will constitute an event of default or (as the case
may be) mandatory prepayment event under the 2020 January Facility
Agreement, the 2020 July Facility Agreement, the 2020 November
Facility Agreement, the 2021 Facility Agreement and the 2023 Facility
Agreement, and as a result, the 2020 January Facility, the 2020 July
Facility, the 2020 November Facility, the 2021 Facility and the 2023
Facility will be liable to be declared immediately due and payable.

As at the approval date of this report, Mr. Wong, through companies
wholly-owned by him, holds approximately 50.21% of the voting
share capital of the Company.
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Breach of loan agreements and suspension of
Offshore US$ Senior Notes

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 October
2023, as at the date of the announcement, the Company had not
made payment on an instalment of principal and interest amounting
to approximately US$61 million which has fallen due under the 2021
Facility Agreement. The loan non-payment has resulted in an event of
default under the Company’s Offshore US$ Senior Notes (as defined
below). The loan non-payment may result in demands for acceleration
of repayment of debts and/or actions taken by the Group’s creditors
in accordance with the respective terms of the relevant financings. An
application was made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the
suspension of trading in each of the Company’s offshore US$ senior
notes listed below (the “Offshore US$ Senior Notes”) with effect from
9:00 a.m. on 5 October 2023 until further notice.

ERERHBNEIXZTBEREFE

A RRBHA—E _=ZF+ANBMNRAE
Fi#ee RASHE  ARARMARBE_-Z
T FRE RN EEND BAS KA BL
6,100 EETT - AXNTEREEBARQRHE
INETTEAERE (EERTX) HRELOEM -
RENERAIEEAREEEREAZKINRE
BEBM R E AR E N EFERRTE -
ARG EREBHIFEBR_E_=F1+ A
HBEETFAREREE TS SENETELE
B (BHNETEBEEER]) NRS  BEERTT
BAAL -

Debt Stock Outstanding
Description of Debt Securities ISIN/Common Code Code Principal Amount
(bR BB R H BB BARE BERFNRE KEELS
7.375% senior notes due April 2024 XS$1974405893/197440589 5948 US$500,000,000
(the”April 2024 Notes”) (Note)
R-ZT_MEH B 2|HM 7.375% BEER 500,000,000 37T
(=== mFmAERE]) (FzE)
5.95% senior notes due September 2024 XS2316077572/231607757 40628 US$450,000,000
X T _PMFNAREH 5.95% BEREER 450,000,000 T
7% senior notes due May 2025 XS2227351900/222735190 40444 US$500,000,000
N_ZE_RFOAZIEN 7% BERE 500,000,000 37T
6% senior notes due February 2026 XS2286966093/228696609 40590 US$350,000,000

R-ZB-RF-AZHN 6% BARE

Note: As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 April 2024, the
April 2024 Notes were delisted from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange upon
its maturity on 9 April 2024. The principal amount and the accrued unpaid
interests of the April 2024 Notes had not been settled on the maturity date
and remained outstanding.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's defaulted or cross-defaulted
principal and accrued interest of certain offshore senior notes and
offshore interest-bearing bank and other borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB17.258 billion and RMB694 million respectively.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3 November
2023, in view of the challenges currently faced by the Group and to
move forward with exploring a holistic solution to managing the
Group's offshore debt situation, the Company has appointed Haitong
International Securities Company Limited as its financial adviser to
assist with evaluating the Group’s current capital structure and
liquidity and to explore feasible solutions to ease the current liquidity
issue in order to reach an optimal outcome for all stakeholders as
soon as possible.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Enforcement of the Share Charges and appointment
of receivers over shares in SCE CM

On 15 December 2023, Happy Scene received a notice from the
Security Agent (the “Enforcement Notice”) stating, among other
things, that

(1) as at the date of the Enforcement Notice, China SCE had failed
to repay the amounts demanded under the acceleration and
demand notice. Accordingly, the outstanding principal amount
of the two tranches of the loans made under the 2023 Facility
Agreement remained to be HK$255,420,000 and
Us$89,100,000, with accrued interests amounting to
HK$13,281,847.78 and US$4,878,639.50, respectively as at the
date of the Enforcement Notice;

events of default had occurred under the 2023 Facility
Agreement, were continuing and had not been waived as at the
date of the Enforcement Notice; and

(3) the Share Charges had become enforceable in accordance with
the terms of the relevant security agreements.

By notices given by the Security Agent on 18 December 2023 to the
custodian (the “Custodian”) of the securities accounts in which the
Charged Shares are held (the “Custodian Accounts”), the Security
Agent had taken exclusive control over the Custodian Accounts and
the Charged Shares.

Further, Happy Scene was informed by the Security Agent on
18 December 2023 that

(@) Chow Wai Shing Daniel of FTI Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited
and Aaron Luke Gardner of FTI Consulting (BVI) Limited had
been appointed as joint and several receivers (the “Receivers”)
of the Custodian Accounts and the Charged Shares; and

Happy Scene had ceased to be entitled to exercise voting rights
attached to the Charged Shares, and the Security Agent or the
Receivers shall be entitled to exercise or direct the exercise of
the voting and other rights attached to any Charged Shares.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
19 December 2023 for further details.

EETHE

BHBTROMTEARPEBENR
BEEEEA

R-Z-_=F+_"H+HA  LIEEHRFAL
B ([RBIEiT@m]) - Sh&a (K
BiE)

PSR HIEN TN B ER - AR EE R AE(SE N
REH RS FRMEE T ERENNR
IH o AL - ReRBIBITEA B - BRI
CE = FREBHREDNRILE R
REEARS TN B A 255,420,000 %
7T K% 89,100,000 =7t © & [ BT 7 B 5
Rl A 13,281,847.78 7 7T & 4,878,639.50
ETT

(M

RBFIMITRANEH  —T_=—F@E

HHROBELENEN  HDARERE -

BrREARERR &

RIBARBE AR
A SR BIBRTT ©

3) ViR - IR IR E

BEEKARER-_Z-_=F+=-A+/\BA#F
BERTBMONESKRE ([FRERF)) WEE
A ([FEREAD BHoBEA  BERREDERE
HEEERP RO BB R IEHIAE o
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RHEEH

EEORAAARAA M AEEKKF
Consulting (BVI) Limited &) Aaron Luke
Gardner BEZ{ERFEE RE RFER7D
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54

(a)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s Statement —
Outlook” for an indication of the likely future development in the
Group's business.

AUDITOR

With effect from 29 December 2023, Ernst & Young resigned as the
auditor of the Company, and the Board resolved to appoint Prism as
the external auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of Ernst & Young and to hold office until
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
December 2023 for further details.

Prism will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Wong Chiu Yeung
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

O
=

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China SCE
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 101 to 266, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 were audited by another auditor who expressed
an unqualified opinion on those statements on 30 March 2023.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN RS

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO THE
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements which states that, the Group recorded a loss attributable
to owners of the parent of approximately RMB7.991 billion for the
year ended 31 December 2023 and, as of that date, the Group’s net
current liabilities amounted to approximately RMB12.870 billion. In
October 2023, the Group had not made payment on an instalment of
principal and interest amounting to approximately US$61 million
which had fallen due under its syndicated loan agreement entered
into on 22 March 2021, and as a result, pursuant to the respective
terms and conditions, certain offshore senior notes and offshore
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings became default. As at 31
December 2023, the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
senior notes and domestic bonds of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB35.907 billion, while its cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB4.885 billion.

This condition indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore that it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
directors of the Company have considered the plans and measures
being taken by the Group, which is disclosed at note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, are of the opinion that the Group
would be able to continue as going concern basis. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result
from a failure of achieving the plans and measures. We consider
appropriate disclosures have been made in this respect. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BERE

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEETER

BHREEZRERATZEER
(RFEESHETMK LB R R])

PR ET =8 (#)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REETSREFTHIENAESHN

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

REMEQIABHMEE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had investment properties
in the Mainland China amounting to approximately RMB33.9
billion which were measured at fair value.
RZZBEZ=F+-A=+—HB  EEEETEAHBNHKE
MEBERAAREAEBOR/ARKE3INET -

Management engaged an external valuer to determine the fair
value of the investment properties at the end of the reporting
period. Different valuation models were applied by the external
valuer on different types of investment properties.

ERERRINIEEMRETRERRREMENRAE -
HNEBIEERNE NRRE MR EMERA T T RN HERE -

We identified this as a key audit matter because the carrying
amounts of the investment properties are significant and
significant estimation is required to determine their fair value.
HPSHRSERES =R ARREVENIREEBEX
BIEHERGET AT REEHEAAE -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 3,
4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

ERRBEINGEWBRERME3 4 K15
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We obtained understanding of the work of the
external valuer engaged by management, and
assessed the objectivity, independence and
competency of the external valuer.

HMEERERERFNINMEEMPTETOHT
& - WEHEIMNEEEMO TN - B EREeN -

We involved an independent valuation specialist to
evaluate the valuation techniques used and tested the
underlying key estimations and assumptions for
selected samples through enquiry with management
and by reference to the rental values and open market
information.
BMmBAREREEARNLR2ZHEEENAR
MHAE » WEE (B HEERTEAER
B E R - R E AN E AR (T MERR
ETTRIH -

We compared the valuation performed by the
external valuer to the range provided by the
independent valuation specialists. We further
assessed the appropriateness of the properties
related data used as inputs for the valuation.

FAPI A S0 EB 4 (LA BT HE 1T B0 AT BB (B E R
PR S EETT TR - BPIE— - TH
EEERANYEEEER ZBE ML -

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of the
valuation of the investment properties, including
the fair value hierarchy and the valuation
techniques used and the key inputs to the valuation
of investment properties.
BAFRTREDERENRERS R B
AREBRMREMEMRBGEET EREED
FERAZE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HEETER

B ZBERE

BHREEZRERATZEER
(REEHSTMA LA ERLA)

PR E T EIH(#)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEETESREFTHIRNAESN

Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development

FEHECERYENBRIYENTERFE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had completed properties
held for sale and properties under development (the
“Properties”) amounting to approximately RMB6.3 billion and
RMB92.4 billion respectively, which represented 3.7% and
55.0% of the Group's total assets, respectively. In addition,
provision for write down to net realisable value of
approximately RMB3.0 billion on completed properties held for
sale and properties under development, was recognised by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023.
RZEBEZ=F+"A=+—H ESERELHEEEXD
MERBERTYWE (ZEVE) DAV BARKERTRA
R¥92487T  Hhlds EXEAEEEN3.7% K55.0% ° Ut
Hh BEBEBE_T_=F+_A=+—RHILFEERHF
EHEEERMERBERTYEREZATERFEHAR
#30.0187T

Management determined the net realisable value (the “NRV")
of the Properties and made an impairment assessment by
reference to the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
to make the sale, and for properties under development, the
estimated costs to completion at the end of the reporting
period.

EREETZSYENAERFECAERFEE")  W2R
REMREEAEBREMFTHENRT L (BAERTWEM
Bt R IR EST TRIER M -

We involved an independent valuation specialist to
evaluate and test the underlying key estimations
and assumptions for selected samples through
enquiry with management and by reference to the
open market information.
HRBRAEEEARNARZ2ZEHEEENAGR
MHAE  WEE (B HEEREE K
By EE AR BRGR b St AR ARETT T /T BRI -

We compared the NRV assessment performed by
the management to the range provided by the
independent valuation specialists. We further
assessed the appropriateness of the properties
related data used as inputs for the assessment.
B E R EETH A B IR ER (H B HE
EREHOSBEET TR - HME—FFHET
RIE A ABBN M ERFEERNRE T -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN RS

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited BHREBZERERARZEERR
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REASHSHTEMAIHBRAF])

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) R ETS=E @

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BREEE ARESSEEETTRUOMERH

Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development (Continued)

FEHECERMENBRRIMENTRERFE(E)

We identified this as a key audit matter because the carrying e We evaluated the reasonableness of the estimated

amounts of the Properties are significant and significant costs to completion of the properties under
estimation is required to determine their NRV. development, on a sample basis, by comparing it to
BMBESERAREAFE AAZEYVENIEEEES the actual development cost of similar completed
ANEETEASRFESZELEKXNGR - properties of the Group and comparing the
adjustments made by the management to current
The accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 3, market data.
4, 18 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements. BMAHEAER - BAE SEEEUE XTI
FRAREHNGETBEHRRMAE3I 4 18Kk22- MENBERFERIETLER - A EERE ML
BABEERNTISERETLER T HERSD
MELET T I AN S o

e We evaluated the management’s assessment for
about the estimated selling price less the estimated
costs to make the sale and the estimated costs to
completion by checking the recent market
transaction prices of properties with comparable
locations and conditions, where applicable;
comparing with the average historical costs to
make the sales by the Group; and comparing the
latest estimated costs to completion to the budget
approved by management and examining the
supporting documents such as construction
contracts, internal correspondences and approvals.
BB BREFUENRERUNY X T TS
R5E®R(WMER), LR EXBENTHELHE
B, Mo & e fhat e TRCAR BB IR E#t A
WREETHER  TREEEAR  AERBER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so. The directors
of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN RS

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN RS

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Fung Shing Bun, Spencer.

Prism Hong Kong and Shanghai Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fung Shing Bun, Spencer

Practising Certificate Number: P07451
Hong Kong

27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME

= \ /
e f@%ﬁ U 5 3=
Year ended 31 December 2023 %Z:th S =F+-A=1+—HIFE
2023 2022
—EB-=F =
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT
Notes (restated)
B 5 (ge=7)
REVENUE Uy 25 6 20,960,968 26,705,112
Cost of sales 8 & AR (18,329,976)  (21,294,804)
Gross profit E7 2,630,992 5,410,308
Other income and gains H A YA K Wz 6 660,818 820,387
Changes in fair value of investment KEMERAEZ S
properties, net FRE 15 (3,754,084) (25,422)
Selling and marketing expenses THE N E R X (802,420) (1,239,106)
Administrative expenses TR X (1,710,180) (1,781,374)
Write down to net realisable value of BEHECERMERERS
completed properties held for sale and YR EZ A B8 E
properties under development (2,951,850) (989,975)
Other expenses Haf (877,699) =
Finance costs M E R 7 (1,492,343) (921,124)
Share of profits and losses of: FEME T35 8w F % B 48
Joint ventures SR —WNE] (191,285) (434,972)
Associates =N 276,431 (19,294)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX MRB AR R (F518) 8 (8.211,620) 819,428
Income tax expense PIE R X 11 (189,504) (1,020,120)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (8,401,124) (200,692)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE HitZ2mEBA(EHE) :
INCOME/(LOSS):
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ARegERESHENHE
that may be reclassified to BmmHEtaE2EmRA
profit or loss in subsequent periods: (B#R) :
Share of other comprehensive [Efh& & R EIHAb
income of joint ventures 2HEUA 407 7,865
Exchange differences on translation BMEBIINEBNER =58
of foreign operations (506,437) (1,630,309)
Exchange fluctuation reserve released £ 65 BT /B 1 A B R BR O
upon disposal of subsidiaries T 58 B e 6,355 (31,372)
Net other comprehensive loss that REERBHRHEENI»EE
may be reclassified to profit or loss Tﬁ s E Mt 2 E BB
in subsequent periods (499,675) (1,653,816)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREMZEEE
FOR THE YEAR (499,675) (1,653,816)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FRE2EEGRERE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (8,900,799) (1,854,508)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEakAEMEEWRER

Year ended 31 December 2023 #EZ—E - =F+_A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
M5 AR T ARET T
Profit/(loss) attributable to: TOEEERER (EE)
Owners of the parent ISTNEIEZF PN (7,991,050) 24,544
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (410,074) (225,236)
(8,401,124) (200,692)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: N7 & HE(L 2 FETE AR :
Owners of the parent ISTNEIEZF =N (8,452,222) (1,550,790)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R M = (448,577) (303,718)
(8,900,799) (1,854,508)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BAREEREREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEERER(HE)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic and diluted EARREE RMBARY  RMBARK

(189.2) cents 7

0.6 cents %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

SRR R

ﬂ‘
31 December 2023 —E-_=F+_A=+—H
2023 2022
—g—-= —T=—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ARBTR AREBTx
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment L ENEL 14 725,257 775,742
Investment properties WEYE 15 33,880,100 39,216,242
Intangible asset EILEE 17 2,486 2,653
Properties under development BERPYE 18 8,625,734 10,169,792
Contract in progress EEIREAR 19 153,627 129,132
Investments in joint ventures B’\/\A" AR E 20 3,118,969 7,247,429
Investments in associates REEE R AR E 21 864,167 1,251,635
Prepayments and other assets TR FIE M E M E E 24 705,926 814,465
Deferred tax assets BT IR & B 32 1,150,968 1,173,522
Total non-current assets EREEEBTE 49,227,234 60,780,612
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties under development BRAPYE 18 83,747,682 92,717,968
Completed properties held for sale FEREEEZKME 22 6,253,504 4,797,777
Trade receivables g 5 RUYRIE 23 198,330 466,350
Prepayments, other receivables and TEAT IR « H A EURIE
other assets HAih & E 24 15,062,723 13,315,135
Financial assets at fair value through BAREEBEZFHA
profit or loss BarepEE 26 344,135 431,973
Due from related parties JrE Uk BB 5 7k0E 25 4,065,231 3,914,425
Prepaid income tax SRR 2,541,922 2,523,770
Restricted cash XBRHIRS 27 1,564,401 3,866,093
Pledged deposits BT R 27 = 2,031,012
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 27 4,884,525 9,118,953
Total current assets BB EARE 118,662,453 133,183,456
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

2023 2022
—E=-= —E=-=
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
B = ARETx ARET T
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Trade and bills payables B 5 RN ZERER 28 11,650,518 10,821,534
Other payables and accruals Hih {3 IE & BT E A 29 8,807,854 9,186,882
Contract liabilities aRAaE 29 80,838,861 82,443,359
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREME
other borrowings 30 9,817,976 10,742,959
Senior notes and domestic bonds BREEBENMERNES 31 13,613,559 3,959,846
Due to related parties J& 1 BB B 75 5RIR 25 2,588,416 2,583,308
Tax payable JE 1~ 25 18 4,215,624 3,913,001
Total current liabilities mEN B EETE 131,532,808 123,650,889
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE (BE)FE (12,870,355) 9,532,567
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBER
LIABILITIES 36,356,879 70,313,179
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and STERITRAEMER
other borrowings 30 10,275,584 16,252,153
Senior notes and domestic bonds BEEENMEANES 31 2,200,000 13,202,190
Lease liabilities HEaFE 16 6,381 17,729
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIEEE 32 3,303,940 4,137,252
Provision for major overhauls NI R 33 88,648 78,614
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERTE 15,874,553 33,687,938
Net assets BEFE 20,482,326 36,625,241
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000

i  AR®TR AR®BTT

EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BARHEE ABGRERS
the parent

Issued capital BT A 34 365,138 365,138

Reserves i 36 9,358,611 19,345,551
9,723,749 19,710,689

Non-controlling interests IR 10,758,577 16,914,552

Total equity REmiasn 20,482,326 36,625,241

Wong Chiu Yeung Huang Youquan

=G =R

Director Director

EFE EBEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

[

*E) < 454

nVT\

RER

Year ended 31 December 2023 EE—Z —

=F+ZA=+—RHIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREE A
Share Statutory Property Share Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium Capital surplus Merger  revaluation Other option  Hedging fluctuation ~ Retained controlling Total
pitll  account  resee  resene  fesee fesenve  feseves fesenve fesee resenve profits Total  interests equity
BE#f ki3 EE nx BiE 31 R
BA  EEE AARE RHEE AHEE  EMER  EbER R HAEE  RBRE  RBER 3t BE  Eni
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARET ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARMTT ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note 34) (note 36(b))  (note 36(c)  (note 36(d)) (note 36(e))
(tt34) (Rf3E3600)  (EE36(0) (FEE36(d) (st 3606))
At 1 January 2022 W=%--%-5-8 365,064 - (3277374) 1813213 30 82872 9754 92,670 (44811) 983959 21,760,983 21,786,360 20,920,751 42,707,111
Profitfoss) for the year ERER/(BE) - - - - - - - - - - 454 254 (225236)  (200,692)
Other comprehensive incomefloss) ERE2ERA/
for the year: (F#8) :
Share of other comprehensive EhAERRLL
income of joint ventures 2EMA - - - - - - 7,865 - - - - 7,865 - 7,865
Exchange differences on translation R E SN )
of foreign operations EXEE - - - - - - = = - (1,551,827) - (1551827)  (78482) (1,630,309)
Exchange fluctuation reserve released (i EHBA AR R E
upon disposal of subsidiaries EXRERE - - - - - - = = - (13 - (131 - (313
Total comprehensive income/(oss) ER2ERA/(BR)
for the year #a = = = = = = 7,865 = - (1,583,199 24544 (1,550,790)  (303,718) (1,854,508
Capital reduction of subsidiaries WA RAE D B - = B - = - - = - - - (1,925581) (1,925581)
Capital contribution from FERRREAEH
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 4292 4292
Dividends paid to non-controlling SHMBARFERR
shareholders of subsidiaries REHRE = - = B - = B - = - - - (187477)  (187477)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests B SEFERR B & - - (318862 - - - - - - - - (318862 (1616292) (1,935,154)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEMBAF (H:539) B - = B - = - - = - - = 80,721 (80,721)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) IEEN B AR (i3 38) - - - - - - - - - - - - 3 72321
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary BRYE-AHEAA
(note 38) (FizE38) - - - - - - - - - - - - 30,977 30977
2021 final dividend ZT-FRERE - (572) = = = = = = = - (206,093) (206,665 - (206,665
Issue of shares for scrip dividend IRR SRR 4 572 - - - - - - - - - 646 - 646
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve HRTETRAGE - - - 84,667 B - - B - - (84667) = = =
At 31 December 2022 R-B-Zf
+=A=t+-8 365,138 -* (3,596,236) 1,897,880* 30* 82,872% 17,619* 92,670%  (44811)*  (599,240)* 21,494,767* 19,710,689 16,914,552 36,625,241
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAEERDE

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+ - A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEARR
Statutory Property Share Exchange Non-
Issued Capital surplus Merger revaluation Other option  Hedging fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
2Ef7 EE nE BRE Ej FER

Kx  EARR  BBEE AHEE  EEREE  HUES R HNRE  RBRE  RERA it B maRg
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR AR®TT ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTr ARETR ARMTR ARBTr ARETR

(note 34) (note 36(b) (note 36(c)) (note 36(d)) (note 36(e))
(Writ3a) (WiE36(b) (KzE36(c)) (MaE36(d)) (HzE36(e)
At 1 January 2023 R=Z==%-A-B 365,138 (3,596,236)* 1,897,880* 30* 82,872* 17,619* 92,670 (44,811)*  (599,240)* 21,494,767* 19,710,689 16,914,552 36,625,241
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = = = - (7,991,050) (7,991,050)  (410,074) (8,401,124
Other comprehensive incomef(loss) ~ FRE2ENRA,/
for the year: (B51) :
Share of other comprehensive EEAERFEM
income of joint ventures LN - - - - - 407 - - - - 407 - 407
Exchange differences on BEBNEBH
translation of foreign EXEE
operations - - - - - - - - (467,934) - (467,934)  (38,503)  (506,437)
Exchange fluctuation reserve HENBARRRRN
released upon disposal of B REHE
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 6,355 - 6,355 - 6,355
Total comprehensive income/(loss) A2 FEUA/(E#)
for the year a8 - - - - - 407 = - (461,579) (7.991,050) (8,452,222)  (448577) (8,900,799)
Capital reduction of subsidiaries B F ZBRAR D - - - - - - - - - - - (5798,246) (5,798,246)
Capital contribution from FRRRREA TR
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - = = = 21313 21313
Dividends paid to non-controlling 1 HIB A AIFE AR
shareholders of subsidiaries BROES - - - - - - - - - - - (122425 (122425)
Acquisition of non-controlling W et R 2
interests - (1,106,400 - - - - - - - - (1,106,400)  (106,644) (1,213,044)
Deemed disposal of partial interest B FHEHBA A
in subsidiaries PR - (428318) - - - - - - - - (428318) 428318 -
Disposal of subsidfaries HERBAR
(note 39) (GEZ) - - - - - - - - - = - (95769) (95769
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE—-EHBAR
(note 38) (F3£38) - - - - - - - - - = - (33945 (33945
Transfer statutory surplus reserve  EERBEEER
to retained profits REHH - - (14,059) - - - - - - 14,058 - - -
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=F
—R=1+-H 365,138 (5,130,954)* 1,883,822* 30% 82,872* 18,026* 92,670%  (44,811)* (1,060,819)* 13,517,775% 9,723,749 10,758,577 20,482,326

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBEREPESREUBRARPARE
RMB9,358,611,000 (2022: RMB19,345,551,000) in the consolidated 9,358,611,000 L (ZE=ZZ_F: AR
statement of financial position. 19,345,551,000 7T) Ky 4R & & ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 #EZ—E - =F+_A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—®:=-= —E=-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AREBTRT ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRENE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax B AEN (E1E) (8,211,620) 819,428
Adjustments for: M I EBELAE
Finance costs MIEER 7 1,492,343 921,124
Share of profits and losses of: FE R TS5 % 18 A1 [ 548
Joint ventures = —/NE]| 191,285 434,972
Associates NS (276,431) 19,294
Interest income 2 A 6 (98,096) (141,979)
Gain on disposal of items of HEMFERZEEER
property and equipment, net U & 58 6 (1,471) (1,343)
Gain on bargain purchase EA o)l ga 6, 38 = (38,578)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HENB AR/
net Was H e 6,8, 39 (169,817) (415,139)
Gain on repurchase of senior notes Ol BB E L EE RIS 6 (131,496) =
Loss/(gain) on disposal of associates HEBESNRINER,(WKE) 6,8 29,107 (4,745)
Loss on disposal of joint ventures HESE QAR EE 8 93,273 =
Fair value losses/(gain), net: DNRERE (W) F58E
Financial assets at fair value BEARnEtEBAE
through profit or loss FFABENEREE 8 45,774 55,995
Remeasurement of investments in EFTERNEERRIMNIRE
joint ventures 6,8 61,356 (69,221)
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMEEE
properties, net R 8 87,356 442,020
Depreciation of property and equipment ~ #13 MR &I & 8, 14 80,427 70,896
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENTE 8, 14 22,145 58,451
Changes in fair value of investment KREMERAREZEE)FEE
properties, net 15 3,754,084 25,422
Amortisation of an intangible asset B B 8,17 167 166
Impairment losses recognised on RE & DA REE R E 8
investments in joint ventures and KERBEEE
associates 8 172,392 -
Impairment losses recognised on JE Y A Bt 75 TR IR Y
amount due from related parties VEREY R 8 705,307 =
Write down to net realisable value of BIELEEBKMER
completed properties held for sale BRAMFEREZR
and properties under development A 38 5HE 2,951,850 989,975
797,935 3,166,738
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

IE:@/)ILE%E

Year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE — T - =F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

an\

2023 2022
—=E== =
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AREBTT ARETT
Increase in properties under BRI
development (7,512,766) (9,912,704)
Increase in contract in progress EEIREARIEM 19 (158,605) (109,332)
Decrease in completed properties BEHEBERERD
held for sale 17,475,980 20,183,573
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 EWGRIER 268,020 65,436
Increase in prepayments, TR FRIE  Ho b e R IE K
other receivables and other assets o h & EE L0 (3,013,022) (1,638,527)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills BB REMNZIERZEE N
payables Cr) 617,998 (4,148,189)
Decrease in other payables and accruals — HE fth & {5 B & JEAT & R 2 (1,276,725) (1,793,207)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilites &R & &0, GF L) (1,604,498) 11,652,876
Increase in provision for major overhauls, A& B &g 18 1% 58
net B8 6,084 5,838
Cash generated from operations EEELMSRE 5,600,401 17,472,502
Interest received BUF & 98,096 141,979
PRC corporate income tax paid BT B TSR (559,917) (846,790)
PRC land appreciation tax paid B AR B b i E (44,488) (338,487)
Net cash flows from operating activities & EB TSR REFHE 5,094,092 16,429,204
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
Iﬁ:ﬁ/)lb%i‘%

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—ZT— =

an\

F+A=1T—RHIFE

2023 2022
—®:=-= —E-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B = ARBTR ARBTET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of EEMELREER
property and equipment (72,602) (131,797)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEM R FAEEE S HRE
property and equipment 23,284 11,066
Additions to investment properties R E ) 2 e (1,612,223) (2,595,241)
Proceeds from disposal of SR E Y TS5/ IE
investment properties 263,965 805,205
Deposits refund for L ENB AR
proposed disposal of subsidiaries REMWE] & - (367,110)
Acquisition of subsidiaries s B B B8 A 38 (13,500) 72,286
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries 15 B U BE BT B /A ] 38 = 437,916
Disposal of subsidiaries & KB A ) 39 196,307 585,780
Dividend from joint ventures SN 117,673 262,139
Addition capital in joint ventures Q%QTZHXZIUBD (10,514) =
Capital reduction of associates YNl & 200,760 -
Dividend from associates ANl )i N 1,800 —
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures & & & A & AT 5 HIE 183,895 =
Proceeds from disposal of associates HE B N R FT1S 508 269,500
Repayments from related parties B85 77 SRIRE K 105,031 10,620
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H&Z AL EF= BEEE A
at fair value through profit or loss B L& EMSHRIE 48,224 835,817
Decrease in restricted cash X IR #1352 Rt 2,301,692 407,615
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits B 377 5084 (38 0) 2,031,012 (1,976,438)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with  REIEIEZ R =EAF 2
original maturity over three months FEHFEZORD, () 10,000 (962,500)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & &/FEBE,/ (FTA)RERE
activities Pt 4,044,304 (2,604,642)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

an\ IE@/)ILE%%

Year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE — T - =F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
—Eg-= g
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARE T ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid EFE (2,085,544) (3,242,856)
Proceeds from issuance of senior BTRAEEBERERNES
notes and domestic bonds FTi5 708 2,200,000 768,250
Redemption of senior notes and BEELERBEIRAES
domestic bonds (3,920,029) (5,521,308)
New bank and other borrowings TIERITREME K 942,574 11,142,125
Repayment of bank and other borrowings (&8 817 & E it & 5k (7,732,473) (16,077,298)
Repayment of proceeds from EEBH LS HRIA
securitisation arrangement - (1,272,202)
Capital contribution from IR E AR E R
non-controlling shareholders 21,313 4,292
Capital reduction of subsidiaries B B8 A A 2 MR AS e (1,960,000) (1,925,581)
Advances from/(repayment to) FEIERR AR R BB
non-controlling shareholders 489,787 (2,102,288)
Principal portion of lease payments XNHEER MG (14,794) (76,781)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Y B8 FE1E AR i 2= (1,213,044) (1,935,154)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to JFE < B B 5 FOIEE A0, CRL )
related parties, net SRR 5,108 (621,530)
Dividends paid = fHR& 2 - (206,019)
Dividends paid to non-controlling At W%’& BERZE I EL0 IS
shareholders of subsidiaries (122,425) (187,477)
Net cash flows used in financing BEESFMARES
activities =R (13,389,527) (21,253,827)
NET DECREASE IN CASH ReRESEBYRDFH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,251,131) (7,429,265)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ~ F#R < KBS EEY
of year 8,156,453 15,677,587
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, g lEnp=Z
net 26,703 (91,869)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESZREASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 3,932,025 8,156,453
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBSEEYERDM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in IREMBARARS ZEE R
the consolidated statement of H e EEY
financial position 27 4,884,525 9,118,953
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B EBARIBBEBZR=(EAH
original maturity over three months RASH IR E BiTF 5K
when acquired (952,500) (962,500)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated MERERERERMTHNIRES R
in the consolidated statement of HEEBY
cash flows 3,932,025 8,156,453
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/__]_\

1.

B 75 = Y 5t

31 December 2023 —E==F+=-F=+—H
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RalkEEER
China SCE Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is RESEERBERAR(TARR])ER
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company EHEEMKLABEREER AR - A
with limited liability. The registered office of the Company is A A B 5 At 3 = Be iz 74 Cricket Square,
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The addresses of the Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands o 7x
principal place of business of the Company in the People’s AERAPEARKERE ([FRH]) REH
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong are SCE Tower, B 2 B A I 5 B A R B B
No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road, Honggiao Business District, MBS EBARE 168875 2R F HE
Shanghai, China; and Room 2801, Hysan Place, 500 Hennessy B K E & & iR &5 e 5578 500 5% &
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, respectively. BE% 2801 = »
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the FRN AR REMBAR (5B AE
“Group”) were principally engaged in property development, EDEFZEPREEMERE  DER
property investment, property management and project E MEEBENREBEHER -
management in the PRC during the year.
In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of EERE ZIK”& RIS ZIER AR AR
the Company is Newup Holdings Limited, which is incorporated FERER AR - 2R AR RE G A
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"). = (U&%Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁfiﬁ o
Information about subsidiaries MEARER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZEZ=F+ZA=+—HEBELSE
December 2023 are as follows: EXZMBARFBEERHINET
Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
TRAL/ BETRAR KOFER
2% AMREEHY B EREN TEER
Direct Indirect
EE B
Affluent Way International Limited ** BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
BRREBRBRAR RERETHS (T RERR
SCE Intelligent Commercial Cayman Islands HK$19,350,000 - 39¢  Investment holding
Management Holdings Limited *
("SCE CM")
hEREEEERBERER FEHS 19,350,000/ ¢ REER
EEEE)
South China Group (H.K.) Limited ** Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment holding
PHREE(BE)BERAR BB 100787T REBR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2023, are as follows: (Continued)

an\

B IR R AR M T

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

NEIREBER (#)

D= E R (2)

R-ZFE_=F+-_A=+—HBEBLE
BEXE2MBARFBEHINGT : (&)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
SMEL/ BETRAR KDEEMN
£ ERUIeES A RAFE ERAAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Xiamen Zhongjun Industrial Co., Ltd.***  PRC/Mainland China HK$1,778,930,000 - 100 Investment holding and
("Xiamen Zhongjun”) trading of construction
materials
EFh R EEARAR /B AR 1,778,930,000% 7T REBERR
(=PI EEREMH
Shanghai Zhongjun Property Co., Ltd.**  PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
trading of construction
materials
EERRERARAA R/ AR AR 100,000,007 BRBERE
BERSEIH
Beijing Zhongjun Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Property investment
Management Co., Ltd. **"#
IRRRERERERAR HE/PEAR AB#100,000,0007C UESE
Fujian Zhongjun Industrial Co., Ltd.**  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 - 100 Investment holding, property
development and
property investment
BRPREXERAA /B AR AR 1,000,000,00070 REER NEER
EMERE
South Fujian Gold Coast Resort PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000,000 - 45¢  Property development and
Co., Ltd. Shishi**# property investment
ARTEEELSRERN /B AR AR 400,000,00070 NEBRINERE
BRAR**
Shanghai Junbo Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
LERBERERRERAA " BB/ PEAR A% 1,000,007 MERREMERA
Shanghai Junming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,052,841,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.***# property investment
LERBERHERFERAR hE/HEKE AR#1,052,841,0007 NEBRLINERE
Nan'an Junhong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd*#
HRRERNEREFRAR RE /B AR 150,000,000 7 NEER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR

:iﬁ

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. Ralk&EEER @)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B A Rl E R ()
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZEBE_=F+_A=+T—BE@EALSE

BEXrENBARFERIWT : (&)

December 2023 are as follows: (Continued)

— 114 —»

Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
SMEL BETRAR KDEEMR
£ R E BRAFE EEAA TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Hangzhou Junjin Industrial PRC/Mainland China RMB363,787,500 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
MMEBEXERERAR GEVEE N AR 363,787,500 NEERRMERE
Shanghai Zhongjun Chuangfu PRC/Mainland China RMB1,800,000,000 - 61  Property investment
Real Estate Co., Ltd. ***#
LEhRAERMEARAR hE/REKE AR 1,800,000,00070 nERE
Suzhou Junyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB21,085,900 - 100 Property development
Development Co. Ltd.*#
FNRREREREBRAR /R AR AR%21,085,9007 NEER
Chongging Junhuigongchuang Real PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000,000 - 47°  Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.**
(“Chongging Junhuigongchuang”)
ERREAAEHERBERAR Y HE/PEAE AR 800,000,007 NEER
((BERELR])
Qingdao Zhong Yutai Property PRC/Mainland China RMB52,241,100 - 96  Property development
Co., Ltd.**
ERRNRELARAA GEVEE DN AR%52,041,100 7 NEER
Tianjin Junyang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 95  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*#
RERGRREREBRAR /R E AR AR%1,000,00070 NEER
Tianjin Bijun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 48®  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
REEERHEREARDA /R AR AR%30,000,0007C NEER
Suzhou Junda Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
FNRERHERYE ARG /R AR AR 1,000,000 70 MELE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

an\

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

B IR R AR M T

NEIREBER (#)

D= E R (2)

R-ZFE_=F+-_A=+—HBEBLE

December 2023 are as follows: (Continued) BEZMBRARFBHRINWOT : (B)
Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
SMEL/ BETRAR KAREL
£ ERUIeES A RAFE ERAAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Xuzhou Junxing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,437,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*#
BMNEREEHEREBRAR GEVEE N AR 1,437,000,0007C NEER
Shangrao Junmao Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB61,110,650 - 96  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*#
IETRREHEREERARY  RE/PEAE AR#61,110,650 NEER
Chongging Sanchengyihui PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 = 50°  Property development
Enterprise Co., Ltd.**
("Chongging Sanchengyihui")
EE-HHEEEERAR /B AR AE%1,000,000,0007 MEER
(EB=m#=E])
Xiamen Junming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.***#
EFRREHEREARARA = hE/hEAE AR %3,000,000,0007 NEER
Xiamen Taiming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB5,500,000,000 - 70  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*#
(“Xiamen Taiming")
EFRBREHEREBRAR /B AR AR 5,500,000,00070 NEER
(IEMZE])
Zhumadian Junxin Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,208,060 - 98  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
BEESRBRHEREARDAY  HE/HREAE AE%10,208,060 T NEER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BHmRNEE

an\

31 December 2023 — 2 —_=%+_H

=+-7

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2023 are as follows: (Continued)

NEIREBER (#)

D= E R (2)

R-FB_=F+-_A=+—HBEBLE
BEXEZMBARFBEHINGT : (&)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
SMEL BETRAR KDEEMR
£ R E BRAFE EEAA TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Binzhou Junbo Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB350,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
BMNEBEHEREBR AR GEVEE N AR 350,000,000 NEERINERE
Hangzhou Junyi Real Estate Co., Ltd.**  PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property development and
property investment
MMEREZER AR VLN AR 10,000,000 NEBRRNERE
Hefei Junwo Real Estate Development ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 80 Property development and
Co., Ltd.** property investment
AERARHERERRAF /R AR AR 50,000,000 NEERIMERE
Nantong Junze Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 51 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
HRRERHEREERAF GEVEE N AR%20,000,0007C NERRRMERE
Yongchun Junrui Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
KEEREHEREBRAR VLN AR 50,000,000 NEBRRNERE
Fuzhou Junyue Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,126,582 - 99  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
MRS EEREFRAR RE /B AK#10,126,5827C NEZRBMERE
Shanghai Junting Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
(“Shanghai Junting”)
LBEERHEREER AR /B AR AR 10,000,000 NEERIMERE
(TLE%=))
Beijing Junyang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 75 Property development
Development Co., Ltd**
(“Beijing Junyang")
IREEEREREBRAR /R AR AR 100,000,007 NEER

(Mtm5E )

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023

FREBBRARAT T =556



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2023 are as follows: (Continued)

* Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law
*x Registered as wholly-foreign-owned entities under the PRC law
**%  Registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC law

v The English names of these companies in the PRC represent the best
effort made by the management of the Company to directly translate
their Chinese names only for the purpose of these financial
statements as no official English names have been registered.

At 31 December 2023, the equity interests of these companies were
pledged to secure certain bank and other borrowings of
RMBS5,951,819,000 (2022: RMB8,461,842,000) granted to the Group
(note 30(b)).

2 As at 31 December 2023, the equity interests of these companies
were pledged under share mortgage to the holders of the senior
notes of US$500,000,000 at a coupon rate of 7.375% due in April
2024 (the “Senior Notes due in April 2024"), the senior notes of
US$500,000,000 at a coupon rate of 7% due in May 2025 (the
“Senior Notes due in May 2025") ; the senior notes of
US$350,000,000 at a coupon rate of 6% due in February 2026 (the
“Senior Notes due in February 2026") and the senior notes of
US$450,000,000 at a coupon rate of 5.95% due in September 2024
(the “Senior Notes due in September 2024") (note 31).

© Certain companies are accounted for the subsidiaries of the Group
based on the factors explained in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

“ Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 19 December

2023, by notices given by the security agent (the “Security Agent”) of
the original lenders of a facility agreement entered into by the
Company on 4 July 2023 coordinated by The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited with, among others, a
syndicate of, charges over 504,000,000 shares (the “Charged
Shares”) of SCE CM (representing approximately 26.0% of its issued
share capital as at 19 December 2023) held by Happy Scene Global
Limited (“Happy Scene”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in favour of the Security Agent of the Banks, had become
enforceable in accordance with the terms of the relevant security
agreements. Happy Scene had ceased to be entitled to exercise voting
and other rights attached to the Charged Shares.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

1. RalkEEER @

D= E R (2)

R-ZF_=F+-_A=t—HABREE
BEXE2MBARFBEHINGT : (&)

* RIBREDEREMAFREEAA
> RIEREDEREM A EEERA
ok RIBRBEDAREM AT ERE

5 ZERRARRNENEBERARAE
BEERZEMHHREEMEBZANE S
EEPEEPNER  RERYEZM
BHREXER -

. RZEZ=F+ZA=+—8 %52
Al RARE RS B A ARG &%$%l
mETRITIKREMLERARE
5,951,819,00071L;::i-/\E%ﬁZ
8,461,842,000 7T) (£ 30(b)) °

o RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8 %52
ANRAEZEERTELEZEREA
AR _ZT_MNFMAIBHKN
500,000,0003%< 75 7.375% 8 £ =& ([ =
TNENAEHELZER]) RKRZ=FT
— A% A A EH§AY 500,000,000 3 7T 7%
BEER((—ZE_RERANPELE
Bl) RZZTZA"F-_ARHHAN
350,000,000 T 6% BEZHE (= F
TAFZREHEEZEE]D ER=F
—Z &N A F H /450,000,000 T
5.95% @A ZH ([T Mm% N A FIE
BT M (FE31) o

® %:F”ﬂﬁﬁﬂ*/*\ﬁﬂ%%ﬁi’%ﬁ‘f%4ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
MWEZMEREEANSENKE A

v RIRA A ;747¢+ A+hB
ﬂ%m“¢~ RAIRZZBE-_=%+H
MESEFES LSELRITERARRE
RITH AT LB E B ENRERA
MEARE (EHEAED) BN B
ARAIEEEZENBEARLIRRER
~al ([45%]) B A #9504,000,000 A% #
BEERe ((Holm) BER=-F
—EEF+ZATNABEETRAEALD
26.0%) IR - DIRB A BIEE R HED
1ERE] FoRHIENIT - R BT B AT
A R0 IR A0 RO 4% 24 I H At R

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023
REREEEZERERAR /I T - =FFW

— 117 —



—— 118 —

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B BHmRNEE

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2023 are as follows: (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000")
except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARa IR R AR M T

31 December 2023 — - =F+—-_HA=+—H
SETBUR (#®)
2.1 MBEEB)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’'s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and exchange
fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in
profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARa IR R AR M T

31 December 2023 — - =F+—-_HA=+—H
SETBUR (#®)
2.1 MBEEB)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
parent of approximately RMB7.991 billion for the year
ended 31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, the
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes
and domestic bonds of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB35.907 billion, while its cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately RMB4.885 billion.
In October 2023, the Company did not make payment on
an instalment of principal and interest amounting to
approximately US$61 million which had fallen due under
its syndicated loan agreement entered into on 22 March
2021 (the “Event”). The Event has resulted in events of
default pursuant to the respective terms and conditions of
the Group's offshore senior notes and offshore interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings. As at 31 December
2023, the Group’s defaulted or cross-defaulted principal
and accrued interest of certain offshore senior notes and
offshore interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB17.258 billion and
RMB694 million respectively.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material

uncertainty which casts significant doubt over the Group'’s

ability to continue as a going concern. In view of such

circumstances, certain plans and measures have been

taken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the

Group’s financial position which include, but not limited

to, the following:

(a)

The financial adviser appointed by the Company will
assist in evaluating the Group’s current capital
structure and liquidity and exploring a holistic
solution to managing the Group’s overall offshore
indebtedness in order to ease the prevailing liquidity
pressure faced by the Group;

The Company will continue to communicate
proactively with its offshore creditors, especially
noteholders and banks, to identify possible debt
restructuring plans;

The Group will continue to seek re-financing or
extension of its existing bank and other borrowings
and secure new sources of financing;

The Group will timely adjust its sales strategy to
accelerate pre-sales and sales of properties and
speed up collection of sales proceeds; and

The Group will continue to search for potential
buyers for disposal of certain investment properties
and non-core businesses in order to generate
additional cash inflows.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARa IR R AR M T

31 December 2023 —ZE—=F+_-H=+—H
S BUR (@)
2.1 REEEH)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management, which cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2023. They are of the opinion that, taking into account
the abovementioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within twelve months from 31 December 2023.
Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist
as to whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and
measures as described above. In the opinion of the
Directors whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would mainly depend upon the following:

(@  successfully completing the holistic restructuring of
its offshore indebtedness;

(b)  successfully negotiating with banks and financial
institutions on the re-financing or extension of its
bank and other borrowings and securing new
sources of financing;

() successfully implementing sales strategy to
accelerate pre-sales and sales of properties and
speed up collection of sales proceeds; and

(d) successfully disposing of certain investment
properties and non-core businesses.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the abovementioned
plans and measures and operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group's assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

TR ()
22 BHBERBEER 28T
AEBERAEEYHBREY

RERA TR RRIET 2 BB
FAF R R o

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 17

Amendment to
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts
Insurance Contracts

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9— Comparative
Information

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

The nature and impact of the new and revised HKFRSs
that are applicable to the Group are described below:

HKFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard
for insurance contracts covering recognition and
measurement, presentation and disclosure. HKFRS 17
replaces HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The standard
applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-
life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the
type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain
guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features. A few scope exceptions apply. The
overall objective of the standard is to provide an
accounting model for insurance contracts that is more
useful and consistent for insurers, covering all relevant
accounting aspects. The core of the standard is the
general model, supplemented by:

o a specific adaptation for contracts with direct
participation features (the variable fee approach);
and

o a simplified approach (the premium allocation
approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

As the Group did not have contracts within the scope of
HKFRS 17, the new standard had no impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 17 include changes to simplify
certain requirements in the standard and make financial
performance easier to explain. The amendments also
provide additional reliefs to reduce the effort required for
the transition to HKFRS 17. In addition, the amendments
defer the effective date of HKFRS 17 to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier
application permitted. As a result of the deferral, the
HKICPA issued the amendments to HKFRS 4 Extension of
the Temporary Exemption from HKFRS 9 to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023. The amendments had no impact
on the Group'’s financial statements as the Group did not
have contracts within the scope of HKFRS 17.

Amendment to HKFRS 17 is a transition option relating to
comparative information about financial assets presented
on initial application of HKFRS 17, which helps to avoid
temporary accounting mismatches between financial
assets and insurance contract liabilities, and improve the
usefulness of comparative information for users of
financial statements. An entity that chooses to apply the
transition option set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of HKFRS 17. The amendments had
no impact on the Group’s financial statements as the
Group did not have contracts within the scope of HKFRS
17.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARa IR R AR M T

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. BFtHXR @
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 B BERBEEENZE2EH
disclosures (Continued) (%)
Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their BB GETERNE 1SR (BF]) EX
material accounting policy information rather than their ERBEEAERSFTHEERM

significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’'s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make based on those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the
material accounting policy information in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements. The amendments did
not have any impact on the measurement, recognition or
presentation of any items in the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group’s approach
and policy align with the amendments, the amendments
had no impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that
sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. These amendments had no impact on the
Group's financial statements as there were no transactions
fallen within the scope of these amendments on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Amendments to HKAS 12 introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and disclosure
of deferred taxes arising from the implementation of the
Pillar Two model rules published by the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development. The
amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for
the affected entities to help users of the financial
statements better understand the entities’ exposure to
Pillar Two income taxes, including the disclosure of current
tax related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the
periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective and the
disclosure of known or reasonably estimable information
of their exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in
which the legislation is enacted or substantively enacted
but not yet in effect. The Group has applied the
amendments retrospectively. Since the Group did not fall
within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the
amendments did not have any impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements. The Group intends to apply these
revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”)"#
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

(the “2022 Amendments”)"*
Amendments to HKAS 7 and  Supplier finance Arrangements’

HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025

g No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

& As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022

Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion
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31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was
removed by the HKICPA. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in
a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that
relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability can
be settled in its own equity instruments, and that only if a
conversion option in a convertible liability is itself
accounted for as an equity instrument would the terms of
a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current or
non-current. Additional disclosures are required for non-
current liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments shall be applied
retrospectively with early application permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended
to assist users of financial statements in understanding the
effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier
application of the amendments is permitted. The
amendments provide certain transition reliefs regarding
comparative information and quantitative information as
at the beginning of the annual reporting period and
interim disclosures. Based on a preliminary assessment,
the amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group'’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at
a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking. The
amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate the comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount of
translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of
initial application. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group'’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in profit or loss. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for non-financial asset is required (other
than properties under development, completed properties held
for sale, contract in progress, deferred tax assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:
0) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 3. B ANEHIHE (&)

—— 140 —»

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual

value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates

used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land under Over the lease terms
finance leases

Buildings Over the lease terms

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20%

19% to 25%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Transportation equipment 10% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Changes in the values of revalued property and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the property revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

Over the remaining term of the lease
two to 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term of the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land
held as properties under development, they are subsequently
measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with the Group's policy for properties under
development.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an
apportionment of total land and construction costs attributable
to the unsold properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sales proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or
by management estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land
held as completed properties held for sale, they are
subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in accordance with the Group’s policy for completed
properties held for sale.

Service concession arrangement

The Group has entered into a service concession arrangement
with a government body in Quanzhou, the PRC, for the
operation and management of certain sports and recreation
facilities. The transactions related to such service concession
arrangement are accounted for by the Group as follows:

Consideration paid by the Group

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the
extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of the
public services. The intangible asset (operating concession) is
accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for
“Intangible asset (other than goodwill)” below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Service concession arrangement (Continued)
Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in
accordance with the policy for “Revenue recognition” below.

Contractual obligations to restore the sports and
recreation facilities to a specified level of serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as a
condition of its licence. The obligations are (a) to maintain the
sports and recreation facilities it operates to a specified level of
serviceability and (b) to restore the sports and recreation
facilities to a specified condition before they are handed over to
the grantor at the end of the service concession arrangement.
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore the sports
and recreation facilities, except for the upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out
for “Provisions” below.

Intangible asset (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an intangible asset
recognised in profit or loss in the period is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant intangible asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible asset (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Operating concession

Operating concession represents the right to operate certain
sports and recreation facilities and is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over
the period of the operating concession granted to the Group of
30 years.

Investment properties

Investment properties include both completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction.

Completed investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end

of the reporting period.

Investment properties under construction or development for
future use as investment properties are classified as investment
properties under construction. Such properties under
construction are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs, and stated at fair value, subsequent to initial recognition,
at the end of the reporting period when the fair value can be
determined reliably.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
completed investment properties and investment properties
under construction are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of a completed
investment property or an investment property under
construction are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property and equipment and depreciation” above.

When the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with the
Group's policy for “Investment properties”.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and lease of
low value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(@) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s current portion of lease liabilities were
included in other payables and accruals whereas the non-
current portion of lease liabilities were separately disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of properties (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Lease in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. When the Group is an
intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a finance lease or
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition
exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an operating
lease.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial assets at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

3 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment

under the general approach and they are classified within the

following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade

receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified

approach as detailed below.

Stage 1T —

Stage2 —

Stage3 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
accruals, amounts due to related parties, interest-bearing bank

and other borrowings and senior notes and domestic bonds.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and bills payables,
other payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and bills payables, other payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and domestic
bonds are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Senior notes

Senior notes issued by the Company that contain both liability
and early redemption option (which is not closely related to the
host contract) are classified separately into respective items on
initial recognition. At the date of issue, both the liability and
early redemption option components are recognised at fair
value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the senior
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The early redemption option is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior notes are
allocated to the liability and early redemption components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the early redemption option are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the senior notes using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging
relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements
(including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and
how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship
qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following
effectiveness requirements:

o There is “an economic relationship” between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument.

3 The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the value
changes” that result from that economic relationship.

o The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as
that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that
the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge
that quantity of hedged item.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a
hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the
net investment, are accounted for in a similar way to cash flow
hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to
the effective portion of the hedge are recognised in other
comprehensive income while any gains or losses relating to the
ineffective portion are recognised in profit or loss. On disposal
of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains
or losses recorded in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)  Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at the
point in time when the purchasers obtained the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

(b)  Rendering of services

Revenue from the provision of property management and
project management service is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

(c)  Land development

Revenue from land development is recognised at a point
in time, when the customer obtains control of the assets
upon the completion of the related construction work and
the Group has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income and facilities rental income is recognised on a
time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract assets

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the contract terms, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets. They are reclassified to trade receivables when
the right to the consideration becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfer the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfer control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as properties under
development and property and equipment, costs incurred to
fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all
of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that
will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Land development contract

The Group has entered into a land development contract (the
“Land Development Contract”) with the local government of
Nan’an City (the “Nan’an Government”), the PRC, to carry out
the construction and preparation works in respect of land
infrastructure and ancillary public facilities on certain land
parcels in Nan‘an City.

Pursuant to the Supplemental Contract (as defined in note 19),
upon completion of the necessary construction and preparation
works of each land parcel, the Nan’an Government will pay the
Group the construction and other related cost plus a margin.
Such amount will be paid by the Nan’an Government upon the
related land parcels to be sold by the Nan‘an Government
through public auction.

Revenue from the Land Development Contract is recognised at
a point in time when the Nan’an Government obtains control of
the assets and the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, which occurs upon the
completion of related construction and preparation works as
well as the sales of the relevant land parcel. The timing of sales
of each land parcel by the Nan’an Government is uncertain and
out of the control of the Group.

Costs incurred by the Group in connection with the Land
Development Contract comprise the aggregate costs of
construction, materials and supplies, capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowing funds during the period of development
and other costs directly attributable to such Land Development
Contract and are classified as “Contract in progress” before the
relevant land parcels are sold.

Contract in progress is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the
Group's revenue derived from the construction and preparation
work carry out less costs to completion and the costs to be
incurred in realising the revenue based on prevailing market
conditions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“Equity-Settled
Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-Settled Transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

The cost of Equity-Settled Transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme (the “Pension Scheme") operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the Pension Scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the Pension
Scheme is to pay the ongoing contributions under the Pension
Scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme and the Pension Scheme, the Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed and no contribution may be forfeited and used by
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Group's presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") while RMB is used as
the presentation currency of the financial statements of the
Company for the purpose of aligning with the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount
is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on these monetary items
are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates operating outside the PRC are currencies other
than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences are
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of non-PRC entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is
made by management on determining whether a property is
designated as an investment property or a property held for
sale. The Group considers its intention for holding the properties
at the early development stage of the related properties. During
the course of construction, the related properties under
construction are accounted for as properties under development
included in current assets if the properties are intended for sale
after its completion, whereas, the properties are accounted for
as investment properties under construction included in
investment properties if the properties are intended to be held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion
of the properties, the properties held for sale are transferred to
completed properties held for sale and are stated at cost, while
the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation are transferred to completed investment properties.
Investment properties, both under construction and completed,
are subject to revaluation at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

B BHmRNEE

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Valuation of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties held
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of each unit in each phase of development is
determined using the weighted average method. The estimated
net realisable value is the estimated selling price less selling
expenses and the estimated cost of completion (if any), which
are estimated based on the best available information.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may
result in a provision for properties under development and
completed properties held for sale. Such provision requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, the carrying value and
provision for properties in the periods in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Allocation of construction cost on properties under
development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related to the
development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to each phase are allocated to each
phase based on the saleable floor area of each phase as a
percentage of the total saleable floor area of the entire project.
The cost of the unit sold is determined by the floor area in
square metres sold during the year multiplied by the average
cost per square metre of that particular phase of the project.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Whether the presumption that investment properties
stated at fair value are recovered through sale is rebutted
in determining deferred tax

The Group has investment properties located in the PRC which
are measured at fair value. Investment property is property held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. In considering
whether the presumption in HKAS 12 Income Taxes that an
investment property measured at fair value will be recovered
through sale is rebutted in determining deferred tax, the Group
has developed certain criteria in making that judgement, such
as whether an investment property is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time or through sale. The presumption is rebutted only in the
circumstance that there is sufficient evidence such as historical
transaction, future development plan and management’s
intention to demonstrate that the investment property is held
with the objective to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits over time, rather than through sale. Continuous
assessments on the presumption will be made by management
at each reporting date.

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less
than majority of voting rights

The Group considers that it controls certain entities, even
though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights of these
entities, because the Group is entitled to appoint a majority of
directors in the board of directors and accordingly, the Group is
able to control and direct the financing and operating activities
of these entities.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

31 December 2023 — & —=

4.

B BHmRNEE

Ft+-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction, were
revalued at each reporting date during the year based on the
appraised market value provided by independent professional
valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimation, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of property
development, property investment, property management, land
development and project management. For management
purposes, the property development and property investment
businesses are monitored as one operating segment on a
project basis to allocate resources and assess performance. For
financial reporting purposes, the property management
segment, land development segment and project management
segment are combined with the property development and
investment segment as its reported revenue, reported results
and assets are less than 10% of the consolidated revenue,
consolidated loss and consolidated assets of the Group.

The Group’s revenue from external customers from each
product or service is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived solely
from its operations in the PRC, and the non-current assets of

the Group are substantially located in the PRC.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022, no revenue from transactions with a single external
customer was accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total

revenue.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

5. RENEEF @

BEEDURTE -

AEEEEIBEFPHOBAEREER
REMES - MAKBAEAEDIER

BE-E-=4+-A=f+—HR-F
SF+-AS+—ALFER  HE
B — SN KR 5 A R A (5 A

EBBUAE 10% 3KIA L o

6. Uizt K

AEE DT -

2023 2022
—E-=F —EFEqE-—
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETTT
Revenue from contracts with customers X B % F & [E # Uk 2%
Sales of properties Y2 iHE 19,095,549 24,739,180
Property management fees MEERE 1,164,184 989,751
Land development income b F B U A = 201,893
Project management income HE EEBIKA 171,555 260,618
Subtotal A 20,431,288 26,191,442
Revenue from other sources H i 2R R B W 2
Gross rental income from investment 3% & W S 48 & 70 & P YU A9
property operating leases: MW AL
Variable lease payments that do not EURA 5 S = 5
depend on an index or a rate Al S HE I8 26,782 14,888
Other lease payments, including B4 TE BB SN IE ) H A AR & 1 5K
fixed payments 502,898 498,782
Subtotal NEE 529,680 513,670
Total revenue W s 4a5m 20,960,968 26,705,112
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Wz At A KR @)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFERMN KR
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) WEDHFER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—_F_=F1+-H=1—H
LEFE
Property Land Project
Sales of management development management
properties fees income income Total
NEHEE NEEVE IHERRA BEEEKA @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR ARMTR ARRTR AR®T:n

Timing of revenue recognition: W BER RIS :

Goods transferred at a point in time X — B HEZMNE R 19,095,549 - - - 19,095,549
Services transferred over time R REENRE - 1,164,184 - 171,555 1,335,739
Total revenue from contracts REZPE R
with customers ag 19,095,549 1,164,184 - 171,555 20,431,288
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—_FT-——F+-_H=+—H
LEFE
Property Land Project
Salesof  management  development management
properties fees income income Total
NEHE NEERE THRZKA BEEERKA b

RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00
ARBTL ARRTL ARMTI ARRTR ARETR

Timing of revenue recognition: ~ WEBERMNE :

Goods transferred at a point in time X — B EZMNE R 24,739,180 - 201,893 - 24941073
Services transferred over time REREZRRE = 989,751 = 260618 1,250,369
Total revenue from contracts RAZFA Rk

with customers ek 24,739,180 989,751 201,893 260,618 26,191,442
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

0}

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

6. Wz - HUA RS @)
REEFERB W 4

() WEDHFER(E)

2023 2022
—_=E2=-= —=FE-=
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE AR®ETT

Revenue recognised that was FABREHBYESRAEN

included in contract liabilities ERARE !
at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Sales of properties LEXEh

21,700,353 20,445,904

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied when the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property is
obtained by the purchaser.

Land development income

The performance obligation is satisfied when the land
development is completed.

Property management fees and project management
income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and short-term advances are normally
required before rendering the services. Management
service contracts are for periods of one year or less, and
are billed based on the time incurred.

(i) BHEME

e
BOBEDRERREZRIY
ETR U L B EL 1
SR -

T ETERA

BHEEN LT ETT ©

VEEHEEREREHERA

BRI E EBEIR ARG H B FE] ST K
FERR AR BB RS BB K -
EERBERS—FHIATHRE
RARBEEREGE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)

Property management fees and project management
income (Continued)

The amount of unsatisfied performance obligation
principally comprises the balance of contract liabilities,
which are expected to be recognised in one to three years
as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

W~ WA KR Mas )

REEFERIKE#)

(i) BHREEE)

VEREHEERIEREEWRA (&)

BHE-_TZ-_=F+=-A=+—H
K—ZZF-_—_F+=R=+—8H"
HABITHENETREETERS
FeRBEGLS BEER—=

=FAMER
2023 2022
—=E2=-= —=FE-=
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000

B 5E ARBTRE ARETT

Other income and gains H g A R U2
Bank interest income ER1TH BUZ A 98,096 118,906
Consultancy service income JBR 8 AR 755 A 28,727 19,057
Interest income on amounts due FEU A & R B RIE R F B U A

from joint ventures - 23,073
Forfeiture income on deposits received 38 Y2i% & H Uz A 25,993 32,990
Gain on disposal of items of HEYERZMEEB s FE

property and equipment, net 1,471 1,343
Fair value gain on remeasurement of BT ERAE R AIH

investments in joint ventures ®E 2 AR EREE = 69,221
Gain on bargain purchase 28 WS A W 38 = 38,578
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKRTE QR AR 39 169,817 415,139
Gain on disposal of associates S Bt A R A e = 4,745
Foreign exchange differences, net b H = 2% 62,589 -
Gain on repurchase of senior notes B & L ZHE A U &5 131,496 -
Government grants BT B 33,672 54,964
Others Efth 108,957 42,371
Total other income and gains E A A R U 25 42 2R 660,818 820,387
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

FINANCE COSTS

an\

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

7. B

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERITET
2023 2022
—E-=F —_EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREBTT
Interest on bank and other borrowings, MITREMER  BERER
senior notes and domestic bonds RAEHFE 2,703,922 3,357,323
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16(b)) HEBBENFE (HiE16(b)) 1,490 20,162
Increase in a discounted amount of ey 80 7 4 T 2 A O K AS Bk 4
provision for major overhauls arising IR EILEE (B 7k 33)
from the passage of time (note 33) 3,950 3,512
Total interest expense on financial liabilities JEE AR EFF ABRZHEREER
not at fair value through profit or loss N B 4EEE 2,709,362 3,380,997
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI T B (1,217,019) (2,459,873)
Total HET 1,492,343 921,124
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. FRTMA M A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBNBRBAEFE MR GIA) T
(crediting): 5l & IR
2023 2022
—EB-=F B 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B &E AR®BTRT ARETT

Cost of properties sold B EMFEMA 17,475,980 20,183,573
Cost of services provided B IR ARTE A AR 853,829 1,111,065
Depreciation of property and MERZEITE

equipment 14 80,427 70,896
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEEMNTE 14, 16(b) 22,145 58,451
Amortisation of an intangible asset*  #Ef & & # i * 17 167 166
Provision for major overhauls N 33 6,515 6,236
Lease payments not included inthe ~ HEFE(TREFHEEE

measurement of lease liabilities H1E) 16(b) 8,121 5,089
Direct operating expenses (including ~ E4AE &R EZEFT

repairs and maintenance) arising EENEELERY

from rental-generating investment (BREHERRE)

properties 78 130
Auditor’s remuneration % A BN & 7,250 7,954

Employee benefit expenses (including EE®RAAY (BEEEM<

directors’ remuneration (note 9)): (fF5E9)) :

Salaries and other staff costs TERHEME TKA 837,385 927,537
Pension scheme contributions** RIRE T B+ 106,104 194,992
Less: Amount capitalised B BERMER e R (217,611) (312,260)
Total 1B 725,878 810,269
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARa IR R AR M T

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 8. BMaImA @)
2023 2022
—E_-=F —E- =
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B &E ARBTRE AR®ETT

Foreign exchange differences, net fEH =R F5 (62,589) 70,271
Fair value loss on financial assets BEAREE BEEFHFTA
at fair value through profit or BRNEeREENDAR
loss, net BEEEEIRFHE 45,774 55,995
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, o B B A R A e
net R 39 (169,817) (415,139)
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMENEE
properties, net ikl 87,356 442,020
Impairment losses recognised on RE & QR KB E R E#
investments in joint ventures B R BT **
and associates*** 172,392 -
Impairment losses recognised on JRE WL P8 Bt 75 SR IR Y
amounts due from VEREY TE= Rkl
related parties*** 705,307 -
Fair value loss/(gain) on reassessment EH T ER A & A A E’J&ﬁ
at investments in joint ventures ZAREEER (W 61,356 (69,221)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of associates 1 & B & A &) EI’JEEETE/(H&&:L) 29,107 (4,745)
Loss on disposal of joint venture HESEQRINEE 93,273 -
L The amortisation of an intangible asset for the year was included in * FREFEEEETAGEBIREM
“Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and SEREROEERA]|RA -
other comprehensive income.
e There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group *x AREBIEARETIRE A AR
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. KA IR B HFKF -
***  This item was included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated % BDEARERNFAGABHZEREMEZE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. WXk EMAZIET -

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023
REREEEZERERAR /I T - =FFW

+— 185 ——



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the FRN-BELETRA - BERREHE
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong 383(1)(a) * (b) * () & ()& K~ 7] (3% 5&
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure EENRER) ROIFE _BHEKERNE
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as EMS LT
follows:

2023 2022
—EC-=F —EgE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETT

Fees Hwe 906 867
Other emoluments: H il :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREBEYHA = 7,169 6,394
Pension scheme contributions RAREFIFT B 5K 239 200
Subtotal NEF 7,408 6,594
Total fee and other emoluments e M H b B 5 42 %8 8,314 7,461
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EFMT®w
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BUFHITESE
Salaries, ~Discretionary

allowances  performance Equity-settled Pension

and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions Total

e ZHR FERE RELE BIBET
ik Ll REEL BREFRX FHE i @5

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR ARMTR ARBTx ARMTR ARETR

2023 k- St 3
Independent non-executive BIUFRTES :
directors:
Mr. Ting Leung TRERE
Huel Stephen 302 - - - - 302
Mr. Lu Hong Te* BB 124 - - - - 124
Mr. Dai Yiyi 1Y) i 302 - - - - 302
Mr. Mao Zhenhua** ERERE 178 - - - - 178
Total @it 906 - - - - 906
Salaries,  Discretionary
allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
e 2ER XERB Rigks RARTER
ik ENHa BT BRERX st 28R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR AR%TRT ARETr ARETR
2022 —E-_CE
Independent non-executive B FHTES :
directors:
Mr. Ting Leung TRERE
Huel Stephen 289 - - - - 289
Mr. Lu Hong Te mEEEE 289 - - - = 289
Mr. Dai Yiyi 1Y) 289 - - - = 289
Total st 867 - - - - 867
& Mr. Lu Hong Te has resigned as an independent non-executive * EREELEEBEARR R BILFE
director of the Company with effect from 30 May 2023. HITESEITR _ZE_=FH1A
=+HBER-
**  Mr. Mao Zhenhua was appointed as an independent non- > ERELEADEZTRARABE
executive director of the Company with effect from 30 May VHERTEZEIR T _=FH
2023. B=TBHEER-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EFEMET®
(b) Executive directors (b) #ITE=E
Salaries, Discretionary
allowances performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions Total
B 2ER RERS RELE RINEA
ik BRI BMEEL BREFRX st EI @t

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR  AR®TR ARMTn ARMTn ARMTn  ART:n

2023 ot 2
Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung ~ =354
("Mr. Wong") (&%) - 1,339 - - 16 1,355
Mr. Chen Yuanlai REREE - 1,089 - - 16 1,105
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok Ll - 1,089 - - 16 1,105
Mr. Huang Youquan =R A - 1,816 - - 175 1,991
Mr. Wong Lun BRtk - 1,836 - - 16 1,852
Total H = 7,169 = - 239 7,408
Salaries,  Discretionary
allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
G RER XA RiEEE RANRET
ik ENfla BB BRER HENES b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  ARBTR ARETT ARETR AR%TR ARBTR
2022 —E_CE

Executive directors: BIES:

Mr. Wong BRE - 1,279 - - 15 1,29
Mr. Chen Yuanlai BTREE - 1,040 - - 15 1,055
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok =3 - 1,040 - - 15 1,055
Mr. Huang Youquan ~ EWERE - 1,797 - - 140 1937
Mr. Wong Lun EREE - 1,238 - - 15 1,253
Total H - 6,394 - - 200 6,594
No emoluments were paid by the Group as an REE  KEBRA A 1ER N
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or to any SIERMARSE R IMALREE
of the directors as compensation for loss of office during BRI EEE 8B T EMENE
the year (2022: Nil). EREMESMNHEBRE (2%
TTF )
There was no arrangement under which a director waived FR BESEREXRENE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year EMENTEE (ZTE_—F &) °
(2022: Nil).
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
(2022: one) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
four (2022: four) non-director, highest paid employee for the
year are as follows:

10.

e IR R AR Y R

F+-A=+—H

EZE=FMAL

31 December 2023 —F—=

FR AfNEREFALTF R (ZF
—oE-R)RARETERE 2EFH
BN EXE - TR (ZF
—oE R EEERSTHERN
B

2023 2022

—EC=F —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTr ARBTT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYHS 5,938 6,347
Discretionary performance related bonuses 245 78 B8 B & 1L 4L 2,546 825
Pension scheme contributions RORAEFIET B3k 613 498
Total Bt 9,097 7,670

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

e BN IA T HEEHIEES RIFTHAR
HESFEENBRBFIIMT

Number of employees

EE®E
2023 2022
L —_=__
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T & 2,500,000 7 7T 8 4
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 78 7T % 3,000,000 7 7T 1 =

No emoluments were paid to the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year (2022: Nil).

ARERRERARAZETTMHALME
BN & 15 A DN AR SR Y SR Sopn AR
SERRE - REXNEMMEE
RERAE(CE__F &) -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI

an\

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

1. INCOME TAX

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the cities in which the
Group's subsidiaries operate. No provision for Hong Kong

11. FT1E8

B A RO FEER B M O B IR iR AN SR
MEBARKEMAERTHHERHE - i
RAKRBRFALBETSELEME

profits tax has been made as the Group did not generate any R AN - WU R E A S 1S B 4
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2022: HBZEZZF &) -
Nil).
2023 2022
—g=-= e
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREBTx
Current charge for the year: FRENHEARY :
PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") AR Bl f EE PTG ([ PTERL) 633,137 1,217,326
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") f B+ I ([ LI (E R ) 90,588 99,356
Under-provision in prior years, net: BEFERETRFE
Mainland China R B A 136,626 -
860,351 1,316,682
Deferred tax credited for the year (note 32) A&t AELEFR 1B (Ff5E32) (670,847) (296,562)
Total tax charge for the year FABIBRZ 25 189,504 1,020,120

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023

PREEZRERAT/ —F

— =53



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory/applicable rates for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

1. BTS84

RIFA DB R E KR 8 2 B P E 7]
AR HETE, 8RB R AT E R BATS
MERONREMX DRBEERREGFE

to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: BRI S 2 RR AT
2023 2022
—E—-= —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT AREBTT
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AE I, (E51E) (8,211,620) 819,428
At the statutory/applicable rates of BRARBEREREE,HBA
different jurisdictions MERTTHE (2,052,905) 204,857
Lower tax rates for specific cities < TE I T A BUE R R (58,645) (120,245)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of ARBTHENE RSN
previous periods 136,626 -
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax of #8238 1F B AR E R T8
previous periods - 170,364
Profits and losses attributable to &N A) R E R R EG T &
joint ventures and associates E518 (21,286) 113,566
Income not subject to tax BERB A A (75,328) (181,004)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT 03 B A 32 1,504,380 649,745
Tax effect on unrealised profits arising HEFEARAIMENR S EER
from transactions within the Group ABB RN ORBTE (183,898) 108,320
LAT T HIRER 90,588 99,356
Tax effect of LAT deductible for PRC CIT ~ AJfEFR B (> 2 P {3 FE F00m L i
HEMRNHETE (22,647) (24,839)
Tax loss not recognised RERA L IEE B 870,134 =
Effect of withholding tax at 10% BARSERFE B A A
on the distributable profits of A RAEETENEF10%
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries IRE 2,485 =
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BASBERHNEFERN
IR R X 189,504 1,020,120

The share of tax credit for the year ended 31 December 2023
attributable to joint ventures amounted to RMB24,429,000
(2022: tax charge of RMB86,632,000). The share of tax
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2023 attributable to
associates amounted to RMB10,143,000 (2022: tax credit of
RMB1,423,000). Both are included in “Share of profits and
losses of joint ventures and associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

HEZT-_=F+=-A=1+—HLFE
BEEERRMELTRERE S AR
24,429,000 C (ZE - —F : HIERX
AR #86,632,0007T) c BAE_FT =
F+-_A=+—HIEFERLBHEAT
FEMLTIES B A AR 10,143,000 7T
(Z2E-Z—_F HEEEAARK
1,423,0007T) ° A& E T AL E B
FEMEARSEN[ELHEERAR
B N AR R A REEIET -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is
based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 4,222,986,126 (2022: 4,222,437,098) in issue during
the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss) per
share amount presented for the year ended 31 December 2023
and for the year ended 31 December 2022 in respect of a
dilution as the impact of share options outstanding had no
dilutive effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount
presented.
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BEERETERBEE S _=F1+=
B=Z+—BIFENTANARERE (=
T4 HE) o

=

B AT EBREREAA
EiESRET] (FH)

BREARRF (BB SEHIRFRE
RAEEANELERN (BB RFAE
BATE AR 2 INFET 92048 4,222,986,126
B (== = — 4 : 4,222,437,008f%) 51 & °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

Al .
14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y%= M &
Property and equipment Right-of-use assets

NERRE EREEE
Furniture,
fixtures and

Land Leasehold office Transportation Leasehold Office
and building improvements  equipments  equipment Subtotal land buildings Subtotal Total

08
HE %ER

HRET  DERE  BOERE  EWIA Mf BREH 53 i it
RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMBOOO  RWBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBUOOO
AR®TR  ARMTZ  ARMTZ  ARNTZ  ARMTZ  ARMTz  ARMTz  ARMTz  ARETR

At 1 January 2023: RZB-=§-A-R:

Cost A 352,833 103,062 M3 103519 836,746 250,459 26,652 497,111 1,333,857

Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (44,081) (52,932) (131,090) (98,642) (326,745) (22,541) (208,829) (231,370) (558,115)

Net carrying value EA3E 308,752 50,130 146,242 4871 510,001 27918 31823 265,741 71574
At 1 January 2023 RZF==%-A-H

Net of accumulated depreciation NREiNE 308,752 50,130 146,242 4871 510,001 21918 3183 265,741 715,182
Additions FE 21,47 5,484 45,688 13 72,602 - 1,281 1,281 73,883
Acaquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38) W& —EMB A (KisE38) - - 17 - 17 - = = 17
Depreciation Vi (20,115) (47,100) (11,470) (1,742) (80.427) (5,009) (17,136) (22,145) (102572)
Disposals if (17,133) (3.981) (57) (642) (21,813) - - - (21,813)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZF+-A=1-A

Net of accumulated depreciation TRETE 292,91 4533 180,420 2,506 480,380 22,909 21,968 U877 725,251
At 31 December 2023: RZF-=F+=A=1-A:

Cost 78 347,702 99,56 322802 48,588 818,648 250,459 17,933 498392 1,317,040

Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (54,781) (95,023) (142,382) (46,082) (338,268) (27,550) (225,965) (253,515) (591,783)

Net carrying value FEFE 292,91 4533 180,420 2,506 430,380 222,909 21,968 244,877 725,257

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023
REREEEZERERAR /I T - =FFW

+— 193 —



—— 194 —

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

14. W% KK

%18 (#)

Property and equipment Right-of-use assets
VEVE fERREE
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold and office  Transportation Leasehold
buildings  improvements equipment equipment Subtotal fand Buildings Subtotal Total
fRf
HE RER
THEET mxxE  BRERB EHIA It gL BT It &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR  ARETT ARETn  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2022 “®-ETSAST-A
At 1 January 2022: R=E-—§-f-A:
Cost A 352,181 95,615 250,553 116,015 814,364 250,459 246,113 496,572 1,310,936
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (29.239) (48,649) (114,135) (106,147) (298,170) (17,532) (155,387) (172919 (471,089)
Net carying value FEFE 322,982 46,966 136,418 9,868 516,194 232921 90,726 323,653 839,847
At 1 January 2022, R=%==§-A-A
net of accumulated depreciation NREHHE 30,94 46,966 136,418 9,868 516,194 232,927 90,726 323653 839,847
Additions RE 376 51275 79,706 440 131,797 = 539 539 132,336
Deemed acquisition of asubsidiary ~ BRAE-HHBAT
(note 38) (BiE38) 3 = = = 3 = = - 3
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38)  WEKIBAR (Fz38) - - 280 - 280 - - - 280
Depreciation il (14,158) (15,971) (37,205) (3562) (70,896) (5,009) (53442) (58451) (129,347)
Disposals e (1) (5,358) (2,602) (1322) 9723) = = = 9723)
Disposal of subsidiaies (note 39) HERBAF (Ki39) - (26,782) (30355) (547) (57,684) - - - (57,684)
At 31 December 2022, RZBZZF+-A=1-H
net of accumulated depreciation NB2itE 308,752 50,130 146,242 4877 510,001 227918 37823 265,741 775,742
At 31 December 2022: R=F--F+-A=1-H:
Cost WA 352,833 103,062 271332 103,519 836,746 250459 246,652 497,111 1,333,857
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (44,081) (52,932) (131,090) (98,642) (326,745) (22,541) (208,829) (231370) (558,115)
Net carying value FEFE 308,752 50,130 146,242 4817 510,001 27918 31833 265,741 715,742
At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's leasehold land R-F-_=F+-A=+—08 A%KH

and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB483,629,000 (2022: RMB498,070,000) were pledged to
banks to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to

the Group (note 42).

The Group has lease contracts of land and buildings used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
the leased land from the PRC Government with lease periods of
40 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Leases of office buildings
generally have lease terms between two and 20 years.
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15.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR

an\

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. WEM X
Under
Completed construction Total
E2EH HE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T ARETF T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 R-_ZE-_—_#—H—H
REFE 26,147,931 7,902,100 34,050,031
Additions N 304,554 2,290,687 2,595,241
Disposals HE (1,247,225) - (1,247,225)
Transfer from properties under RERTMEBEA
development - 1,424,348 1,424,348
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) Wkt B AR (E38) = 2,643,000 2,643,000
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) B AR (FiFE39) (223,731) = (223,731)
Net gains/(loss) from a ARERABKE(FHE)FE
fair value adjustment (853,287) 827,865 (25,422)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 R_ZE-_—F+_A=+—HEK
and 1 January 2023 —Z-=F-A-HEEFE 24,128,242 15,088,000 39,216,242
Additions =Y 234,496 1,377,727 1,612,223
Disposals HE (351,321) - (351,321)
Transfer from properties under RERTDFEA
development 2,137,777 (2,137,777) -
Transfer to completed properties EHER{ELEEERIE
held for sale (2,097,100) - (2,097,100)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEH B AR (FFE39) (745,860) = (745,860)
Net loss from a ARERBEEFSE
fair value adjustment (3,489,934) (264,150) (3,754,084)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 R=-Z-=F+=-HA=+—H
E\EE@@ 19,816,300 14,063,800 33,880,100
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

15.

B BHmRNEE

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

All of the Group's investment properties are situated in
Mainland China.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2023 based on valuations performed by Hong Kong
JinCheng Surveyors Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuer, at RMB33,880,100,000 (2022: RMB39,216,242,000).

At 31 December 2023, the Group's investment properties with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB18,597,900,000 (2022:
RMB12,847,267,000) were pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings and domestic bonds granted to the Group
(note 42).

The Group's completed investment properties are leased to third
parties and companies controlled by Mr. Wong and his family
members (together with Mr. Wong, the “Wong Family”) under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 16.
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RZFEZ=F+=-A=+—0 &5H
BREEA £ AR 18,597,900,000 7T (=
T — —4F: AR¥12,847,267,000T)
IR EMED IR - SR T AEE
WETRITREMEREIREAES (M
5£42) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR R AR M T

IJF

or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

31 December 2023 —Z - =F+ - H=+—H
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. WEWE ®)
Fair value hierarchy ARERER
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December BHE_Z_=F+_HA=+t—HBkRK=Z
2022, the fair value measurements of all investment properties —_—Ff+_A=+—HIEE T5£H
of the Group were categorised within Level 3 of the fair value FIBIREMENAABIEIREAR
hierarchy and details of their movements are disclosed above. BERE=FH MEZIFER LR
= o
In the opinion of the directors, for all investment properties that EERB BURAEGENREY
are measured at fair value, the properties have been used in ¥ BRiMERDEESRRESR -
their highest and best use.
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement of the INTERBINRAEEREMENRAAE
Group’s investment properties: =
Fair value measurement
using significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)
EAEKX
TAEERABEN
ARETE
(E=4)
2023 2022
—E-=F —=EFEq_—
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Recurring fair value measurement for: T SEHEEE R BEE
Office and commercial properties HINEYSESELYES 30,956,460 36,901,494
Residential properties FEWE - 64,700
Car parking spaces e 2,923,640 2,250,048
Total Bt 33,880,100 39,216,242
During the year, there were no transfer of fair value FRN E—RERB_RAAEFENLE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into #HE BN EFHAZEL (2=

“EF )
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. WEWE ®)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ARERBR#E)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the AT RIEEMEMKBEELERMGE
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FEHABERE
Range
Significant unobservable &E
Valuation techniques inputs 2023 2022
fhEt & EXTABEBAZE bt S kSt s =
Office and Income capitalisation Estimated rental value per 26-430 30-647
commercial approach and market square metre and
properties comparison approach per month (RMB)
WAER (refer to below) FYRREEREFTHSERE
[EE34ES WA BT 5 L BUE (AR®7T)
(RT3 Capitalisation rate 4.6%-6.1% 3%-6%
BARE=x
Price per square metre (RMB) 7,800- 7,000-
BYIRER(ARET) 37,500 38,000
Residential properties  Market comparison approach Price per square metre (RMB) N/A 67,000-
FEME (refer to below) TER 106,000
B BUE BEHRER(ARET)
(RT3
Car parking spaces Income capitalisation Estimated rental value per 250-1,500 300-1,600
FE% method and market car parking space and
comparison approach per month (RMB)
(refer to below) BEFEMLLEAGFASER
WA B 5t BUE (AR®7T)
(RT3 Capitalisation rate 3.5%-4.0% 3.5%-4.5%
BARE=x
Price per car parking space (RMB) 18,000- 50,000~
BEFEMER(ARET) 170,000 256,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The valuations of completed investment properties and
investment properties under construction were based on either
the income capitalisation approach by capitalisation of net
rental income derived from the existing tenancies with
allowance for the reversionary rental income potential of the
properties or the market comparison approach by reference to
comparable market transactions.

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value per
square metre or per car parking space or price per square metre
in isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair
value of the investment properties. Significant increases
(decreases) in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in
a significantly lower (higher) fair value of the investment
properties.

Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated
rental value per square metre and the price per square metre is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the
development profit and an opposite change in the capitalisation
rate.

15.

B IR R AR M T

an\

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

BEYE #)
AREEBR (2

ERNEEMERERKENE 2HE
ERBREZENMCBEHERGEHES
W FERSZEMETEEENES
HEWARE  H2RALRTIERS
KAMSLBRETERE

B¥HARBEAEEUNEFESEE
HEREBLRABENORD) KE8
BIREMEN A EHRKEE N O
D) - BERMeREFHIAAEE M OB L)
K 2GR BEY RN A E LR KRR
2 (3 m) -

—#WE - SFHReEHELRER
SR ERAEL BRI RS
BB B ERF S A B RS
A EHR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

16. LEASES 16. HE
The Group as a lessee rEEEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for properties used in operations. AEEHEERREENMERESR -
Leases of properties generally have lease terms between two MHEEE R R2ESF -

and five years.
(a) Lease liabilities (a)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
other payables and accruals) and the movements during

HESE

J?EaJr;%?ﬁHIETE’ﬁHEELL) B BR

the year are as follows: BERFAZEBIOT
2023 2022
—8=-= —E=- =
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BWEEE 26,750 343,177
New leases MEE 1,281 539
Accretion of interest recognised FABRHH B R
during the year 1,490 20,162
Payments (NS (14,794) (96,943)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEKTE AR (FizE39) = (240,185)
Carrying amount as at 31 December RT+-ZA=+—HKMEHEE
(note 29) (PfFEE29) 14,727 26,750
Analysed into: ST
Current portion mEhE 8,346 9,021
Non-current portion e EIEL0) 6,381 17,729
Total maEt 14,727 26,750
2023 2022
BT =F g
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
Analysed into: AT
Within one year —F R 8,346 9,021
In the second year B _F 2,147 7,236
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FREF
(BEERMF) 4,234 10,493
Total 1Bt 14,727 26,750

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
47 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE #)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEEEREBEAN B
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (b) REZEREBEFBAMNSEN
leases are as follows: N
2023 2022
B =F =
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt ARSI AREBTT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 7 1,490 20,162
Depreciation charge of TREEENERS
right-of-use assets 8 22,145 58,451
Expense relating to short-term LR HAME B A R A 2
leases (included in administrative (5t AfTEZFI )
expenses) 8 8,121 5,089
Total amount recognised in RIEESERNE S
profit or loss 31,756 83,702

(0

The Group as a lessor

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 40(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting

of various office properties, commercial properties and car

parking spaces in Mainland China under operating lease

arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the

tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent

adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.

Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB529,680,000 (2022: RMB513,670,000), details of which
are included in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

(0 HEMBEE2®
5 ¥R 2R M1 7E 40(c)

REBHNRE M

AEBER[EEA

AEBRBEEENTHEHEEREY
¥ (F7E15) - BEFETRE P B KR
WNEYE HEDEREES  -HE
BHR—BTERAPLPIMNRERS I
RERBERMLERBAZEES - A&
EFABERNBESRABARE
529,680,000 (ZZE=——F: AR¥
513,670,0007T) - #I1E& IR ERE B 75
HwEMIEG -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. HHE )

REBEERHBEA @)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

R|BEHR - AEERRKHRBRES
Al H AR 2 T A Y R AT 3R e M B A R

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-

—— 202 —

cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

BRI :

2023 2022
—EC-=F —EgE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T
Within one year —F R 167,179 142,823
17. INTANGIBLE ASSET 17. BEEE
Operating concession BHRER
2023 2022
—E-= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTT
Cost at 1 January, R—A—BZHA -

net of accumulated amortisation ks REt#H 2,653 2,819
Amortisation provided during the year FNTEREE (H5ES)

(note 8) (167) (166)
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H 2,486 2,653
At 31 December; Rt+t-—_A=+—8:

Cost [ 4,861 4,861

Accumulated amortisation RETHEGH (2,375) (2,208)

Net carrying amount REFE 2,486 2,653
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTANGIBLE ASSET (continued)

Operating concession (Continued)

On 28 March 2006, Quanzhou Straits Sports Centre Co., Ltd.
(“Straits Sports Centre”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an operating right concession agreement (the “Operating
Right Agreement”) with the Quanzhou Sports Bureau (the
“Sports Bureau”), a local government body in Quanzhou, the
PRC, at a cash consideration of RMB5,000,000. Pursuant to the
Operating Right Agreement, Straits Sports Centre is granted
with an operating concession (the “Operating Concession”) to
operate and manage certain sports and recreation facilities (the
“Facilities”) in Quanzhou for a period of 30 years (the
“Operating Period”).

This service concession arrangement involves the Group as
operator (i) paying a specified amount as consideration to
obtain the Operating Concession of the Facilities; (ii) operating
and maintaining the Facilities at a specified level of serviceability
on behalf of the Sports Bureau for the Operating Period; and (iii)
receiving a right to charge users using the Facilities. The Group
is entitled to operate and manage the Facilities, and is entitled
to all the income associated with the operation of the Facilities.
However, the relevant government bodies as grantors will
control and regulate the scope of services provided and the
prices charged by the Group during the Operating Period, retain
ownership, and be entitled to any residual interest in the
Facilities at the end of the Operating Period.

The cost of the Operating Concession is being amortised over
the Operating Period.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

7. B & E )

BErEERE®w)

R-ZZEERE=A=-F+/N\B K&EEH
—FH B AR RINTIEKES R LER
ARl(EKEEHRL])ERMNTES D
(2B R (R R MAE I 5 BT HE)
LAZR & KB AR #5,000,0007C5] 3 —
BRETLEERE ((KEERBED - 1R
BEEEG®  SREFPOERLL
EREBMNEMAE TEE RIRER
HE ([FZ R HE]) IR RT 48 & 1 ([FFRT A
SR BHIZ0F (&) -

ZERGEFEZESRASE (FR
REN) WXNEFEE2R (ERKRE)
N Z S RIS 21 ¢« ()&
LHEARRBERLERBEEZER
i AHERT A —E A EERBAKE
RiEEAZERENERERE -
AEEAREEREEZERIEBIL A E
WENEREEZFREABOAERA -
A RELHRE - BRART®E (F
BT A) SES KR E FriE R &
HERAEERRNER  REZER
EEMEELERESREEHHEER
By B (o) R R 2

RF SR AN LN -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

18. EEAYE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —=E-
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
Properties under development expected TEHA K 78 51 BARR T4 A /Y 2% & R
to be completed: L
Within normal operating cycle included EEEEERBANIERBEE
under current assets 83,747,682 92,717,968
Beyond normal operating cycle included B3 IE % &8 A 2912 51 {E
under non-current assets EmENE E 8,625,734 10,169,792
Total HEt 92,373,416 102,887,760
Properties under development expected TEEAAS PR IE & 8 4R HR & B
to be completed within normal operating 2k I ZEE R4 % -
cycle and recovered:
Within one year —F R 41,009,599 83,579,334
After one year —F1& 42,738,083 9,138,634
Total #Et 83,747,682 92,717,968

At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s properties under
development, including the relevant land use rights, with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB42,754,679,000 (2022:
RMB49,683,439,000), were pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 42).

Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the PRC Government with lease periods of 40 to 70
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. CONTRACT IN PROGRESS

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

19. EE2TEER

2023 2022
—E-= —=FE-=

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

M FE ARET R ARBET T

At 1 January Rn—H—H 129,132 349,184
Additions 0 158,605 264,678
Charged to profit or loss HEFERNER = (155,346)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE A A 39 (134,110) (329,384)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 153,627 129,132

On 18 August 2009, the Group entered into the Land
Development Contract with the Nan‘an Government to carry
out the construction and preparation works in respect of land
infrastructure and ancillary public facilities over certain land
parcels in Nan'an City. Pursuant to the Land Development
Contract, although the Group does not have the ownership title
or land use right to such land parcels, when the land parcels are
sold by the Nan’an Government through public auction, the
Group is entitled to the sales proceeds arising from such land
sales.

Contract in progress represents costs incurred by the Group in
connection with the construction and preparation work of the
relevant land parcels under the Land Development Contract and
comprises relocation and demolition work, costs of construction,
materials and supplies, capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of development and other
costs directly attributable to the Land Development Contract.

On 22 February 2016, the Group entered into a supplemental
Land Development Contract (the “Supplemental Contract”)
with the Nan’an Government, pursuant to which certain terms
and conditions of the Land Development Contract were revised.
In accordance with the Supplemental Contract, the Group
continues to carry out the construction and preparation work in
respect of land infrastructure and ancillary public facilities over
certain land parcels in Nan‘an City. The Nan'an Government will
pay the Group the construction and other related costs plus a
margin. Such amount will be determined and paid by the
Nan’an Government upon the related land parcels to be sold by
the Nan’an Government through public auction.

R-ZBZAFENATNR  AEEHEFE

ZHFEIN LA ER  URERL
ﬁ% T EEREREREEQA R

RIBETER R EFBTIE - RIB L0
BAR BHAANKEEIL EZF RN
B LIERE BFELRFRS
NFRMELERBRE  AEEKE
RSDEMLR L EMBHNEEMSER
I8 o

EZTREARRRAEE R AE R E
BREBIRz T RAESRMEEN
A BREBEBRIFETFE  BEK
A-ME - B RERMBNERE
EESMENMBEERARZLBFHE
EREREENEMAARN -

RZE—AR"F-A=-+=H AEEH
FALZBAI L tipEaR ([Hx
AR - EBilt - BEBRAEER] Lt
BERNSE THRARGE - BE#TE
Al NEBEEERERETT A THE
MERREREERA LR BETERR
EHETE MEXBNSZAARNEEZE
B FTEE A M ER R E A B AR E
FE o Z B B = BUT P % B
BARMES LAARMEERE R
K
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of share of net assets is
approximately RMB3,130,882,000 (2022: RMB6,415,749,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately RMB130,806,000 (2022: nil).

The amounts due from/(to) joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. In accordance with the
terms of the joint venture agreements, all joint venture partners
are required to provide loan capital to the joint ventures in
proportion to their shareholdings under equal terms. Repayment
of any amount of the loan capital requires unanimous approval
from the joint venture partners subject to the sufficiency of
assets and retained profits of the joint ventures. Accordingly,
the loan capital forms an integral part of the Group’s equity
investments in the joint ventures.
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REZERAAINKRE

2023 2022

—EC=F —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBET T
Share of net assets (note) e & EFRE () 3,130,882 6,415,749
Due from joint ventures U & &R RIFKIE = 843,593
Due to joint ventures EftE &R BIFKIE (11,913) (11,913)
Total Bt 3,118,969 7,247,429

Note: B 5

R-B-_=F+-F=+—8  EHEAEELEDN
BRME(EA) A AREE 3,130,882,0007C (— T — —4:
AR #6,415,749,0007T) @ 1k R EBEEL
AR #130,806,00070 (Z T = =4 : £&) -

s (fT) & & RRIFRIAREER -
REREBRERE -RIESEQAMZE
MR - TR &R A ERBERGRR R
HE PRt EREAGZ LR ERA -
MGEMEERELATEMBEALERHF
M—HRABARZRNZLAERREER
BRETHEENRKDENE - ALt Z
LERERNGRASAREHZLAZER
Al E m — AR -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

an\

B IR R AR M T

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

SREINIRE (#)

20. RE

Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are as follows: AEEEARAERARIMFRBLOT
Percentage
Place of of beneficial
Particulars of incorporation/ interest
issued and registration attributable  Principal
Name paid-up capital and business to the Group  activities
BETR B3l REEES

£ HREREE AR THEIE FEER

Sure Source International Limited US$118,018,100 BVI 45 Investment
("Sure Source") holding

IERERER AR 118,018,100 % T RERLES 45 REZK
(TMEHR])

Hangzhou Juli Enterprise RMB100,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 32 Investment
Management Co., Ltd.** holding
("Hangzhou Juli”)

MMEBLEERARAR AK¥100,000,000 70 hE R AR 32 REER
(TRMEED

Hangzhou Junxing Property Co., Ltd.** RMB175,560,000 PRC/Mainland China 31 Property
("Hangzhou Junxing”) development

MMBEREXBERATF AR 175,560,000 7T B/ hEAR 31 MERE
(T EE &2 )

* Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law 3 BREPEEEEIMAEREEAF

9 The English names of these companies in the PRC represent the best § ZEPRRAMNEXEEERARAE

BEERZEVBRERAEMBEANEN
ERBEER XA RERYEEM
BEXAHE -

effort made by the management of the Company to directly translate
their Chinese names as no official English names have been
registered.

FREIREH R AR R ME R R EE
KA -

The above investments are held indirectly by subsidiaries of the
Company.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI

an\

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

. oy L 3 =
20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) ~ 20. A& & A A KIIZ & (&)
Notes: Bt 5 -
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information in TRITEARBERRREEERNEG E QAN
respect of Hangzhou Juli and its subsidiary (collectively, “Hangzhou Juli MMNBEEREMBAR (BB MNEEEE]) -
Group”), Sure Source and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Sure Source Group”) EE R EM B AR (GRENERESR ) RN
and Hangzhou Junxing, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies I 5B R S R B S5 BUOR EeE &
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements: B R ERER P REELSR :
(@)  Summarised financial information in respect of Hangzhou Juli Group, @ BERMNBEEER - IBREE RN
Sure Source Group and Hangzhou Junxing B L B 75 LB
2023
—E_=F
Hangzhou Sure
Juli Source Hangzhou
Group Group Junxing
mNBEER IER & N Bk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR%T R
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 3,455 5,872 56,379
Other current assets HibRB & &= 1,371,996 414,405 2,473,684
Current assets MENE E 1,375,451 420,277 2,530,063
Non-current assets FEMBEE 27 2,049,943 17,347
Other current liabilities HinB B E (1,104,038) (576,333) (2,281,157)
Current liabilities BB fE (1,104,038) (576,333) (2,281,157)
Non-current liabilities FErRBEE - (643,965) =
Net assets BEFE 271,440 1,249,922 266,253
Reconcdiliation to the Group's directly held HEAREENZE SN EH
interest in the joint venture: BEEREER Z%TEE
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEMEEE D 32% 45% 31%
Share of net assets BEEEFE 86,860 562,465 82,618
Carrying amount of the investment ZIR AR REAE 86,860 562,465 82,618
Revenue & 9,261 49,224 307,498
Bank interest income RITHE M A 44 53 -
Depreciation e (30) (41) (22)
Tax expense FIE ST (319) (19) (33,281)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERER(E518) 949 6,484 (32,089)
Other comprehensive income Hn2mEmBA - 820 -
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

nv—F

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

20. REZNBIRIEE @)

BIeE - (&)

B HRRM T

Summarised financial information in respect of Hangzhou Juli Group, by AERMMNBEBEEE . IERSEERMNIM
Sure Source Group and Hangzhou Junxing 5k B &) B 75 5 R ARE
2022
—E-—
Hangzhou Sure
Juli Source Hangzhou
Group Group Junxing
mINEEE JIER &= 1 B4 £
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETT ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents HEeMREeEEY 13,935 24,757 260,237
Other current assets Hthneh & E 1,390,528 424,603 1,926,567
Current assets mBEE 1,404,463 449,360 2,186,804
Non-current assets SEREBEE 57 2,050,023 17,375
Other current liabilities At a & (1,136,046) (784,249) (1,484,513)
Current liabilities B A fE (1,136,046) (784,249) (1,484,513)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - (483,059) (350,000)
Net assets BEFE 268,474 1,232,075 369,666
Reconcdiliation to the Group's directly held BAKERZAEEQFH
interest in the joint venture: BEEREER Z%TEE
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEMEER D 32% 50% 30%
Share of net assets e EEFE 85,912 616,038 110,900
Carrying amount of the investment ZEERNERmE 85,912 616,038 110,900
Revenue Wz 616,081 27,093 2,093,605
Bank interest income H|ITHEWA - 64 =
Depreciation e (5,230) (8,298) (3,311)
Tax credit/(expense) BEER (X H) (38,967) 45,742 (137,812)
Profit/(loss) for the year F R Al (E18) 115,023 (131,497) 413,434
Other comprehensive income Hib2EUA - 4,195 -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of

the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material:

20. REZERNRINEE @)

Bt : (48)

(@ TRIFAEELFBAUEANEER

B O BER

2023 2022
—E-=HF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Share of the joint ventures’ loss BEEER
for the year, net A (184,560) (530,063)
Share of the joint ventures’ other EiEEERRMNEMEEBA
comprehensive income 38 5,769
Share of the joint ventures’ total EBEEERRNEHEBEE
comprehensive loss (184,522) (524,294)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBREERAAMREREDATE
investments in the joint ventures 2,387,026 6,434,579

21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES A RN L0 =

2023 2022

ZEZE —_=__
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Share of net assets (note) FEEEEFE (KT 864,167 1,134,084
Due from associates JiE Uk Bft & N B FRIE = 117,551
Total 15 864,167 1,251,635

Note: B RE -

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of share of net assets is
approximately RMB864,167,000 (2022: RMB1,134,084,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately RMB41,586,000 (2022: nil).

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. In accordance with the terms of the
shareholder agreements, all shareholders of the associates are
required to provide loan capital to the associates in proportion
to their shareholdings under equal terms. Repayment of any
amount of the loan capital requires unanimous approval from
the shareholders subject to the sufficiency of assets and retained
profits of the associates. Accordingly, the loan capital forms an
integral part of the Group's equity investments in the associates.
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21.

22.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually
material:

e AR

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H
21. REEE R RINIRE (#)

TRIRAEE LI EREA DY SR
AAHNMBER

2023 2022
—E—= — ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) for FEMEE R RINFE NIRRT, (EER)
the year 276,431 (19,294)
Share of the associates’ total JE(REtE AR MEEW A (E8)
comprehensive income/(loss) 4z 276,431 (19,294)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEEREE QR HIEE
investments in the associates R 48 864,167 1,251,635

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

All the completed properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB1,743,000,000 (2022: Nil) were pledged to secure certain
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 42).

22. BHELEEERME

CIRCEsA (kARSI E 3ok % ]
I FEMENRIEETIE -

RZZE-_=F+-_A=+—H  £x&5E
BREES £ AR 1,743,000,000 (==
T ENETRELHEEEXY
%Efﬁﬁ#ﬁ RS RTASENS TR
TREMER(MFE42) ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's trade receivables arise from the sales of properties,
leasing of investment properties and provision of property
management services.

Consideration in respect of the sales of properties is payable by
the purchasers in accordance with the terms of the related sale
and purchase agreements. The Group normally requires its
customers to make payment of monthly/quarterly charges in
advance in relation to the leasing of investment properties and
provision of property management services. The Group generally
grants a rent-free period of three months to the lessees of the
Group's investment properties, extending up to six months for
major customers.

Since the Group’s trade receivables are related to a number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. All trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the revenue recognition date and
invoice date, is as follows:

23. E 5 el sIE

AEENE S RBKBERBHEDE
HEREMERRHMEEIRR -

FRMEHENKERBETRREBE
BEpZNGERXN AREBEHERE
MERREHRDEEERSEA - —REK
BEPBR/EERANK - REE—KR
ARENFEABRBART=MANRHE
H TEEPARRESZZNEA -

HRAKENE 5 R UGIRE 35 B
BEFEM BYBEREESETER -
AEBYARZFERFTAETMAMER
m REEEMINGEEEE MEHE
SRWKBRA /RS -

R|BEHR - B 5 REFAN KK DT
(R AR MEREHARE) 0T

2023 2022

—EZ= g
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBTT
Current to 90 days BNEAZ= 90 H 113,710 441,486
91 to 180 days 91 HZE 180 H 60,892 15,320
181 to 365 days 181 H&E365H 20,956 2,933
Over 365 days 365 H A E 2,772 6,611
Total FEy 198,330 466,350

The financial impact of ECLs for trade receivables was
insignificant for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_-A=+—H
24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24, TA{7X38 « H b E U T8 &
OTHER ASSETS \ﬁﬂ,éfF
2023 2022
—E=-= —_=F=_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR®FTT
Prepayments (note) BT FRIE (M 5E) 6,425,250 5,595,241
Deposits b 336,451 779,766
Other receivables E fih fE Y FR I8 5,818,375 7,028,687
Proceed from pre-sales of properties & A7 BUT K&
deposited in account of local HEREBRPNEES
governments and related agencies S EES /G 2,331,137 —
Cost of obtaining contracts ESE R 857,436 725,906
15,768,649 14,129,600
Non-current portion IR BB (705,926) (814,465)
Current portion mBEB 1D 15,062,723 13,315,135

Note: The balance included prepayments for the acquisition of land use
rights in Mainland China amounting to RMB699,953,000 as at 31

December 2023 (2022: RMB794,707,000).

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to

receivables for which there was no recent history of default and

past due amounts. As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December

2022, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

M R —_=F+_A=+—HNE&HE
FE A R B A bt L B - b {5 R A RO TEL A
I AR # 699,953,000 (2 ==
AR ¥794,707,0007T) °

EHRANBIEN S R E E B AT
fﬂmﬁﬁ&*ﬁ%%%%wﬁﬁ%°
RZTE_=F+_A=+—HBEK=Z

“THE+ZA=1—8 ZEBEREKL
AR B D
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

25. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 25.

An analysis of the balances with related parties is as follows:

FEAS & < R Bk 75 KO

SRRANE 5 SRR D AT AN

2023 2022
—E-=F —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Due from related parties: JEE W5t B8 B 5 FRIE
Companies controlled by the Wong Family B & KK KEZE B A 328 307
Joint ventures CR-WNC 3,954,967 3,910,872
Associates /NG 109,936 3,246
Total et 4,065,231 3,914,425

Due to related parties: FE 1+ BRI 5 TR

Companies controlled by the Wong Family & K &R & %'J AN 33,639 15,264
Joint ventures ek /N 1,820,027 1,918,424
Associates 5t/ 734,750 649,620
Total et 2,588,416 2,583,308

The balances are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free
and are repayable on demand.

None of the amounts due from related parties is either past due
or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default. As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

R Eﬁﬁ%)’b#fé%lifﬁ IR 2B
FBZREREE

I 4 e W RA B 7 SR @ BRI SR E o Bt
HEHRABIEN SR A E BRI &R EER
LHENERREEE R_T=_=F
+ZA=F+—BEkZZTE==F+=A
=+—H ' ZEERHLETEREMD -

f’&‘tﬁﬁiﬁ,ﬁ“é Al

2023 2022
—E_-_= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTRE ARETT

Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRAEE AR E - 53,434
Unlisted investments, at fair value EETRE  EANE 344,135 378,539
Total FEES 344,135 431,973

The above listed and unlisted equity investments were classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as the
Group has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss
through other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

31 December 2023 —F—=

27. RELBESZEY X

BB RRNETE

an\

F+-A=+—H

BR 1

2 A S AR iklE /N

2023 2022

—E—= — ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
Cash and bank balances R RIRITFERE 5,496,426 12,053,558
Time deposits TE HATE 5K 952,500 2,962,500
Subtotal NET 6,448,926 15,016,058
Less: Restricted cash (notes (a)) B XRRHIER 2 (MR @) (1,564,401) (3,866,093)
Pledged deposits (note (b)) BT (T 5E (b)) - (31,012)
Pledged time deposits (note (c)) B B FE R (B EE () - (2,000,000)
Cash and cash equivalents (note (d)) He RReEEY (FFEd)) 4,884,525 9,118,953

Notes:

()

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC and agreement with
banks, certain subsidiaries of the Group are required by banks to
place certain amounts of guarantee deposits at designated bank
accounts. The deposits can only be used for purchases of construction
materials and payments of construction fees for the relevant property
projects and other designated purposes.

The bank deposits were pledged to secure general banking facilities
and bills payable granted to the Group (note 42).

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s time deposits of
RMB2,000,000,000 were pledged to banks in respect of the
commercial bills of a business partner for the biddings of land parcels
for future development of the Group. As one of the biddings was
unsuccessful, the pledged deposits of RMB1,000,000,000 were
released by the bank subsequent to the reporting period (note 42).

Balances included certain amounts of pre-sale proceeds of properties
required to place at designated bank accounts as guarantee deposits
for designated purposes as required by local government authorities,
but such deposits were not restricted by the banks. As at 31
December 2022, such deposits amounted to RMB3,479,261,000.

]

(a)

()

RY

R 4% o B AR B A AR e B SR 1T O 5 =%
TERAEEETHERARK —E&8E
MRESFABRERTERS -ZZ2E
AARNBERZEMB R NEEYXEER
BHZEERREMEERR -

ZERITEARCERAUDSETFAEE
B —RBITEEEEREMSZE (F
42) o

RZE-_—_F+=_A=+—8 ~5H
& T #1755 A R % 2,000,000,000 7T &
ﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁ%%éﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@%’

NHHT i EAEEREBERZA -
MEH%  RITEREF—EF HT&
T 1% % B $5 18 77 58 A R % 1,000,000,000
7T (FfsE42) °

SREE BRI B HBUT R E 7 AEERTT
%ﬁ#ﬁ%i%ﬁﬁmim%¥%ﬁm
EEF BREFATZETRES -
—E_=F+=ZRA=+—8" &%ﬁm
B AR 3,479,261,000 7T °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H
27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RM6,405,803,000 (2022: RMB14,855,496,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. All
the bank balances and time deposits are deposited with

27. BERBELEFEEY - XREH
He e BEER @)

REBEIR - AEBUAREHIERNIE
ERIBIOTTEREHR R EHRTRBARE
6,405,803,0007T (ZZE==4F : ARK
14,855,496,0007T) ° A R 7] B A
HBHEMEY R RIBFRE A
(HNEE B IRAGHI) RCHERE - EE RTE
ERHRTE) NEE ] FEBEMEETI
EEBNRITHARBLIRAHEME o

RITERIRIBEE B RITFERFREZE
BEIAE - REERFR RS —
NF—RE=BATE  EER/TAE
B 2 BN IR & F kM E - Wik 48 #E xS B
T EATF ST E 2 AR BRENA B o FT AR
1717 3R 48 88 S 8 B AT /39 13 PO 3 /8 3

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. BRI smAGEERIRIT -
28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 28. BEZRNRIBLRER
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end RBER - BZRENRERERNE
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: RIREZAMASTAT :
2023 2022
—E-= -
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Within 1 year —F K 11,103,591 10,409,743
Over 1 year —F P E 546,927 411,791
Total 5t 11,650,518 10,821,534

The trade and bills payables are unsecured and non-interest-
bearing and are normally settled based on the progress of
construction.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

H & 5

XA N et 2

)Si/m\ﬂiéﬁ

2023 2022
—E—= — ==
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
= ARE T ARETF T
Contract liabilities SRAE (a) 80,838,861 82,443,359
Deposits received Bz & 1,296,947 1,817,920
Accruals EErE A 894,570 401,273
Advances from non-controlling FEVEAR AR SR B K
shareholders (b) 2,353,077 1,863,290
Other payables E {th fES FR08 (0) 4,254,914 5,095,378
Lease liabilities HEAR 16(a) 14,727 26,750
89,653,096 91,647,970
Non-current portion — lease liabilities JERBN 21D — HEEE (6.381) (17,729)
Current portion BB 89,646,715 91,630,241
Represented by: (A
Contract liabilities ERAE 80,838,861 82,443,359
Current portion of other payables Hi e RIEREFTERAR
and accruals &1 8,807,854 9,186,882
Total st 89,646,715 91,630,241
Notes: B eE

Contract liabilities include advances received from buyers in
connection with the Group's pre-sales of properties. The net increase
in contract liabilities was mainly due to the increase in advances
received from customers in relation to the sales of properties at the
end of the year, offset by the decrease in advances received from
customers upon recognition of revenue in the current year when the
purchasers obtained the physical possession or the legal title of the
relevant properties.

Other than certain advances from non-controlling shareholders of
approximately RMB393,000,000 as at 31 December 2022, which are
interest-bearing at 8.0% per annum, the remaining advances are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

(a)

(b)

(@

ERREEEEAEERENEFRRN
EPUWHRHRIA - & R & EFE M E
EHRNFRIEEYEHEE P UE
MR IR BT RS HBEMXEY
HEELCIAMEREEBY XEEER
5 [7) 25 5 YR R IRRL A TR 8 o

%%:%::¢+:HE+*H%%¥

REAEERBEREBRIOARE
393 000, ooom%ziﬂfs 0% &t & -
HiBRaEER B RBREREE -

HENRIE AR B RARERER -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. 5T EIR H A5 %
BORROWINGS
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-CF
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
per annum Maturity RMB’000 per annum Maturity RMB'000
HES) HES
FFIE (%) AHE ARETR EFIE (%) I#HB  ARETR
Current ik
Bank loans —secured  $RITE R — HHIE 4.30-11.88 2024 8,151,188 3.20-8.08 2023 10,089,294
Other loans —secured ~ EfEFH —HH#HHE  8.50-12.00 2024 1,666,788  9.00-10.00 2023 653,665
Total — current REBE 9:817,976 10,742,959
Non-current FERE
Bank loans — secured  SRITE R — AHIE 3.20-8.20 2025-2038 9,577,784 3.20-8.20 2024-2036 14,653,106
Other loans —secured ~ AMER —F#HA  2.80-930  2025-2026 697,800  9.30-12.00 2024 1,599,047
Total —non-current  JEREIARE 10,275,584 16,252,153
Total o 20,093,560 26,995,112
2023 2022
—E_-=F —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBET T
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: JEEZEIRITER :
Within one year or on demand —FRHIFEK 8,151,188 10,089,294
In the second year EFEE 5,649,905 9,464,508
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEhF (BEEREWRE) 2,576,084 3,819,267
Beyond fifth years ERAF 1,351,795 1,369,331
Subtotal NEE 17,728,972 24,742,400
Other borrowings repayable: EEEEMERR
Within one year or on demand —FRIFEK 1,666,788 653,665
In the second year F_4F 697,800 1,599,047
Subtotal INE 2,364,588 2,252,712
Total S 20,093,560 26,995,112
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30.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Certain of the Group's bank and other borrowings are secured by the
Group’s bank deposits, property and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development and completed properties
held for sale, details of which are disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings with an aggregate amount of RMB5,951,819,000 (2022:
RMB8,461,842,000) were secured by share charges in respect of the
equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group, details of which
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Except for certain bank and other borrowings of RMB1,147,471,000
(2022: RMB1,127,006,000) and RMB3,567,969,000 (2022:
RMB4,212,882,000) as at 31 December 2023 which were
denominated in HK$ and United States dollars (“US$"), respectively,
all of the Group’s bank and other borrowings were denominated in
RMB.

At the end of the reporting period, except for certain bank and other
borrowings of RMB4,487,860,000 (2022: RMB4,099,552,000) with
fixed interest rates, all of the Group’s bank and other borrowings bear
interest at floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank and other borrowings of
RMB4,488,890,000 (2022: RMB5,339,888,000) were secured by a
specific performance obligation imposed on the Wong Family and
pursuant to which (i) the Wong Family must remain the single largest
shareholder in the Company; (ii) the Wong Family must hold legally
and beneficially and directly or indirectly 35% or 40% or more of all
classes of the Company'’s voting share capital and/or must directly or
indirectly control the Company; and (iii) Mr. Wong or a member of
the Wong Family must remain to be the chairman of the Board of the
Company.

Pursuant to agreements of some of the Group’s borrowings, any
default under the Group’s senior notes or interest bearing bank and
other borrowings will trigger the relevant borrowings becoming
repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2023, the Group was in
default of certain senior notes and certain interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, causing senior notes and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings of a total amount of RMB17,258,311,000 (2022:
Nil) having become repayable on demand. The above-mentioned
borrowings that under events of default are presented under current
liabilities in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2023.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 — - =F+—-_HA=+—H

30. sTERIT N EME K &

B 5

(@ AEENETROREGCEFOAAEE
RIRITER  MERRE  REWE %
REPMERFELE DR EEER
BRAFHIE N ARG M ISR M 42 W -

by RZFEZ=F+=-A=+—80 £5H
WETRITREMEREARE
5,951,819,000 L (ZEZ—F : ARM
8,461,842,0007T) HASEEE THE A
AR AESHORMDERR  FHEHAR
REBEHRERMEE ©

(0 BRZZEZ=F+-A=+—H®HET
RITRHEMERARY1,147,471,000 7T
(ZZ=——4: AK¥1,127,006,000) &
AR #3,567,969,0007C (ZE ==
AR #4,212,882,0007T) 2 5l BA i 7T &
E([Ex]) JEN  NREBKFATA R
TREMETIEUARESE

(d) RBEHR BETETREMERA
R #4,487,860,000C (Z T = — 4 : A
R % 4,099,552,000 7T) LA B & F & &5t &
N REBBMETARITREMERYE
FEFIREEE -

() M-ZTE-_=F+-_F=+—8 X£E
7 ER 1T R H i B 3R A R % 4,488,890,000
T (ZZ——4%: AR¥5,339,888,0007C)
HEKRENEERNS EERE &
b (VKR ENBEE AR D] ME—
EARE  (NERRELERERESR
kEEXBEREARARMAHRENAR
= RERR AN 35% 55, 40% 3K A Ko Sk B
BEESMEEEFANRQR  Ki) & kLK
FERRKEP I B B ABEETAN
RAEEEERF -

(f) BEAEBEBDERHGZ  AEEEL
EZEgE N ERITREMES AIETE'JEH
ERAREBERERERERE
—E=Ff+ZRA=+—8" $%lm
ETEREEBREETHAERITREME
REEEDN BHEFTARE
17,258,311,0007C (Z T = =4 : £&) m
FTERTREMERBREKREE -
EZZT-_=%+=ZHA=+—8" J:Li%
HNEBETHEREINRERNEBLE N
FHK/REEE’J/;NEJJELIET °©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS 3. BEZEBENEBEARNES

—— 220 —

2023 2022
“ECCE “E-CF
Principal ~ Contractual Principal ~ Contractual
at original interest at original interest
currency rate (%) currency rate (%)
‘million  perannum Maturity RMB'000 'milion~ per annum Maturity RMB'000
HEY Bk
R¥AE £z RERS £HE
BER (%) U8B ARETR BET (%) HHE ARETR
Senior Notes duein ~~ —Z=MFMAZ|H
Aprl 2024 BEEE US$500 %70 1375 2004 3509732 USSS00%TT 7375 2004 3419467
Senior Notes duein~~ —Z-=FMAZ|H
Aprl 2023 Brzi - - - - USS00ET 125 03 3419846
SeniorNotesdueln ~ —E-RERAHE
May 2025 BERE US$500 570 7 2005 3499267  USSS00%TT 7 2005 3403779
SeniorNotesdue i~ —E=AEZA5IE
February 2026 RrZiE USS350% 6 2026 2446319 USS350%T 6 2026 2,380,307
Senior Notes duein ~~ —Z=IFAAEIH
September 2024 BRZE US§450 %7t 5.95 2024 3,087,553  US§450%TT 5.95 2024 2,927,949
Domestic Bonds duein ~ H=E==F/\ 5|4 RMB
August 2023 m%m%ﬁ - - - - ARBS0 65 2003 540,000
Domestic Bonds duein ~ A=E =&+ A5/4 RMB RMB
July 2024 W%WE% ABH506 55 2024 506019  ARE506 55 2024 506,019
Domestic Bonds duein ~ H=E=RF+A5/H RMB RMB
October 2025 WM ES K565 55 2005 564669  ARH565 55 2005 564,669
Medumtemnotes ~ W=F=73&— 315 RMB
duein lanuary 2006 HyFEEE AEH1,500 4.1 2006 1,500,000 - - - -
Medumtermnotes ~ RZE=~EN\AZE RMB
dueinAugust 206 KIPHIZE AEH700 428 2026 700,000 - - - -
15,813,559 17,162,036
Non-curentportion ~ FEENHH (2,200,000) (13,202,190)
Current portion TEHH 13,613,559 3,959,846

— =53
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

3. BAEBNEBERNES #®)

(Continued)
2023 2022
—E—= — ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR®FTT
Repayable: FEfE -
Within one year or on demand —FRHIFEK 13,613,559 3,959,846
In the second year EFEE - 7,418,104
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEhF (BEEREWRE) 2,200,000 5,784,086
Total et 15,813,559 17,162,036
(a) Senior Notes (a) BREE

The Company, at its option, can redeem all or a portion of
the Senior Notes due in April 2024, the Senior Notes due
in May 2025, the Senior Notes due in February 2026 and
the Senior Notes due in September 2024 (collectively, the
“Senior Notes”) at any time prior to the maturity date at
the redemption prices (principal amount plus applicable
premium) plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the
redemption date, as set forth in the written agreements
between the Company and the trustees of the Senior
Notes.

The Senior Notes are secured by pledges over the equity
interests of certain subsidiaries of the Company (note 1).

The fair values of the early redemption options of the
Senior Notes were not significant and therefore were not
recognised by the Group on inception and at 31
December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was unable to repay
the interest due for certain senior notes for a period of 30
consecutive days which constitute a default of payment. As a
result, the remaining senior notes not yet due for payment of
principal or interest became cross-default. The cross-default
senior notes amounted to RMB5,945,586,000 are presented
under current liabilities in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023.

BRARFE T —MFP A F H
BERE —T_AFHANH
BAER —T-R"F_A3H
BAEBEN _ZT_NFENAAZH
E%Tﬁ(im%%TﬁDx&
ARSIV EB BHEAE - AR
TL%FU%EZ%MEHHW
REOE (KB MEREE) N
BEMED A BES RN B
BOMRAELBOBERE -

BEEBHARAETHEBARR
HIBR A s (R IR (FRE) -

HRELAEEMNRTERBEED
AABEETERN  REELRER
HETBRER T =9+ A4
=t —HERZEAAE -

RZEZ_=F+=—A=+—8"
AEBRENEEZE =T HBEHER
EEETELIEENIBHAE
EmiEKELONR - Bt W&
BB AR ENBRTEE
ERBRNETEN -N_FE==
F+_A=+—H RXXNEHE
S Z i 4a%E A R #5,945,586,000
TTRAEBERE FEKR R AR
BEBETEY -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS
(Continued)

(b) Domestic Bonds

At the end of the second year and the fourth year
subsequent to the inception date in October 2020,
Xiamen Zhongjun, as the issuer of the Domestic Bonds
due in October 2025, shall be entitled to adjust the
interest rate and the holders of the Domestic Bonds due
in October 2025 shall be entitled to sell back the bonds to
Xiamen Zhongjun in whole or in part at their principal
amounts.

In January 2023, Xiamen Zhongjun publicly issued the first
tranche of 2023 medium-term notes in the PRC, with an
aggregate principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 for a
term of three years and a coupon rate of 4.1% per
annum, which are fully guaranteed by China Bond
Insurance Co., Ltd. (FEERIEZERERHBR A A)
with irrevocable joint and several liability.

In August 2023, Xiamen Zhongjun publicly issued the
second tranche of 2023 medium-term notes in the PRC,
with an aggregate principal amount of RMB700,000,000
for a term of three years and a coupon rate of 4.28% per
annum, which are fully guaranteed by China Bond
Insurance Co., Ltd. (FEEAEEREROBR A A)

with irrevocable joint and several liability.

The aggregate fair value of the Senior Notes and Domestic
Bonds as at the end of the reporting period was
RMB4,279,420,000 (2022: RMB11,120,781,000).

The fair values of the Senior Notes and the Domestic Bonds are
based on price quotations from financial institutions at the
reporting date.
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3. BAEBNEBERNES @)

(b) mAEZ

B’\tﬁ“EIHJ% E_TETARD
F_FERENFEFER EFHEK
(EAR TRt AIHNE
NEFHETA) BEARMNE M
R-ZT_AFt+AIPNEARRE
SRAABREREF P ERAEKR
T EL 2 KD ES

RZFEZ=%—8 EM+FER
FEARABEIT S _=FEF—
HABER AR EAARK
1,500,000,0007T * AE=F &
HENRAFFEII% AT EER
HERERNEBERAGREEE
TR A B R B IEMR -

RZZEZ=FNA EMPER
FREARABITE=FEF=
HAHER A2BERARE
700,000,0007C " REI=4F  FM@E
MEREFEFE428%  HPEER
HERERNERAFREEE
TSRS S B R B IR o

R|EHR BEEZEREAGSFNA
nEET A ANREEA,279,420,0007T (=
T 4% : AR#11,120,781,0007T) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. DEFERRED TAX

e AR

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

32, EEFIE

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the RERN - BEEHIEEEREENES N
year are as follows: T
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEBAE
Revaluation
of properties
BEEYE
Notes RMB’'000
L ARET T
At 1 January 2022 RZFE——F—H—H 4,360,102
Credited to profit or loss during the year FTAFRNER (7,216)
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary REWE—FMRE QT 38 15,663
Acquisition of subsidiaries &AL EENG] 38 67,447

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023

R-B-_—_F+_A=1+—HR

—_E-_=%—AF—H 4,435,996
Credited to profit or loss during the year FTAFANER (696,752)
Disposal of subsidiaries & B R A 39 (82,170)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=A=+—H 3,657,074
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31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) R FETRTE ()
Deferred tax assets BEBEEE
Losses
Unrealised available for
profits offsetting
arising from against future
intra-group Provision taxable
transactions of LAT profits Total
E AR
X5H TR ED AREFRB
REREF B vl pod -} @zt
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 ARBFT ARETFT ARBFT AREFT
At 1 January 2022 —T--%-H—H 85,619 295,176 842,277 1,223,072
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary RAKE—ARBAR 38 - - 54,928 54,928
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBL R 39 - - (95,080) (95,080)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A/ (B ERER
during the year (4,504) - 293,850 289,346
At 31 December 2022 and EA:i::iJr_ﬁEJr—E
1 January 2023 —Z-=%-H—H 81,115 295,176 1,095,975 1,472,266
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —RMB AR 38 - - 57,741 57,741
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A/ (N8) EREE
during the year 6,046 (101,202) 69,251 (25,905)
At 31 December 2023 RZZ=Z=%+-A=1+—H 87,161 193,974 1,222,967 1,504,102

— =53
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of

B IR R AR M T

IJF

31 December 2023 — - =F+—-_HA=+—H
32, IRAEFE TR ()
MEVMES  BTEEREBEEENEE

EREGEMBARRRATIAKE - AT

financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred RALBERERIBERD T - (BB TS
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: WwERE
2023 2022
—E=F —_=E=—-—
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSI ARETT
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE BRI R A RERHY
in the consolidated statement of EEHIBEEFE
financial position 1,150,968 1,173,522
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE MR R AR
in the consolidated statement of EEFBAEFE
financial position 3,303,940 4,137,252

At 31 December 2023, the Group has tax losses
arising in Mainland China of RMB7,883,487,000 (2022:
RMB4,402,951,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group's tax losses in respect of which deferred tax
assets have not been recognised was not significant as at the
end of the reporting period.

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The
applicable rate is 5% or 10% for the Group.

RZZE-_=F+=-A=+—RH £A5EH
RABEAEEENRDAREBEAR
#57,883,487,0007L (ZE=Z=F : AR
¥ 4,402,951,0007T) * Z S IBEEA
HEBLENFEREE AT  UIEH
H 3R B 18 0 B 1E B BE oK SR A9 FE AR B A
B BERR  AEERABRELED
BEENREBENRBRSHRTERK o

ZK%@E%THMMJIWM&E’JWJ%

RARZZTZENF—A—BHRELENHR
METDIRAIIE BB FBNE - REBAY
A EA5%810% °
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31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

32.

33.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB29,743,846,000 at 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB27,046,873,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

As detailed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has contractual obligations to fulfil as a condition of
the Operating Concession under the Operating Right
Agreement. The obligations are (a) to maintain the Facilities it
operates to a specified level of serviceability and (b) to restore
the Facilities to a specified condition before they are handed
over to the Sports Bureau at the end of the Operating
Concession. These contractual obligations to maintain or restore
the sports and recreation facilities, except for the upgrade
element, are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to settle the present obligation at the reporting
date. The future expenditure on these maintenance and
restoration costs is collectively referred to as “major overhauls”.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and
revised where appropriate.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

34.

(Continued)

The movements in the provision for major overhauls of the

Facilities for the year are as follows:

B HRRM T

an\

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

33. KMg#E @®)

FR - RERBORNEBBE ST -

2023 2022
—==-= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
At 1 January n—HA—H 78,614 69,264
Additional provisions (note 8) NN fE (FFES) 6,515 6,236
Increase in a discounted amount arising R B 0 77 441 1 22 A R 3T 3R (B 38 &
from the passage of time (note 7) (KF5E7) 3,950 3,512
Amount utilised during the year FRNERSEE (431) (398)
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 88,648 78,614
SHARE CAPITAL 34. JgA
Shares &)
2023 2022
—E-= g
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised: JETE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of FIREE0.108 T
HK$0.10 each 10,000,000,000 A% & 37 i% 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
4,222,986,126 (2022: 4,222,986,126) HREEO10E T
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 4,222,986,126 [ (= Z ==
4,222,986,126 %) i@ A% 422,298,613 422,298,613
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARET T 365,138 365,138
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 34. IR7N (#)
Shares (Continued) R (&)
A summary of movements in the Company's issued share capital RARIEBITRAZEHHEZLT
is as follows:
Number of
shares Issued
in issue capital
BR81T
RHEA B RITRA
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE_—_F—HF—H 4,222,133,380 422,213,338
Issue of shares for scrip dividend (note) VAR B 23577 M1 (BI=E) 852,746 85,275
At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 R-_E-_—_F+=-_HA=+—8 -
and 31 December 2023 —E-=F—A—8k
—EZ=F+ZHA=+—H 4,222,986,126 422,298,613
Note:  On 24 August 2022, 852,746 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in Mizx: R-ZZE-—FNA=-+MA:AxAF
the Company were issued at HK$0.874 per share as scrip dividend. 852,746 IR B AR A E0.108 T H) & 8

B3z G R% 0.874 % TLIABRAR B 81T -

Share options i iR A
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in A GBI EIFE R
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. FE35 °
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31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. fE AR AT 2
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 April 2018 ARANZE—-NFEOAZ+=H&KEMN
(the “2018 Scheme"”) and has been terminated upon adoption —Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂzﬁﬁi‘ ([=Z=2—N\F5TE]) -
of the new share option scheme (the “2023 Scheme”) on 30 WHEZFZ=FHHA="THRKRMIHE
May 2023. The exercise period of the share options granted is REAE(ZE_=F5t8)® =F
determinable by the directors and ends on a date which is not —N\FErEBERIE - RIEBRERNT
later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options. FHREFET IR TEREREES
HEBPEF10FE BRI -
There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group does not ZETES B EMBREEE TN - A5 B
have a past practice of cash settlement for these share options. BETVRBNE € EEZ LB RED M
The Group accounts for the Scheme as an equity-settled plan. VE o ZIK%%H%EZ%%UEEZ%%&&%ZJ?U
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends RERR N AR T H R A AR R B
or to vote at shareholder’s meetings. SRR ARE LFRE -
The following share options were outstanding under the 2018 FRN - ZT—N\FFEBE T RARITED
Scheme during the year: FERRER IS -
2023 2022
—E-=F — -
Exercise ~ Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
THE BREXE TEE  BREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 o T
At beginning of year REH] 2.78 286,000 2.78 286,000
Exercised during the year RERTTEE — = = -
At end of year RER 2.78 286,000 2.78 286,000
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31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cContinued) 35. BT & ()

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BRI  RAT R AR R 1T 5
RATEMBIIMT -

2023
Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
—E-=F
BREZE TEE 171 5A
‘000 HK$
T4 BT
135,000 2.78 1 July 2019 to 11 December 2028
—NE+rtA-BE_Z-_N\F+A+—H
151,000 2.78 1 July 2020 to 11 December 2028
—EEFLA—RAEE-/N\FI+=A+—H
286,000
2022
Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
—ET - —F
BREHE TEME 171 5A
‘000 HK$
T BT
135,000 2.78 1 July 2019 to 11 December 2028
—NFLtA-RE_Z-_N\F+A+—H
151,000 2.78 1 July 2020 to 11 December 2028
—ECZF+A-HEZ-_N\FE+A+—H
286,000

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023

PREEZRERAT/ —F

—=rR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted in 2018 was
HK$137,017,000 (equivalent to RMB120,397,000) (ranged
from HK$0.33 to HK$0.38 each), of which the share option
expense was fully recognised in profit or loss in prior years.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
2018 Scheme in 2018 was estimated as at the date of grant
using a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted and the
following table lists the major inputs used:

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 — - =F+—-_HA=+—H
EEARERTE (@)

RZZE-—NEAREBRENQA
£ 137,017,000 7T (M8 R AR
120,397,0007T) (B " F033 BT E
03887L)  BIRERZE 28N AT
FEE=ER -

R-F-N\FRE_F—-N\FiFEME
HESEEBRENAAERRLAS
RA-—EAEBREMGE LT EAER
i BB A A YRR R AR A - T R AISIR
PrE R E Ei ABUE

2018

—ZE-N\F

Dividend yield (%) % B M 2= 2 (%) 7.19

Expected volatility (%) i‘ﬁﬁ}%& 18 (%) 28.63

Risk-free interest rate (%) % ) K (%) 2.7
Exit rates of the grantees of the options $E'<TJ§_?*)\¢5+¥|J T % HH BB AR i &

granted under the 2018 Scheme (%) AR AR R ZE (%) 0

B HAOR 08 S R B R IR AT AR R R R B B
WRR - TARUGREBRER -

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into AEAAERTEFAD KL BRED
HARFME

the measurement of fair value.
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31 December 2023 — & —=

35.

36.

B BHmRNEE

Ft+-A=+—H
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
286,000,000 (2022: 286,000,000) share options outstanding
under the 2018 Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 286,000,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$28,600,000 (equivalent to RMB25,917,000) and share
premium of HK$766,480,000 (equivalent to RMB694,584,000)
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 286,000,000 share options outstanding under
the 2018 Scheme, which represented approximately 6.77% of
the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

No option has been granted under the 2023 Scheme since the
adoption of the 2023 Scheme.

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 106 and 107 of
the financial statements.

(b) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the

amounts of consideration and the carrying values of non-
controlling interests acquired or disposed of.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve

Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus
reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company'’s subsidiaries established in the PRC and were
approved by the respective boards of directors.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

For the entities concerned, the statutory surplus reserve
can be used to cover previous years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into capital in proportion to equity
holders’ existing equity holdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of
their registered capital.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the excess of the
Company’s share of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the Company’s
cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under common
control upon the group reorganisation completed in
December 2007.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of share
options vested which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy of share-based
payments in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related share options
are exercised, or transferred to retained profits should the
related share options lapse or be forfeited.

31 December 2023 —F—=

6. fEtE @

(9]

(d)

(e)

B IR R AR M T

an\

F+-A=+—H

EEBEBRFE (2

NEHEBERMS  ECRARE
A AERERTEEREE (RE) -
MAlEEREAE AR FRL
PlEE AR - R B SR
MERTEIREFME XK
25% °

BOHREE

BOHREEEAR T D (HRKEMN
BRAEAMNESRAEEELEE
REAFER _ZZLF+_H
STRK) Y5 B 52 Ak [ 42 ) B /B 8 R A
B AN

BIRERE

BRERBRERARTENEREB
BRENDAE E—FFBER
AR e BITERAR M R 3 PAR D AT
MR EFHRAMA - ZE 8
KR ARBERERITERERE
P 4 4 {8 B S0 AE R BB A K
AR YL B E R B A

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023

PEEEZERARAR T =FFH

— 233 ——



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

—— 234 —

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 7. EAEX 3E ERRE R 2 FF
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 2 &M B AT
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- BEERNFERERNAEENE QT
controlling interests are set out below: FEHINNT
2023 2022
—gs=-= =
Percentage of equity interest held SEEIRE R P I A
by non-controlling interests:
Chongging Junhuigongchuang BEEEERE 53% 53%
Chongging Sanchengyihui HE - WiE 50% 50%
Shanghai Junting LEE= N/A* 30%
TE A+
Xiamen Taiming EFIZRS 30% 35%
Shangrao Dongjun Real Estate Co., Ltd.¥ ~ tEMRHKEEAR A Al
("Shangrao Dongjun”) ([EeEsEE]) 66% 66%
2023 2022
—E=-= =
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARBTT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to 55 B IEIE R i 2 Y
non-controlling interests: FREM,(EE)
Chonggqing Junhuigongchuang B ELIE KA (20,294) 47,640
Chongging Sanchengyihui BE=WE (51,056) (6,148)
Shanghai Junting Ekg= = (1,560)
Xiamen Taiming EMERS 269,065 (9,835)
Shangrao Dongjun R 9,106 (11,567)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling R4 H BiFEIE AR #E 25 49
interests at the reporting dates: ZETHERR
Chongging Junhuigongchuang EEELE KA 419,831 440,125
Chongging Sanchengyihui EE = WlE 426,239 477,295
Shanghai Junting i 3= N/A* 378,948
TEmA*
Xiamen Taiming EFIRS 2,183,923 1,914,858
Shangrao Dongjun LR EE 258,872 249,765
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of Chongqing Junhuigongchuang, Chongging

31 December 2023 —F—=

F+-A=+—H

37. BB ERF TR ER 2 FE
> EMB AT @)

TRINTEEKREHR

Bl -BEE=#=n

I: EFIZEIS & E SRR %5 & R

Sanchengyihui, Xiamen Taiming and Shangrao Dongjun. The it o B B FRIA Ty IME (AT A B 4K 45 AT %
amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: =
Chonggqing Chongging Xiamen Shangrao
Junhuigongchuang Sanchengyihui Taiming Dongjun
2023 —EC-=F EERERA EE-HZE EMRB LERR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T AR¥ET AR T AR¥ T
Revenue Wz 2,824 804,185 967,200 25,312
Other income HAn A 18 3 3,494 261
Total expenses BRI (41,475) (906,280) (73,811) (11,776)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF,(EE) (38,633) (102,092) 896,883 13,797
Total comprehensive income/ ERZER A/ (E1E)

(loss) for the year R (38,633) (102,092) 896,883 13,797
Current assets MEBEE 865,307 1,168,294 23,536,668 420,391
Non-current assets FERBEE - 12,440 10,833 1
Current liabilities mBAE (66,086) (328,426)  (16,267,758) (28,162)
Non-current liabilities EEN=E - - = =
Net cash flows used in R ESATHA

operating activities Be&ne #58 (24,933) (33,342) (660,038) (47,817)
Net cash flows from RERHME

investing activities Rene s - - 177 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) B EEIFTS,/(FTA)

financing activities Rene3s (42) 167 3 119
Net decreasein cashand ~ HE KB L FEY

cash equivalents e (24,975) (33,175) (659,520) (47,698)
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31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 3. HEEANFERER 2 IF
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEMNB A @)
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRINTEERERE EE=H=
information of Chongging Junhuigongchuang, Chongging - EEREREMREHNIEERR
Sanchengyihui, Shanghai Junting and Xiamen Taiming. The i o B B FRIR T RME AT A J A 4 85 Al 4%
amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: =
Chongaing Chongaing Shanghai Xiamen
Junhuigongchuang  Sanchengyihui Junting Taiming
2022 —E-CE EEREHE SE-HHRE L= EF%RE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T ARETTT ARETFTT AREF T
Revenue Y 1,869,579 601,723 =
Other income E A 482 2,299 64 9,059
Total expenses BE Y (1,779,370) (616,315) (5,266) (37,159)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRRH/(BE) 90,691 (12,293) (5,202) (28,100)
Total comprehensive income/ ERZEW A/ (E1E)

(loss) for the year k) 90,691 (12,293) (5,202) (28,100)
Current assets MEBEE 920,008 2,049,558 1,567,630 21,571,273
Non-current assets ERBEE 5 24,171 585,836 38,602
Current liabilities mEE R (82,159) (1,119,329) (604,886) (16,082,624)
Non-current liabilities FrEas - - (285,000 (56,227)
Net cash flows from/used in) &< E &IPS,/ (FTA)

operating activities Behe #5% (275,131) (309,144) (134,368) 340,309
Net cash flows from/(used in) % & E&NFT15,/ (FT )

investing activities HeREFH (292) 32,873 (38,859) 278
Net cash flows from/(used in) &&EEIFS,/(FTA)

financing activities Behe #5% 260,672 242,364 81,808 (574,880)
Net decrease in cashand ~ BE&RIBEFEY

cash equivalents WA (14,751) (33,907) (91,419) (234,293)

In the opinion of the directors, as a result of acquisition of non-

controlling interest of Shanghai Junting by the Group in 2023,
Shanghai Junting is no longer considered as a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group with material non-controlling interests of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023, and therefore, the
summarised financial information of Shanghai Junting for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is not presented in the financial

statements.

The English name of the Company in the PRC represents the best

effort made by the management of the Company to directly translate
their Chinese names only for the purpose of these financial
statements as no official English names have been registered.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Year ended 31 December 2023

Acquisition of a subsidiary

In July 2023, the Group acquired an additional 49% equity
interest in Jinan Junquan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
("Jinan Junquan”), which was previously a 35.4%-owned joint
venture. Upon completion of the transaction, the Group held
84.4% of equity interest in Jinan Junquan and had obtained
control over the board of Jinan Junquan. Jinan Junquan
engaged in property development in Jinan, the PRC. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form of
cash of RMB13,700,000.

The acquisition of Jinan Junquan was completed in 2023 and
consequently, Jinan Junquan became a subsidiary of the Group.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

38. ¥15A 4

S =#+-A=t—H
JJ:fﬂ;

Wi — BB AR

RZZZ=Ft A AEERKBEES
BREHERZEAERAR ([EEEE])
(ERA354% MEEAa])BFEINI%
IREFT L% - RRFEKE  AEE
A EERRNGLA% BIENERER
BRNESENEHE EEBRREE
THRREEETYERRER - 2K
BREARS AR 13,700,000 T °

ﬁ%x%ﬂﬂlﬁﬁa NZE_=FEK - K
1& EERRKASASERBEAR -
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31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 38. 156 @

Year ended 31 December 2023 (Continued) BE-_Z-_=%+=-H=+—H
LEFE#)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) g —REMHME DR (&)

Y iE — R B A R R W BE B R Al BRI &

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

acquisition of a subsidiary as at the date of acquisition was as follows: ERBEAREBENAT :
Jinan
Junquan
BERR
Notes RMB’000
B 5 ARET
Property and equipment M R FAE 14 17
Properties under development BRAME 530,000
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEEERYE 12,328
Deferred tax assets RAERIE & B 32 57,741
Other current assets Hithmeh & &= 20,626
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEZEED 200
Trade and bills payables B S AIE&TTF (210,986)
Other current liabilities HimEha & (358,071)
Tax payable FESHHIR (28,348)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R M 2 33,945
Total identifiable net assets BRAREFTERI AR
at fair value FERERE 57,452
Satisfied by: ATRH AR AT
Cash B 13,700
Reclassification from pre-existing 1EERTR — & & A RlHY
investments in a joint venture to "EENEARAR
investments in a subsidiary —ENB AR NERE 43,752
57,452
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as ZWENIRERESTAT :
follows:
Jinan
Junquan
BErEEER
RMB’000
AR%T
Cash consideration HERE (13,700)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriER e RIREEEY 200
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ARKE—HRBARMNES R
in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary REEEBYRLFRE (13,500)

The result of Jinan Junquan acquired during the year had no FERNTNEREEE R X EUAEF
significant impact on the Group's consolidated revenue or loss HE— T::E-I— A=+—HItFE
for the year ended 31 December 2023. BN ERERT EE AL -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary

B IR R AR M T

IJF

31 December 2023 — - =F+—-_HA=+—H
38. ¥ &5 @

BZE —F+=ZBR=+—H

JJ:EFJ;

On 5 July 2022, the Group reached a resolution (the

“Resolution”) with the joint venture partners of Beijing Junyang,

pursuant to which the Group is entitled to appoint two of the

three directors in the board of directors of Beijing Junyang.

Beijing Junyang was previously a 75%-owned joint venture, and

as a result of the Resolution, the Group obtained control of

Beijing Junyang. Beijing Junyang is principally engaged in the

business of property development in Beijing.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

deemed acquisition of a subsidiary as at the date of acquisition

were as follows:

BEWE-ENEAR

ﬁ_gzzitﬂﬁﬂ
BENAERHERRE
CEAERZAIREGEESe=HES
REARE - b REEGRA— M 75% 1
BERE NREE  AKEEELER
FErS RIS 7 o db mBR[5 = E A4t s
TTYIEBRRER -

P AR E EIE R
(DRZE] - &

R R — B A RN B R R &
MEERBERAEWT

Beijing

Junyang

Siay

Notes RMB’000

B ARET T

Property and equipment LIEISE L] 14 33
Properties under development R E 4,922,000
Prepaid income tax SN 2,761
Other current assets HhmEhEE 164,147
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEEY 437,916
Trade and bills payables B REMNZIERERE (3,662)
Contract liabilities ARAaE (1,441,254)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERIT R E AL E K (628,900)
Other current liabilities HitnsaE (3,313,470)
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIBEEE 32 (15,663)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (30,977)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RAARBEFENAHFEERE 92,931
Reclassification of investment in a joint venture R—EEERAINKEEN (92,931)
Gain on deemed acquisition of a subsidiary 15 [ W B — R BT BB A B A i 2 -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 —Z - =F+—_HA=+—H
38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as
follows:

38. ¥ & H@®

BE-_F-——-"Ft+t=-A=+—H
IFFBE ()

BEWE-BHNEAR (&)

ZWENRSRESTWT

RMB'000

ARET T

Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrisIi € RIR & FEY 437,916
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect ~ BARERIUEE—FHI B A RME S &

of deemed acquisition of a subsidiary REEEMRNFRE 437,916

The results of the Beijing Junyang acquired during the year had
no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

(@ In August 2022, the Group acquired an additional 45%
equity interest in Jieyang Junrui Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. ("Jieyang Junrui”), which was previously a
53.4%-owned joint venture. Upon completion of the
transaction, the Group held 98.4% of equity interest in
Jieyang Junrui and had obtained control over the board of
Jieyang Junrui. Jieyang Junrui engaged in property
development and property investment in Jieyang, the PRC.
The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the
form of cash of RMB9,000,000.

(b) In September 2022, the Group acquired an additional
50% equity interest in Zhangzhou Junfeng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangzhou Junfeng”), which
was previously a 50%-owned joint venture. Upon
completion of the transaction, the Group held 100% of
equity interest in Zhangzhou Junfeng and had obtained
control over the board of Zhangzhou Junfeng. Zhangzhou
Junfeng is engaged in property development in
Zhangzhou, the PRC. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash of RMB48,430,000.
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FRATRENIERBE s EEHAEE
HE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE
iR NSk EIBT EERTE -

W BB R A R

(@ RZZTE-_—FN\A AEEHK
BEEEREHERZEFRA A
([1B8F5 %)) (R &53.4% K&
2N A]) KRB INAS % R HE T L 1R
FORRGENE  AEEFHE
1B 15 5 B 19 98.4% I HE 2 E B 18
BRITNEFTSNETE - B5
BRI T EAREBGETYESE
BRREUFREEL -2 RKER
BERIE < AKR%9,000,0007T °

) RZZFE-__FNA AEEHK
BEMNBREEHERZEAR AR
(DEMEEE ) (KR R50% & &
A A]) B FEIN50% AR AE RT3 thh sk e
RRZTERRE » AEEFHEM
RE R 100% PoiE R SRR E
MEFSHEHE - EMNKET
REPERENMNETORERES -
ERXRBRBRESRSEARR
48,430,000 7T °



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(€ In November 2022, the Group entered into an agreement
in relation to the acquisition of the additional 99% equity
interest in Pingdingshan Junming Trading Co., Ltd.
("Pingdingshan Junming”). As such, the Group obtained
additional 39% of equity interest in Pingdingshan Junkang
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Pingdingshan
Junkang”) (collectively, “Pingdingshan Group”), which
was previously a 51%-owned joint venture, and has
obtained control over the board of Pingdingshan Junkang.
Pingdingshan Group are engaged in property
development and property investment in Henan, the PRC.
The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the
form of cash of RMB270,000,000.

(d) In December 2022, the Group acquired an additional
49% equity interest in Quanzhou Nuocheng Group, which
was previously a 51%-owned joint venture. Upon
completion of the transaction, the Group held 100% of
equity interest in Quanzhou Nuocheng Group and had
obtained control over the board of Quanzhou Nuocheng
Group. Quanzhou Nuocheng Group is engaged in
property development and property investment in Fuzhou,
the PRC. The purchase consideration for the acquisition
was in the form of cash of RMB103,333,000.

The acquisitions of Jieyang Junrui, Zhangzhou Junfeng,
Pingdingshan Group and Quanzhou Nuocheng Group were
completed in 2022 and consequently, Jieyang Junrui,
Zhangzhou Junfeng, Pingdingshan Group and Quanzhou
Nuocheng Group became subsidiaries of the Group.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

38. 2156w

S —ft+-A=+—H
iﬁE%@

BB QR ()

(@ M-ZTE-_—_F+—F AK&EEKR
WEEFTBILEE S E R AR ([F
TBILEE IS |) BB HN99% A% # 7] 32 13
FoASEAMLESEFATIE
W EEERZEAR AR ([F
BILERD (SBIFELER]
(EFEB51%HEZ R A) B
39% i R IESFIEILBENSE
FeNEdfE - FIELEEEZ
FERBNmEETERRELRS -
ERABBREARRA S AR
270,000,000 7T °

d RZZEZZF+ZA XEEH
W R MAEHRER (ERA51% 8
é%@wmﬁ%@%h%ﬂiﬁ

TRRZEMKE AEERHA
%m-ﬁ%lmum%h%&%
EMHEREENEES ISR -
EMNEREEEEZER R EME
TUEBREMEREELE - =
KBEEREAER S AR
103,333,000 7T °

BiEEn  EMNEE  FIELEEER
MEBREERBER T -__F=/k -
K& 18558 - EMNEBE . iTEU—I’?E
ERREMABEERANEEHBR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. X5 & Gt
Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued) BE-SE-=—f+=-H=+—H
IEFE#E)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) WEEHB AT (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the WEEH B AR R AR ZREE R

acquisition of subsidiaries as at the date of acquisition were as BEAANBERT :
follows:
Quanzhou
Jieyang  Zhangzhou  Pingdingshan Nuocheng
Junrui Junfeng Group Group Total
M
B EMEE  TRLEHE HAEE it
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M  ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%Tt ARET:
Property and equipment %%&*“ 14 84 1 100 95 280
Investment in associates B E ARRRE = 270,000 = 270,000
Investment properties xﬁ%¥ 15 670,000 = - 1,973,000 2,643,000
Properties under development ERAME 1,021,000 = 518,000 3,877,000 5,416,000
Prepaid income tax BRHE 11,225 73 736 161,814 173,848
Deferred tax assets ERBEEE 32 = 53,050 1,878 = 54,928
Other current assets EinBEE 24,472 30,152 366,768 1,028527 1,449,919
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁ%&ﬁ‘i\%fﬁ% 87,776 2,044 17,986 395,243 503,049
Trade and bills payables BHRNTERER (33,065) (5,387) (7,660) (223,030) (269,142)
Other current liabilities Hﬁméﬂﬁ (1,441,282) (36,632  (211,574)  (6,030,141)  (7,719,629)
Interest-bearing bank and STERITREMER
other borrowings (130,340) - (200,000)  (1,070,000)  (1,400,340)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE 32 (44,280) - (807) (22,360) (67,447)
Non-controlling interests R (2,649) - (68,545) (1,127) (72,321)
Total identifiable net assets at BAREFER
fair value ABRIEEER 162,941 43,301 686,882 89,021 982,145
Gain on bargain purchase = EREN RS 6 (65,451) 26,873 = = (38,578)
97,490 70,174 686,882 89,021 943,567
Satisfied by: ATNFIA R AT
Cash Be 9,000 48,430 270,000 103,333 430,763
Reclassification from BEANRE S RN
pre-existing investments REENEAR
in joint ventures to MEARREE
investments in subsidiaries 88,490 21,744 416,882 (14,312) 512,804
97,490 70,174 686,882 89,021 943,567
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARa IR R AR M T

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 38. 2156w

Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued) S —f+=-A=+—H
1k ﬂEJ; (/%5)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) WEEKI B A = (&)

ZWENRSRESTWT

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions is as
follows:

Quanzhou
Jieyang Zhangzhou  Pingdingshan Nuocheng
Junrui Junfeng Group Group Total
M
B EMEE  TELEE HEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR
Cash consideration RERE (9,000) (48,430) (270,000) (103,333) (430,763)
Cash and cash equivalents R & R
acquired BeEEY 87,776 2,044 17,986 395,243 503,049
Net inflow/(outflow) of cash and B 4CEE BT /8 2 =149
cash equivalents in respect of ~ BERIREEED
the acquisition of subsidiaries A/ (i) F48 78,776 (46,386) (252,014) 291,910 72,286
The result of Jieyang Junrui, Zhangzhou Junfeng and ENFTUEE R IRISELTE « BB m T
Pingdingshan Group acquired during the year had no significant BLERE LEEAEERE—S - —

impact on the Group's consolidated revenue or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

FH_A=1T—HILFENEE
BIEITESATE -

Yo g 3k

Since the acquisition, Quanzhou Nuocheng Group
contributed RMB2,789,146,000 to the Group's revenue and
RMB763,554,000 to the Group's profit for the year ended 31
December 2022.

BUEER  RMNGEREEBRELSE
T+ ZR=1+— Eti&ﬁ$%@
BBz A R #2,789,146,000 7T K AN
&= )% F| A R ¥ 763,554,000 7T °

Had the combination of Quanzhou Nuocheng Group taken
place at the beginning of the year ended 31 December 2022,

MEMNEBEEREE T —_—F+=
A=+ HIFERAKRKFAH ~&EE

the revenue and the loss of the Group for the year would have
been RMB26,705,112,000 and RMB221,626,000, respectively.

The gain on bargain purchase is attributable to the market
condition at the time of acquisition and the Group’s ability in
negotiating the agreed terms of the transaction with the
vendors.

REEMNREREEEDIAARK
26,705,112,000 7T & A R # 221,626,000
fl:o

2 (B W B 1 Wi 2 57 R O MR B 0 T 355 R
/RLA&ZIS%@EEEEEWJ%X%E’J%’]EM
KEVRE ST ©
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B BHmRNEE

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

39. HEMNB A A

2023 2022
—EC-=F B F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt & ARETRT AREBTT
Net assets disposed of: T E & EFA
Property and equipment ?@%& %1 14 - 57,684
Investments in joint ventures AEENFIHIRE = 200,541
Investment properties TEME 15 745,860 223,731
Contract in progress FEETRE 19 134,110 329,384
Prepaid income tax SEENE A 177 =
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEBERYE - 11,479
Deferred tax assets RETHIBEE 32 = 95,080
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE = 6,175
Other current assets Hime & E 33,696 794,847
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMBESEEY 3,902 58,421
Trade and bills payables B S EMNFIENREE - (85,381)
Other current liabilities HEMREas (435,769) (380,664)
Interest-bearing bank and FPERITR
other borrowings HMER (280,000) -
Lease liabilities HEARE 16(a) = (240,185)
Tax payable FEAS R IR - (669,638)
Deferred tax liabilities REMSHAE 32 (82,170) =
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR M = (95,769) (80,721)
Subtotal e 24,037 320,753
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKE QR Uk 6,8 169,817 415,139
Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon H & B /& A 7] 7 &
disposal of subsidiaries BB 58 ED i 1 6,355 (31,372)
Total consideration RELRE 200,209 704,520
Satisfied by: VAR %175 AR
Cash B 200,209 704,520

FREBBRARAT T =556



39.

40.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARa IR R AR M T

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. HEMB QA @)
An analysis of the net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents BEREEMBARNRE KRB CEEY
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MARFR AT -
2023 2022
—EB-=F —=E-—
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AREBTT
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FIHERE MRS EEY (3,902) (58,421)
Cash consideration ReRE 200,209 704,520
Consideration receivables RUER IR SR E - (60,319)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in AREENBRARNRE R
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries REEBMRAFEE 196,307 585,780
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 40. #fra R & mE XM T

OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEHFBERS
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had BE-_Z-_—_F+=-A=+—H
deemed acquisition of a subsidiary with total identifiable FE-ASEEERRFKE—R@
net assets fair value of RMB92,931,000. Further details MEBAR  EEAAIHAFEE
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial NAEAREE2,931,0007T -
statements. E—PHBEHREREVBHREM
FE38
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to FR REFHELTHENS A&
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB1,281,000 EFAEEERTHESENI RS
(2022: RMB539,000) and RMB1,281,000 (2022: WNEDRIAARY1,281,0007T (=
RMB539,000), respectively, in respect of lease T AR®539,0007T) B A
arrangements for buildings. R#1,281,000C (ZZE=Z=F: A

R#539,0007T) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MBI

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 40. 48 B & Re X WiT @)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METEMEENEBEES

activities

Interest- Senior notes

bearing bank and
Lease  and other domestic
liabilities borrowings bonds

HERT EARE

HERE REMER REARS

Notes ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000
e AR®TRT ARWTR AR%TR

At 1 January 2022 RZE-__F—HF—H 343,177 29,522,722 20,675,612
Changes from financing BMEEHREME

cash flows (96,943)  (4,935,173)  (4,753,058)
New leases MEE 539 = =
Foreign exchange movement & i = B & 5) - 338,500 1,160,478
Interest expense FE X 20,162 39,823 79,004
Deemed acquisition of BRWE—FEHNE AR

a subsidiary 38 - 628,900 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EEFT B A 7 38 - 1,400,340 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB R A 39 (240,185) = =
At 31 December 2022 and A= =

1 January 2023 +-A=+—-HBK

—E-_=F—H—H 26,750 26,995,112 17,162,036

Changes from financing BMEEHRSNE

cash flows (14,794) (6,789,899) (1,720,029)
New leases HE 1,281 = —
Foreign exchange movement & i Z= 2 & F) - 139,004 400,296
Interest expense FE X 1,490 29,343 102,752
Gain on repurchase of B85 (& S R B s

senior notes 6 - - (131,496)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A A 39 - (280,000) =
At 31 December 2023 RZT_=F

+TZHA=+—H~H 14,727 20,093,560 15,813,559
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

40 I\/T\/\EESTE/NLE%M—J FIE (&)

(0 EEEHENRESREAEE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Within operating activities R &G ED 8,121 5,089
Within financing activities KRR E G E 14,794 96,943
Total FEE 22,915 102,032

41. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over the guarantees. The financial guarantee

contracts are measured at the higher of the ECL allowance and

the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amount of

income recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected

payments to reimburse the holders for a credit loss that it incurs

less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the

debtor. The amount initially recognised represents the fair value

at initial recognition of the financial guarantees.

(a)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
financial guarantees which are not provided for in the
financial statements as follows:

. AR EAR

AEEY BRERFBEMERRIE
EERE - WBERARZAHREER
B IR B I 1) 25 AR 2 RRURL 2 FERR A
R cHENRSETE BAHEEER
BEBLEBGAREERGTE  BHER
REERNEERBAMELEEEEBEN
FEHAS IR AN = E TR B B A WX
T - T ERSBEYHERD
}/FEEM\ p ’D\ﬁ@

(@) MBEMR AEEBHBER
BRARAH BRI ABELT

2023 2022
—EC-= =t

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FRE ARBTRT

Guarantees in respect of mortgage MAEEETYEERN
facilities provided for certain RBERRHEOHER
purchasers of the Group’s (FF5E)

properties (notes)

27,163,103 25,482,461
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR

an\

31 December 2023 — & —=

Ft+-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating
to the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the
Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
in the event of default on mortgage payments by these
purchasers before the expiry of the guarantees, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with the accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks, net of any sales proceeds
as described below.

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related properties
were pledged to the banks as collateral for the mortgage
loans, in the event of default on mortgage repayments by
these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal
titles and will realise the pledged properties through open
auction or other appropriate means. The Group is responsible
for repaying the banks when the proceeds from the auction of
the properties cannot cover the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of
the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance of
real estate ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will
generally be available within one to two years after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the guarantees is not significant as in the event of default on
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties can
cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals
together with the accrued interest and penalties and therefore
no provision has been made in the financial statements for the
guarantees.

In addition, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ and

associates’ own financial guarantees, which are not

included in the above, is as follows:

R ®

(a)

(&)
B 5 -
(i) RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8H"

AEEBRE TRITMAEERSE T
MEBRNRBER LB MR H
MmizBERREER - REER
3K -z F B RN R E B AT
BREBMNF NREEERNRT
MIHEMSHIBRABREEREER
R R BT RENIZIBA LS
A R & FILS AR EI5K o

REFEERLHE HEMEESER
FTRITERZBERNER  —
BEFRBREZB/MNK  RITER
EREXE YEEA ﬁméiﬁ
fAENTT A E R EES

E%%mE%\ﬂETEMEH
P & RIRIG R £ B[R R 578 A
SR ARBABRERTRT

AEENERBEE THBRE
ERAHEEREREHFEHE
PRERERGBR MEMEMA
%ﬁL%Eﬁ%M%@W%%&
—EMFRNEAIRE -

iy BARRAEZRHERLEB/RMN
HOBRAT  HEMEN A ER
FERAEMNAERIZBASE
R R 5 FB A R B 5K - Bz F 4
ROAABELIFER - FEt - WE
REITB R AL SRR IEL AR -

BN REE RS 2 QR KB
BRBANE IR (LRAA
ExmT

2023 2022
—EB-=F -
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Guarantees in respect of mortgage B EUNGISE UG
facilities provided for certain AETYMEERNIRE
purchasers of the joint ventures’ BRI ER
and associates’ properties 3,937,472 4,433,874
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41.

42.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)

(b) At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees
given to banks in connection with loan facilities granted
to joint ventures and associates are not provided for in the
financial statements is as follows:

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

A1, BATEVE(R ()

(b)

R & HAR - 4 B S Rk B
BZERARRITIETAERARK
E AR ENRERENMKE
R0

2023 2022
—E-=F —EFqE-—
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETT

Guarantees given to banks in METEE QR REEE AR
connection with loan facilities Z EREE M4a TIR1T
granted to joint ventures ZER

and associates

1,530,500 3,202,552

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the guarantees
at initial recognition and the ECL allowance are not significant.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged to secure certain bank and other
borrowings and domestic bonds granted to the Group:

ESRA RLERRERBENARE
LEREEBERBELTEK -

42. BEHRM

RBERR NEEHATEERR

Bank deposits RITER
Property and equipment L E IS
Investment properties wEYE
Properties under development BRAME

Completed properties held for sale BIEHEEEKWE

LRSRTAEENE THRITAEME
REIBRES
2023 2022
—Z==-= —=F==

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5t ARETT ARETR
27 - 2,031,012
14 483,629 498,070
15 18,597,900 12,847,267
18 42,754,679 49,683,439
22 1,743,000 -

Total BET

63,579,208 65,059,788

China SCE Grou

p Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023
REREEEZERERAR /I T - =FFW

— 249 ——



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

43. COMMITMENTS 43, HEHE

The Group had the following contractual commitments at the R BRI E EAR R LA T B 2R A AGE -
end of the reporting period:

2023 2022
—EC=F —EgE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETT

Capital expenditure for properties under — 7£ /Bl K BE A 25 B R 135 &

development and construction of FZh iR EYER
investment properties in Mainland China BRI 17,337,202 18,135,770
In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ and o - REBEMGGE R R REEE QT
associates’ own contractual commitments, which are not RNE BB A AE CRAALA EATa) 40
included in the above, is as follows: T @
2023 2022
—E_-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Capital expenditure for joint ventures’ A& QA REGEE R RE
and associates’ properties under B KPERI B R R R
development and construction of FEZRIREYER
investment properties in Mainland China BEARMRE 1,367,857 1,458,795
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed in
note 25 to the financial statements, the Group had the

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

44. BEE T R 5

(a)

GRS ER T 25 R BV X 5
RSN RER AEEHERH

following transactions with related parties during the year: BABEBUANTRS :
2023 2022
—E=-= = —
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 ARETR ARBTx
Property rental income KB & KK ik Pl
from companies controlled NSIEOE7/E Ttk Al N

by the Wong Family
Property management fees received 2R B & FK 5% 1 B % )
from companies controlled NEINMEERE

by the Wong Family

Advisory and operational service {5 F & 55 A P A &

fees paid to companies BAREERBE

controlled by Mr. Wong (i)
Property management NTEEEMES AR

fees paid to companies MEBEE

controlled by Mr. Wong

Aircraft leasing expense paid to ¥ & SR ATl A —

a company controlled NRAIMRHEE S E R

by Mr. Wong (ii)
Project management income KREEE RN A REEE AT

received from joint ventures 718 B BRI A

and associates
Interest income on amounts due  fEU A & A &l FRIEH

from joint ventures FEHA
Property rental income RKE—HE SRR
from a joint venture MERES WA
Property management fees KE—HEERFIH
received from a joint venture YEERBIA
Proceeds from sales of L E B A R4

=

subsidiaries to the Wong Family =R RKTS A

(iii)

(iv)

6,221 5,300
1,736 1,363
14,520 3,333
465 330
2,092 3,314
197,624 93,850
- 23,073

3,116 =
654 =

- 56,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ A X jﬁ&#&%‘%ﬁﬁ

31 December 2023 — & —=

Ft+-A=+—H

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

45.

(a)

(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The transactions were based on terms mutually agreed
between the Group and the related parties.

(ii) The leasing expense was charged at a range of US$25,000
(2022: US$25,000 to US$50,000) per month.

(i)  The project management income was charged with reference
to the contracted sales amount and certain costs incurred on
property development projects.

(iv) Interest was charged at 8% per annum.

(v) The transactions were based on terms mutually agreed
between the Group and the related parties.

(vi)  The consideration was set at prices mutually agreed by both
parties.

In the opinion of the directors, the directors of the

Company represent the key management personnel of

the Group. Further details of the compensation of key

management personnel of the Group are set out in note 9

to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions of items (a)(i), (a)(ii) and (a)(vi) above also constitute

connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

which are measured at fair value, other financial assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were
financial assets and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost,

respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments,
other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and senior notes and domestic bonds, reasonably approximate
to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted cash, trade receivables,
trade and bills payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, the current
portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
amounts due from/to related parties approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022 are based on price quotation
from the respective fund managers or estimates based on
enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple for similar companies
adjusted to reflect the specific circumstances of the investments.

46.

B IR R AR M T

an\

F+-A=+—H

BRATEER

31 December 2023 —F—=

AN
INVI)
AEBRARAGHMT A (EARER

EHEEHTAEENEREENRESL
ZBRRFAEFFRIN WEEEDAE

HENRERE -

EREEHEREMESEEY BE
BER - XRGERS  EHREREFR
BHRNFRBARRER s ARNFKA -
Hit @B HRBAREMBEENSREE
AFAEMENREAREFERNSRE

& FFERRITREMERNREE D K
ﬁ%/ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁ@ﬁkﬁ
ERAFEERS  EEARZELA
Wﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁo

TREEMNBENAREBELEENAMH
BREETREXZABTANSE &
EHFREENETREERBRI

A THERBRRIIAREFAAE

AHERITREMESIENABO O
BIRBERLGR  EERBREHT
B HIEY T AR i Al s A A R TR TR
HARRREREFE -AEER_-F
=+ -_A=t—-BR-F_—

tT-A=+—-BEAFRRTREME

BTN TEHRREFEBTIERK -
ERERENAAEDERRIITE -

RZEZ=F+_A=+—HBEKZ=F
—ZF+=ZA=+—H FELTESE
BEMAREBEREBESCERERER
HAFERCEEBEY A LEQAAMND
X¥EBE(RZRAFENSEERE LS
B)RERITERBHARA ([REE
{8, EBITDA]) &8k -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. AR TENMAREEL &
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy ARERER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRAAAEEEHITAN QA BEE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: B4

Assets measured at fair value: BRAREFENEE :

As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
DAREFEER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RER EXTBRE EXFTAHE

5w IE A BE WAE
(8- (B=4) (B=#) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TnR AR%¥®Tx ARBT T

Financial assets at fair value BRARBEFEBEHES)
through profit or loss ATABRNEREE - - 344,135 344,135
As at 31 December 2022 RZFZ—_F+=ZA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
NAEEERD
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RER BERAEBE BANAHEER
Mi5HRE ) A\ BUE A BUE
(B—#) (B=#) (E=#) #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT AR®TT ARETRT
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFEEHE
through profit or loss STABENEREE 53,434 = 378,539 431,973
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. N7t

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

BMEAREER @)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREEBHRE)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FAEF=MANARBI=LEHWOT :
during the year are as follows:
2023 2022
—EC=F —=E-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR® T ARBET T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 378,539 1,122,702
Loss recognised in profit or loss, net  HA B &5 fERR /Y E5 18R 58 (30,374) (16,866)
Disposal & (9,208) (835,817)
Transfer from Level 1 to Level 3 BAE—REEFE=R (a) - 84,845
Exchange realignment b H =R ES) 5,178 23,675
At 31 December R+=—R=+—H 344,135 378,539
Notes: Mo eE
(a) Except for certain unlisted investments included in financial assets at (@ BUE—ZT—_—#+_A=+—HItFE"

fair value through profit or loss in aggregate of approximately
RMB84,845,000 has no recent market transaction with quoted
market price and has been transferred from Level 1 to Level 3 during
the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no transfer into or out
of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities during the

year.

BREHFANARBEHELEESH A
EMESNEREENIELMBREST
#4 A R 184,845,000 T8 B M IHE R
SHREVEMFE—REEFE=H R
AREE SRHEENSHREBEHREA
REHE= -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and domestic
bonds, amounts due from/to related parties, and cash and short
term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. Other than
deposits held at banks, the Group does not have significant
interest-bearing assets. Restricted deposits were held at banks in
the PRC at the same savings rate of unrestricted deposits
throughout the year. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
bank and other borrowings with floating interest rates.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2023
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KSEXBEE AKEAZHEAKLZM
BEREANEMBEREERAE WE
HRBFARBE S ERNFBARRES -

AEBReRITAMEEANTIZARA
MERER - INERR  EERRRRE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit/(loss) before tax. There is no material impact on other
components of the Group’s equity.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

47. BB AR EE BT RBER

(%)
R R mEE (2

TRINREMB E i A ZEZREFTE
MBERT  NBEHR - MERHGEA
REBHAEERB AR, (BE) M
FE -FHEPTEHAKENEME
SAKBNBRERTE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit/(loss)
basis points before tax
Bi Al
B2E BA(EE)
i, CRad) i Crd)
RMB’000
ARET
2023 —E-=HF
RMB AR 150 (166,752)
HK$ AT 150 (13,814)
us$ ETT 150 (53,520)
RMB AR (150) 166,752
HK$ AT (150) 13,814
us$ X7 (150) 53,520
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit/(loss)
basis points before tax
i Al
ey wmF(EE)
i CRd) o Crid)
RMB’000
ARET T
2022 —E-—
RMB AR 150 (263,335)
HK$ AT 150 (16,905)
us$ SSTE 150 (63,193)
RMB AR (150) 263,335
HK$ AT (150) 16,905
us$ SSTE (150) 63,193
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

Under existing PRC foreign exchange regulations, payments of
current account items, including dividends, trade and service-
related foreign exchange transactions, can be made in foreign
currencies without prior approval from the State Administration
for Foreign Exchange Bureau by complying with certain
procedural requirements. However, approval from appropriate
PRC governmental authorities is required where RMB is to be
converted into a foreign currency and remitted out of China to
pay capital account items, such as the repayment of bank and
other borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries may also retain foreign currencies
in their current accounts to satisfy foreign currency liabilities or
to pay dividends. Since foreign currency transactions on the
capital account are still subject to limitations and require
approval from the State Administration for Foreign Exchange
Bureau, this could affect the Group’s subsidiaries’ ability to
obtain required foreign currency through debt or equity
financing, including by means of loans or capital contributions
from the shareholders.

All the revenue-generating operations of the Group are
transacted in RMB. The majority of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB except for the Company and
certain investment holding companies within the Group
operating in Hong Kong, in which bank and other borrowings
and senior notes were denominated either in HK$ or US$. The
fluctuation of exchange rates of RMB against other foreign
currencies will not have material adverse effect on the operating
results of the Group.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate against HK$, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group'’s profit before tax.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. % EREE B Z M KE

AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) St LB ()
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in
in exchange profit/(loss)
rate before tax
Bi Ay
ER B (EHE)
®inGfd) i CGRa)
RMB’000
ARET T
2023 —E-=F
If HK$ weakens against RMB ERBTHARKRE 3% 33,624
If HK$ strengthens against RMB EATHRARBHE (3%) (33.624)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in
in exchange profit/(loss)
rate before tax
Al
Bx EF(EiE)
#Crd) o Crd)
RMB'000
ARET T
2022 —E-—
If HK$ weakens against RMB GEATHARBERE 3% 34,240
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BB AREAE (3%) (34,240)
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B BHmRNEE

31 December 2023 — T - =4+ —-HA=+—H

47.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

It is the Group's policy that all customers are required to pay
deposits in advance of the purchase of properties. In addition,
the Group does not have any significant credit risk as the credit
given to any individual or corporate entity is not significant. The
Group performs appropriate and sufficient credit verification
procedures for every credit sale transaction to minimise credit
risk. There is no significant concentration of credit risk within
the Group.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers
of property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations
of such purchasers for repayments. Detailed disclosure of these
guarantees is made in note 41(a).

The credit risk of the Group’s trade receivables and other
financial assets, which mainly comprise cash and short term
deposits, other receivables and amounts due from related
parties, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are all classified
under stage 1 for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. The loss allowance provision for restricted cash, pledged
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets and amounts due from related parties were not
significant as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was in default or cross-
default for the payment of its offshore borrowings, which
included interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and senior
notes as set out in notes 30 and 31, respectively, which causes
the Group in significant liquidity risk. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group has taken appropriate measures as set out in
note 2.1 to mitigate such liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

B IR R AR M T

an\

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

B RREREBEREE
(48)

REBE SRR

R_E_=F+-HA=+—8H '$’§.
R XA E B INE R EF R A

B Edh e E: Jrgfﬂﬁ)}ﬁﬁﬁfam&
BEER (DRIFIRHFE30/%31)
BEASEEEREARDERRR - X
HRERR  AREEHEIRMT21H
REEERRIE - LURSRBERBIESER °

RBEHR  AEEEREBENZIHA
T DERFTORTRNNRERZ

undiscounted payments, was as follows: Al
2023
—EC=F
In the
Within third to
one year or Inthe fifth years, Over
on demand second year inclusive  five years Total
RE=ZZ
R—FUR SLF (B
RIERER RE=F ERE@F) RREE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTRT AR®TR AR%¥Tr AR¥TxR
Interest-bearing bank and other st ERITREMER
borrowings 10,670,316 6,700,783 2,924,167 1,835,959 22,131,225
Senior notes and domestic bonds BERBRENES 8,415,020 3,819,156 4,693,384 - 16,927,560
Trade and bills payables EoRENRERER 11,103,591 513,799 33,128 - 11,650,518
Financial liabilities included in other & A At f& T 5008 K EAT
payables and accruals ERAMSRBRE
(excluding lease liabilities) (REBERIN 8,799,508 - - - 8,799,508
Lease liabilities HEaE 9,305 2,562 4,510 - 16,377
Due to related parties FE A 2,588,416 - - - 2,588,416
Total Bt 41,586,156 11,036,300 7,655,189 1,835,959 62,113,604
Financial guarantees issued: BE BB ER
Maximum amount guaranteed = ERHE 28,693,603 - - - 28,693,603
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rE MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. B #5 R e & 12 B 12 MR

AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REES R E)
2022
- —F
In the
Within third to
one year or Inthe  fifth years, Over
ondemand  second year inclusive five years Total
RE=Z
—FHUA ERF(RE
FEER  REZF BEWF) RRBF st

RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETE

Interest-bearing bank and other BRI REMER

borrowings 11,888,484 11,652,634 4,081,886 1,585,468 29,208,472
Senior notes and domestic bonds BAZBRENGES 4,944,920 7,660,860 6,646,261 ~ 19,252,041
Trade and bills payables BoRENRERER 10,409,743 366,464 45,327 - 10,821,534
Financial liabilities included in other &t A ft & 5 508 Je B =T

payables and accruals BRAANNERARE

(excluding lease liabilities) (HEE BRI 9,177,861 = = - 9,177,861
Lease liabilities HEBRE 10,820 8,428 11,198 - 30,446
Due to related parties &5 B Bk 77 7R 0B 2,583,308 - - - 2,583,308
Total Bt 39,015,136 19,688,386 10,784,672 1,585,468 71,073,662
Financial guarantees issued: B LA BER

Maximum amount guaranteed RaERHE 28,685,013 - - - 28,685,013
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total equity. Net debt includes total
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and
domestic bonds (as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less cash and bank balances (including
restricted cash, time deposits and pledged deposits). Capital
comprises all components of equity (i.e., share capital, non-
controlling interests and reserves). The Group aims to maintain

a healthy and stable net gearing ratio.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

B RREREBEREE
(48)
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SERBECENENRERRRENER
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AREBEEREANRE  YRKHERRD
ey LAREENR RS YEE
HAE  AEEHSERABIRN TR
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PR IHE B E R ER - W M5
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RERIR{EL E R 28 -
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R ERIRFEERIAE R BB E - F
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR T

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The net gearing ratios as at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022 were as follows:

47.

81 75 &

(%)

EXREE )

% e E B R RBUR

RZEBE-_=F+_A=+—HE=-Z
—CF+_A=+t—B/FaELED

T

2023 2022
—_E_= —E-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREBTT ARBTT
Interest-bearing bank and STRBITREMER
other borrowings 30 20,093,560 26,995,112
Senior notes and domestic bonds BAEENBERES 31 15,813,559 17,162,036
Less: Cash and bank balances B Re MIRITERER 27 (6,448,926) (15,016,058)
Net debt FES 29,458,193 29,141,090
Total equity e B 20,482,326 36,625,241
Net gearing ratio FEENE 144% 80%
48. COMPARATIVE FIGURES A8. LE B EF

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with current year’s presentation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023 —E—=F+—_HA=+—H

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49, INA B Z B AR R &R

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RmER - NRB 2 BANKLAT

2023 2022
:g: = —_=__
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBRRKEE 1 =
Due from subsidiaries JE U /B A R FRIB 2,482,550 2,420,364
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 2,482,551 2,420,364
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TR IR 427 494
Due from subsidiaries & U /B A R FRIB 16,509,644 20,581,190
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 15,425 127,263
Total current assets mENE EEE 16,525,496 20,708,947
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIERETEA 693,671 255,708
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings =t 88817 & H fth & 3% 3,525,619 3,890,154
Senior notes BREEE 12,542,871 3,419,846
Total current liabilities mEBEEE 16,762,161 7,565,708
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE (B&)FE (236,665) 13,143,239
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERS
LIABILITIES 2,245,886 15,563,603
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBERE
Senior notes BEER = 12,131,502
Total non-current liabilities EREAERTE - 12,131,502
Net assets BEFR 2,245,886 3,432,101
EQUITY =
Issued capital BETRA 365,138 365,138
Reserves (note) bt (k) 1,880,748 3,066,963
Total equity TR ABEB 2,245,886 3,432,101

Wong Chiu Yeung
=HHG
Director

EFE

Huang Youquan
=R
Director

EF
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR

31 December 2023 —E—_=F+_HA=+—H

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49. WA B2 B AR R 2R ()
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: BT
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: T RARFERE :
Share Exchange
premium  fluctuation  Share option Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
EXKE BRE
B3R E R R e REER st
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

MsE ARBTLT AREBTT ARETE ARBTT ARETR

At 1 January 2022 —T--%-A—H = (546,328) 92,670 4,819,727 4,366,069

Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRZERA / (E518) B8

for the year - 335,755 - (1,428,768) (1,093,013)
Issue of shares for scrip dividend ~ BARR (X 5 31T AR % 572 = = = 572
2021 final dividend ZE-FRERE 12 (572) - - (206,093) (206,665)
At 31 December 2022 and R-Z-—#+-A=+—-8

1 January 2023 k=F-=%—H—H - (210,573) 92,670 3,184,866 3,066,963

Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRZEH A/ (F518) 4%
for the year - 79,11 - (1,265,326) (1,186,215)

At 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=#+ZA=+—-H = (131,462) 92,670 1,919,540 1,880,748

50. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  50. #t /B 5%

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue AP BHREEN _E_NF=A=++
by the board of directors on 27 March 2024. HESSESHE RRERE -

In case of any inconsistency between the English text and Chinese translation of the — AN# T $kaR 2 # R P RANEE(AISLEHER -
financial statements, the English text shall prevail. BELASR SR AR B 2E ©
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities, perpetual capital
instruments and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below:

A FNBERE

THREAXEEBER AT BFRE 2 EER
BE BfE KABATANFEERES
TR A B TR BBV BRI R
WELIFLEE ZEF °

RESULTS E ¥
Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=t-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—B-=f -—T-_—fF -—T-—F -—T-FTF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT ARETRT ARETRT AREFR
(restated)
(& 55)
REVENUE U 2% 20,960,968 26,705,112 37,737,447 32,572,605 21,369,802
Cost of sales HEKA (18,329,976) (21,294,804) (29,563,825) (24,708,788) (15,477,931)
Gross profit E7 2,630,992 5410308 8,173,622 7,863,817 5,891,871
Other income and gains H A A R 660,818 820,387 769,663 1,252,155 1,155,838
Changes in fair value of REMEAAEE
investment properties, net HRE (3,754,084) (25,422) 223,071 596,565 1,404,861
Selling and marketing expenses  $H%E K &85 X (802,420) (1,239,106) (1,039,303)  (758,913)  (516,031)
Administrative expenses THAX (1,710,180)  (1,781,374)  (2,056,594)  (2,094,020)  (1,616,310)
Write down to net realisable value #HEH &2 B ME &
of completed properties held BERPDERESR
for sale and properties under A ER%E
development (2,951,850) (989,975) - - -
Other expenses Hfx (877,699) = (149,251)  (255,414) (92,243)
Finance costs BBER (1,492,343)  (921,124)  (825919)  (682,775)  (528,142)
Share of profits and losses of: MG T3 & BRI R EE -
Joint ventures XN (191,285)  (434,972) 570,209 607,657 181,599
Associates NG 276,431 (19,294) 70,427 33,975 (27,168)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BREARR(BE) (8,211,620) 819,428 5735925 6,563,047 5,854,275
Income tax expense HIERAZ (189,504)  (1,020,120)  (2,067,114)  (2,117,421)  (1,830,809)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR S RER],/ (1) (8,401,124)  (200,692) 3,668,811 4445626 4,023,466
Attributable to; TH B IR,
Owners of the parent HRAEE A (7,991,050) 24,544 3,070,022 3,803,238 3,510,045
Holders of perpetual capital KAERTERBA
instruments - - - - 35,408
Non-controlling interests RS (410,074)  (225,236) 598,789 642,388 478,013
(8,401,124)  (200,692) 3,668,811 4445626 4,023,466
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES, PERPETUAL CAPITAL BEE - BBE XKABXRIAERK
INSTRUMENTS AND NON-CONTROLLING JEPE AL HE 2
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
Rt=A=t+-8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f —T--fF —T--F —T-TFE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
TOTAL ASSETS HMEE 167,889,687 193,964,068 195,012,986 170,614,421 149,382,054
TOTAL LIABILITIES BmeF (147,407,361) (157,338,827) (152,305,875) (131,461,807) (119,095,867)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEiE R % (10,758,577) (16,914,552) (20,920,751) (18,154,211) (12,707,177)
9,723,749 19,710,689 21,786,360 20,998,403 17,579,010
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